FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
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A An Ohio Limited Liability Company
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The Medina, OH 44256
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ITK9 Franchise, LLC (d/b/a. “The Dog Wizard”) offers franchises for businesses that will establish
and operate dog training businesses.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a The Dog Wizard business is $84,150-$120,400
which includes $70,650-$86,650 that must be paid to the franchisor or an affiliate.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of the first of three to five The Dog Wizard
franchised businesses is. $$154,150- $220,400 under the Multi-Territory Developer Addendum. This
includes $140,650 to $186,650 that must be paid to the franchisor or affiliate

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements
carefully. You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a
binding agreement with, or make any payments to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the
proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information
contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you.
To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Jason Watson, ITK9 Franchise,
LLC, 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256, (704) 954-8830.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract
and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help
you make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying
a Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from
the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the
FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home
page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for
other sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: April 13, 2023
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to

find more information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can | earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet
sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also try
to obtain this information from others, like current
and former franchisees. You can find their names
and contact information in Item 20 or Exhibits E-2
and E-2.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes
the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit F includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the
number of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
The Dog Wizard business in my
area?

[tem 12 and the “territory” provisions in the
franchise agreement describe whether the
franchisor and other franchisees can compete with
you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a The Dog
Wizard franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits E-1 and E-2 lists current and
former franchisees. You can contact them to ask
about their experiences.

What else should | know?

These questions are only a few things you should
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in
this disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.




What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue
to operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration.

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if
your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibits C and D.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to
your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the
Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.



Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to
resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in Ohio.
Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable
settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the
franchisor in Ohio than in your own state.

2. Limited Operating History. The Franchisor is at an early stage of
development and has a limited operating history. This franchise is likely to be a riskier
investment than a franchise in a system with a longer operating history.

3. Supplier Control. You must purchase all or nearly all of the inventory or
supplies that are necessary to operate your business from the franchisor, its affiliates, or
suppliers that the franchisor designates, at prices the franchisor or they set. These prices
may be higher than prices you could obtain elsewhere for the same or similar goods. This
may reduce the anticipated profit of your franchise business.

4, Financial Condition. The franchisor's financial condition, as reflected in
its financial statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor's financial ability
to provide services and support to you.

5. High Turn Over. During the last 3 years, a large number of franchised
outlets (11) were terminated, re-acquired, or ceased operations for other reasons. The
franchise could be a higher risk investment than a franchise in a system with a lower
turnover rate.

6. Sales Performance Required. You must maintain minimum sales
performance levels. Your inability to maintain these levels may result in loss of any
territorial rights you are granted, termination of your franchise, and loss of your
investment.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT
ARE SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING
PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE
VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel
which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude
a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term
except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice
thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such
failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating
the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of
the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials
which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings
not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation.
This subsection applies only if: (i) The term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the
franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct
substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logo type,
advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the
franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s intent
not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section
does not require a renewal provision.

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall
not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct
arbitration at a location outside this state.

(9) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising
a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:
(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current reasonable
qualifications or standards; (ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the
franchisor or subfranchisor; (iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing



to comply with all lawful obligations; (iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to
pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at
the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely
identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a
franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and
conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this
subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a
franchise for the market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful
provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in
subdivision (c).

(1) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise
transfer its obligation to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been
made for providing the required contractual services.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to Department of the Attorney General’s
Office, Consumer Protection Division, Franchise Section, G. Mennen Williams Building, 525 W.
Ottawa Street, Lansing, Michigan 48913; telephone number (517) 373-7117.
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ITEM1
THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

The franchisor is ITK9 Franchise, LLC d/b/a The Dog Wizard (“The Dog Wizard”). In this
Franchise Disclosure Document, when we refer to The Dog Wizard we sometimes use the words
“Dog Wizard,” “we,” “us” or “our.” A person who buys a franchise from us is called “you” in
this Franchise Disclosure Document. If you are a limited liability company, corporation, or other
entity, “you” also includes your owners.

The Franchisor and Predecessors

We are an Ohio limited liability company organized on August 2, 2019. Our principal place of
business is 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256. We do business under the name THE DOG
WIZARD. We began offering franchises in April 2020 that are focused on the business of dog
training and related products and services. We operate businesses of the type being offered as
company owned outlets and have since August 2, 2019. We have not conducted any other business
activities or offered franchises in any other line of business.

Exhibit D contains our agents for service of process.

We have a predecessor, The Dog Wizard Academy, LLC. The Dog Wizard Academy, LLC was
a North Carolina limited liability company organized on June 25, 2012. The Dog Wizard
Academy, LLC offered franchises from May 2013 to February 2020. Its current principal place
of business is 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256.

The Dog Wizard Academy, LLC had a predecessor, The Dog Wizard, Inc. that operated a dog
training school from March 19, 2005 until September 2014 at 216 Foster Avenue, Charlotte, NC
28203, and a dog training school (which trained dog trainers) from March 1, 2010 until June 25,
2012.

Parents

We have a parent, ITK9 Company, LLC, an Ohio limited liability company, formed on August 2,
2019, with a principal place of business at 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256. ITK9 Company,
LLC acquired ownership in us on August 6, 2019.

Affiliates

Dog Wizard Resource Center LLC- We have an affiliate Dog Wizard Resource Center LLC, an
Ohio limited liability company formed on December 1, 2021, with a principal place of business at
4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256. Dog Wizard Resource Center LLC offers products for our
franchisees to purchase for use in their Franchised Business.

The Dog Wizard Academy LLC- We have an affiliate The Dog Wizard Academy LLC, an Ohio
limited liability company formed on April 23, 2020, with a principal place of business at 4170




Pearl Rd. Medina, OH 44256. The Dog Wizard Academy provides our training programs for
franchisees and their employees.

None of our affiliates offer or have offered franchises in any line of business.
The Business that You Will Conduct

We offer a franchise program under the name “The Dog Wizard” for establishing and operating
dog training businesses, including various obedience, behavior modification and specialty training
services (the “Franchised Business™). You will use the techniques that we train you on to teach
dog obedience. You will normally work from home in terms of where you conduct the
administrative aspects of the Franchised Business, and will train your clients’ dogs at their home,
parks, or plan to use space at a local dog boarding or day care facility. You will operate under the
trademarks and service marks that we specify (the “Marks™) pursuant to our guidelines and
Operations Manual (the “Manual” or “The Wizard Way Manual”) (collectively the “System”).

Multi-Territory Developer

You may decide to purchase Multiple Franchises from us at the same time, in which case you will
establish one (1) franchise per Territory. These fees are paid by you to us and are non-refundable.
Territories will be identified and reserved when you sign your first Franchise Agreement. (See the
Multi-Territory Developer Addendum, Schedule 9 to the Franchise Agreement.) For example, if
you purchase three (3) franchise units, you will be obligated to open all three units in sequence,
opening each franchise within twelve (12) months of the prior one, i.e., in the span of three years,
all three (3) territories will be opened and operating. You will sign the then current franchise
agreement in effect at the time that you enter into the multiple franchise agreements, which such
franchise agreements may contain terms and conditions which are different from those in the first
franchise agreement that you sign with us.

The Market and Competition

Dog ownership in the USA has shown steady year-over-year growth since 1996. Today,
approximately 60% of US households own at least one dog, with the average being 1.6 dogs per
household. Dog ownership varies by state and metro area, with data suggesting that ownership
ranges from a low of approximately 25% to 50% of households, with a greater concentration in
southern and western states. The market is a year-round business and is a service that appeals to
all demographics and income levels.

The dog training industry is highly competitive. Your competition may include other national dog
training businesses, dog boarding businesses, and dog/pet daycare businesses and local or regional
dog/pet boarding businesses, dog daycare businesses and individuals. You may also experience
competition from retail pet stores.



Applicable Regulations

You must comply with federal, state, and local laws concerning leash laws (keeping pets restrained
except in certain specified areas), pet waste removal laws while on public property, and animal
cruelty laws which forbid inhumane treatment of animals. You should investigate the application
of these laws further.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Grant Reeves, Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Reeves has served as our Chief Executive Officer
since August 2022. Mr. Reeves also serves as our Chief Financial Officer since August 2019. Mr.
Reeves also serves as the Chief Executive Officer for ITK9 Company, The Dog Wizard Academy,
LLC, The Dog Wizard Resource Center, LLC and ITK9 Finance, LLC since August 2022. From
September 2019 to August 2022, Mr. Reeves served as Chief Financial Officer for ITK9 Company,
LLC and ITK9 Finance, LLC in Medina, Ohio. From September 2017 to September 2019, Mr.
Reeves served as the CFO of the Upbeat K9 Franchise Corporation in Medina, Ohio. From 2005
to December 2021, Mr. Reeves served as the CEO of Dock Dogs Inc. in Medina, Ohio.

Jason Watson, Senior Vice President of Sales & Business Development. Mr. Watson has served
as our Senior Vice President of Sales and Business Development since September 2021. From
January 2020 to September 2021, Mr. Watson served as our Vice President of Sales & Business
Development. From June 2019 to February 2020, Mr. Watson has also served as the Vice President
of Sales and Business Development for The Dog Wizard Academy, LLC in Medina, Ohio. From
April 2018 to the present, Mr. Watson has served as the CEO of Recon K9, LLC in Charlotte,
North Carolina. From October 2015 to April 2018, Mr. Watson served as the Director of
Marketing and Business Development for Capewell Aerial Systems LLC in Charlotte, North
Carolina.

Noelle Woodhead, Vice President of Franchise Operations. Ms. Woodhead has served as our Vice
President of Franchise Operations since July 2021. From February 2020 to July 2021, Ms.
Woodhead served as our Director of Franchise Operations. From November 2019 to February
2020, Ms. Woodhead served as the Director of Franchise Operations for The Dog Wizard
Academy, LLC in Charlotte, North Carolina. From October 2017 to October 2019, Ms. Woodhead
served as Business Operations Management for The Dog Wizard Academy, LLC in Charlotte,
North Carolina. From June 2016 to September 2017, Ms. Woodhead served as an Office Manager
for us in Charlotte, North Carolina.

Hannah Whelpley, Controller. Ms. Whelpley has served as our Controller since April 2022. From
June 2019 to April 2022, Ms. Whelpley served as Accounting Manager for Gridiron Guys, LLC
located in Medina, Ohio. From September 2018 to June 2022, Ms. Whelpley served as Accounts
Payable Specialist for Warren Roofing located in Northfield, Ohio. From April 2018 to September
2018, Ms. Whelpley served as Staff Accountant/Payroll Administrator for Environmental
Management Services in Berea, Ohio. From December 2016 to April 2018, Ms. Whelpley served
as Bookkeeper for Foundations Software located in Strongsville, Ohio.




ITEM 3
LITIGATION

Pending Actions:

ITK9 Franchise, LLC, et al v. 937 Dog Training, Inc. d/b/a The Dog Wizard Dayton, et al, Case
No. 22CIV0675, Ct. Com. PI, Medina County, Ohio, Case filed August 23, 2022. We filed suit
against a franchisee for breach of the franchise agreement, injunctive relief and breach of finance
agreement. The franchisee has filed a counterclaim against us for breached the franchise
agreement and alleging that we failed to comply with state and Federal laws, rules and regulations,
that we wrongfully terminated the agreements. The franchisee seeks an amount in excess of
$25,000.

Other than these actions, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this disclosure document.

ITEMA4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEMS
INITIAL FEES

The Initial Franchise Fee for a single THE DOG WIZARD Franchised Business is $50,000. If the
population of your Territory exceeds 225,000, you must pay an additional $0.25 (25 cents) for
every person added to the initial 225,000 person population Territory. We will not reduce the
Initial Franchise Fee if the population in your Territory is less than 225,000. The Initial Franchise
Fee is due upon signing the Franchise Agreement and is non-refundable. The same calculation for
expanding a Territory applies to the below Multiple Franchise purchase approach.

If you purchase Multiple Franchises from us, pursuant to the Multi-Territory Developer Addendum
found in Schedule 9 to the Franchise Agreement, you will realize a unit discount as shown below:

Initial/upfront Cost per Total Initial
Purchase Unit Franchise Fee
1 unit $50,000 $50,000
2 units $45,000 $90,000
3 units $40,000 $120,000
4 units $35,000 $140,000
5 units $30,000 $150,000

We participate in the International Franchise Association’s Veterans Transition Franchise
Initiative (“VetFran Program”). The VetFran Program encourages franchise ownership by offering
financial incentives to honorably discharged veterans of the U.S. Armed Forces. We offer a $5,000

4



discount from the Initial Franchise Fee to veterans who meet the requirements of the VetFran
program.

Initial Training Fee. We offer both initial dog training and business training for new franchisees.
We require that you, or the manager you appoint who will be operating the business day-to-day,
attend the initial business training to learn the basic aspects of how to operate the Franchised
Business. There is no fee for this training.

We also require that you, or a trainer that you may designate who will be training dogs, attend our
Advanced Dog Training program before operating the Franchised Business. We charge a Dog
Training Fee of $8,000 for one person to attend. If you wish to include more than one person in
your initial dog training, you will pay $16,000 for two, and $24,000 for three attendees.

You will be responsible for any travel and living expenses (including hotel accommodations).
Further, and if you or one of your Trainers becomes an accredited Dog Wizard Master Trainer,
then you may train your own enrollees for a reduced tuition fee while greatly minimizing any or
all associated travel related expenses.

Pre-Opening Marketing

Before opening the Franchised Business, you will need to purchase from us a one-time search
engine optimization (SEO) for your market, as well as additional local digital marketing, on-going
SEO and PPC and a minimum market spend to support the launch of your business in the amount
of $5,400. The Pre-Opening Marketing will include initial market analysis, website
implementation, initial optimization of online digital presence including but not limited to local
Google Business Profile, social media accounts, online AdWords, press releases, Google
Optimization, etc. and the first month of the Local Advertising Fees to support the launch of your
business.

Start-up Marketing Kit. Before you open your Franchised Business, you must purchase from us
approximately $7,250 of items and services before opening which will include the following: Dog
Wizard logoed apparel ($325), Dog Wizard leashes ($325), Collars ($1250), Dog Wizard Feather
Flag Signage ($450), The Dog Wizard branded auto wrap ($3000), our customized Start-up
Marketing Package i.e. banners, brochures, certifications, etc. ($1250), and treat pouches and other
various training accessories ($650). Actual dollar figures may vary depending on supplier pricing
to us. We reserve the right to change the mix of this offering at any time and without notice.

All of the initial fees listed above are uniformly imposed and fully due and must be paid with the
signing of the Franchise Agreement and are non-refundable.



OTHER FEES
Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Royalty Fee (Notes 1 | 8% of Weekly Gross Weekly See Note 2 for a

and 2)

Revenues

definition of “Gross
Revenues.”

Paid via ACH

The Dog Wizard
Customer Support
Desk (or “TDW
Customer Support™)
Fees (Note 3)

Minimum monthly cost of
$40 plus $8.50 per lead
that we manage

Weekly

See below Note 3 for
mandatory Year 1 usage
and fees.

Early Termination
Fee

The sum of the royalties
paid to us for the twenty-
four (24) months prior to
the termination of the
Franchise Agreement (or
the total number of
months if the franchise
has been in operation
fewer than 24 months)

Within 30 days
of demand

Paid in a lump sum
payment from you to us.

Renewal Fee

$10,000

When you enter
into a new
franchise
agreement upon
the expiration of
the term of your
original
franchise
agreement

Transfer Fee

$12,500 for a transfer to a
new franchisee that we
approve, or

$1,000 for a transfer to an
entity you control, to a
family member, to an
employee of yours, or to
another franchisee

Before transfer

Payable if you transfer
the business without our
assistance.

Transfer Assistance
Fee

$12,500, plus any sales or
business broker costs

Upon transfer

Payable if you request
that we assist you with a
transfer.




Type of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Interest and Late Fee

(Note 4)

On all fees due to us by
you, 1.5% per month or
the maximum allowed by
law, whichever is less.

Late Fee is $50

On demand

Interest applies to late
payments. The Late Fee
applies each time a
report or record is not
submitted on time.

Taxes

Actual amount incurred

At time of
payment of fees
to us which are
subject to any
tax

You must reimburse us
for any sales or excise
taxes we may pay on the
Initial Franchise Fee,
royalties, etc.

Third Party Charges

and Reimbursement

Actual amount incurred

At time of
reimbursement

You must reimburse us
for any expense we pay
on your behalf, including
a good faith refund of
client fees.

Dog Training Fee

$8,000

Before dog
training begins

Employees who engage
in or assist with dog
training services must
successfully complete
our training program,
which may take place
online, virtually, and/or
at a location that we
determine. Fee does not
include transportation,
meals or housing.

Additional Dog
Training Fee

$500/Week

At the time of
training.

If, at the end of dog
training, we feel that you
or your trainer are not at a
satisfactory level to begin
training dogs, we may
require you or your
trainers to  continue
training at your expense
at the rate of $500 per

week to obtain a
satisfactory level of dog
training. This fee is

required for our follow-
up training program. Fee
does not include
transportation, meals or
housing.




Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Product Evaluation Currently $0 but we may | On demand,
Fee charge a fee depending on | before
the cost to evaluate a new | evaluation of
product. product
Inspection Fee Our costs and expenses of | On demand,

correcting uncured
deficiencies from
inspections

after inspection

Audit Fee Cost of audit plus 18% On demand Payable only if audit is
interest (or the highest prompted by your failure
interest rate allowed by to maintain or submit
applicable law) on records or if audit shows
underpayment. an understatement of 3%

or more for any month.

Local Advertising/ $1,500 per month of Monthly You must spend these

Search Engine which $600 is paid to us sums to promote your

Optimization towards Search Engine business pursuant to our
Optimization, Local guidelines. We may
Marketing Program and audit to ensure
Adword Management compliance and may
(includes min. required ad charge you the difference
spend) in the event you do not

spend the monthly
minimum.

Brand Fund 2% of Gross Revenues Weekly Paid via ACH concurrent

with Royalty Fee
This fee will support local
and/or national
advertising, banner ads,
social media, graphic
packages, and multi-
media development for
franchisee use and
benefit.
Indemnification Amount of expense On demand You must reimburse us if

advanced plus 18%
interest or the highest
interest rate allowed by
applicable law

we are held liable for
claims arising from your
business.




Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks

Attorney Fees and Varies At the time of You must pay our costs
Costs litigation and attorney fees if we
are the substantially
prevailing party in
litigation with you.

Temporary $500 per day plus At time of death | You must pay us this fee

Management Fee in reimbursement of our or incapacity upon your death or

the event of death or | expenses incapacity if we run your

incapacity franchise for a period of
time.

*We uniformly impose and collect all the fees in this table. You pay them to us, and we do not
refund them.

Notes:

1. Before you may open for business, you must sign and deliver to us all bank documents
needed to permit us to debit your bank account via ACH Electronic Transfer for all fees and
payments due to us or our affiliates. If you change your bank account or transfer your account to
a different bank, you must notify us within one day, and sign and deliver to us and the bank new
documents to permit us to debit your bank account within three days. We require you to execute
an Automatic Bank Draft Authorization and pay most fees to us via ACH electronic funds transfer.
See Schedule 5 to the Franchise Agreement- Authorization Agreement for Prearranged Payment
(Direct Debits). Royalties are due to us by you based on the real-time collection of actual cash that
you receive in any payment method that you receive from a client (cash, credit, Venmo, as
examples).

2. “Gross Revenues” means all money and other consideration that you receive in connection
with the operation of the Franchised Business or any competitive business, from the sale of any
authorized products or services (as that term may be modified from time-to-time by us), or from
the sale of any goods or services under, using, or in connection with our Marks. It does not include
tips or gratuities; refunds or discounts made to clients; or sales, excise, or other taxes that are
separately stated and that you are required by law to collect (and do collect) from clients and pay
to any governmental taxing authority.

3. TDW Customer Support. The Company offers an end-to-end customer help desk that
supports key customer-facing communication critical to successfully operating your business. This
includes the timely management of all customer leads from initial contact, to scheduling the
evaluation and all other general customer inquiries that are usual in the day-to-day business
operation. You may generate your own leads and schedule your own appointments; however, they
must be entered in the operating system within company policies. This support will be provided
during regular business hours.

During the first year of your business, you will be required to utilize the “First Year Support”
provided by the Company to better ensure you are able to stay focused on dog training and




associated core services. Pricing will be discounted during this first year, after which pricing will
revert to the “Option 1" as shown below or the then-listed pricing.

After the first ninety (90) days of operating the business, you have the option of hiring your own
dedicated customer service resource to perform all these functions as part of your business (see
“Option 2”). Any exception to this must be mutually agreed to in writing between us, and this will
be at our sole discretion.

Similarly, for any additional territories that you open, you will need to utilize the First Year
Support for that new franchise, though this will be at our sole discretion based on your overall
business performance. After the first year, you will migrate to either Option 1 or Option 2, as
shown below.

We may increase the costs associated with these options by up to 15% each year. At present the
options offered are as follows:

Option Fees

First Year Support: ¢ Ring Central Line required at $40 per month per line (you pay us)
Managing all prospect leads, | e Rate: no cost for the first 90 days. Thereafter $7.50 per lead that
related communication, and we manage (you pay us)

scheduling the initial

evaluation

Option 1: Managing all e Ring Central Line required at $40 per month per line (you pay us)
prospect leads, related e Rate: $8.50 per lead that we manage (you pay us)

communication, and
scheduling the initial

evaluation

Option 2: Hire your own e Before transitioning to managing your own customer service
TDW dedicated office function, you must complete our Administrative Office Online
administrative person Learning Track at $500 per administrator (you pay us)

e You will still be required to pay your Ring Central regular
dedicated line(s) at $40 per month per line (you pay us)

4. The maximum interest rate in California is 10% annually
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ITEM7

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

A. SINGLE UNIT FRANCHISE

To Whom
Type of Expenditure Amount- Am(_)unt- Method of When Due Payment is
Low High Payment
to be made
Initial Franchise Fee $50,000 $50,000 | Lump sum | Upon signing of | Us
(Note 1) via Check | Agreement
or Wire
Travel and Living $1,000 $3,000 Check or As incurred Vendors
Expenses to Attend Credit
Initial Training Card
(Note 2)
Initial Dog Training Fee | $8,000 $24,000 | Check or Prior to opening Usoran
(Note 3) Credit Affiliate
Card
Start-up Marketing Kit | $7,250 $7,250 Check or Prior to opening Us oran
(Note 4) Credit Affiliate
Card
Pre-Opening Digital $5,400 $8,400 Check or Around the time | Us and
Marketing (Note 5) Credit of opening Vendors
Card
Licenses $1000 $1,500 Check or Per statute or Government
(Note 6) Credit ordinance Agencies
Card
Computers, Software, $750 $2,500 Check or Prior to opening | Vendors
Office Equipment, Credit
Furniture, Phones, Card
Answering Service
(Note 7)
Professional Fees $0 $2,500 Check or Prior to opening Your lawyer
(Note 8) Credit or accountant
Card
Insurance $1,500 $2,500 Check Before effective Insurance
(Note 9) date of policy company
Utilities and Operational | $250 $500 Check, As arranged Utilities,
Services Credit Credit card
(Note 10) Card, or companies
Electronic
Transfer
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To Whom
Type of Expenditure Arrllount- Amount- | Method of When Due Payment is
ow High Payment
to be made
Vehicle Expenses $0 $5,000 Check, As incurred Vendors
(Note 11) Credit
Card, or
Electronic
Transfer
Vehicle Logo Wrap $1,000 $2,500 Check or Prior to opening | Vendors
Installation Credit
(Note 12) Card
Inventory and Supplies | $500 $750 Check or As incurred Vendors
(Note 13) Credit
Card
Additional Funds — 3 $7,500 $10,000 | Check or As incurred Vendors,
months Credit Suppliers,
(Note 14) Card Employees
TOTALS $84,150 $120,400
Notes:

1. The Initial Franchise Fee for a single THE DOG WIZARD Franchised Business is $50,000. If

the population of your Territory exceeds 225,000, you must pay an additional $0.25 (25 cents)
for every person added to the Territory. We will not reduce the Fee if your Territory is less
than 225,000 persons. The Initial Franchise Fee is due upon signing the Franchise Agreement
and is non-refundable. The same calculation for expanding a Territory applies to the below
Multiple Franchise purchase approach.

You may decide to purchase Multiple Franchises in which case you will establish one (1)
franchise per Territory. These fees are paid by you to us and are non-refundable. Territories
will be identified and reserved when you sign your Franchise Agreement. For example, if you
purchase three (3) franchise units, you will be obligated to open all three units in sequence,
opening each franchise within twelve (12) months of the prior i.e., in the span of three years,
all three (3) locations will be open and operating. See Item 5 and Table B below for a more
detailed explanation of the Initial Fees.

. Travel and Living Expenses to Attend Initial Training. The estimate includes your costs for
travel and living expenses while attending our Initial Training Program, including food, hotel
accommodations, and any salary that you may wish to pay yourself. Training is conducted at
a franchise location that we designate.

Initial Dog Training Fee. You, or a trainer that you may designate who will be training dogs,
must attend our dog training program before operating the Franchised Business. All staff who
provide or assist with dog training services must successfully complete a training program.
You must pay our then-current training fee for each additional staff member. We charge a Dog
Training Fee of $8,000 for one person to attend. If you decide to send additional trainers
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10.

concurrently to our Initial Advanced Dog Training you will pay $16,000 for two attendees and
$24,000 for three attendees.

Start-up Marketing Supplies. You must purchase from us approximately $7,250 of items and
services before opening which will include the following: Dog Wizard logoed apparel, Dog
Wizard leashes, Collars, Dog Wizard Feather Flag Signage, The Dog Wizard branded auto
wrap, our customized Start-up Marketing Package i.e. banners, brochures, certifications, etc.,
and treat pouches and other various training accessories. Actual dollar figures may vary
depending on supplier pricing to us. We reserve the right to change the mix of this offering at
any time and without notice.

Pre-Opening Digital Marketing. Before opening the Franchised Business, you will need to
purchase from us a one-time search engine optimization (SEO) for your market, as well as
additional local digital marketing, on-going SEO and PPC and a minimum market spend. The
high range assumes a greater market spend for your territory. The Pre-Opening Marketing will
include initial market analysis, website implementation, initial creation and optimization of
online digital presence including but not limited to; local Google Business Profile, social media
accounts, online AdWords, press releases, Google Optimization, etc. and the first month of the
ongoing fee to support the launch of your business.

Licenses. You must obtain whatever licenses and permits that are required (if any) to occupy
the premises and operate the Franchised Business at your location and in your jurisdiction.
The nature and amounts of these licenses will depend on the local laws, rules and ordinances
in your jurisdiction.

Computers, Software, Office Equipment, Furniture, Phones, Answering Service. You must
have or obtain the following: an iPad/tablet, a desktop or laptop computer, a smartphone
(iPhone or compatible equivalent), a printer, and a Square or similar credit card swipe reader.
You will need those software programs that are typically included in a standard suite of office
software (including email, word processing, a web browser and other programs). If you already
own suitable hardware, you will not need to buy new equipment. Your business number must
be answered by a live person or live answering service at all times during regular business
hours. You will also need a desk, chair, and basic office supplies for an in-home office set-up.

Professional Fees. You may wish to engage a lawyer or an accountant to assist you in the
review of this offering, the purchase of the franchise, forming a legal entity or in obtaining any
necessary permits or licenses.

Insurance. You must obtain and maintain the types and amounts of insurance coverage
described in Item 8 under the heading “Insurance”.

Utilities and Operational Services. The estimate in the chart includes 3 months of charges for
your cell phone service plan. Your costs may vary based on your carrier, your plan and your
usage.

13



11.

12.

13.

14.

Vehicle Expenses. If you do not have a vehicle capable of carrying two large dog crates, you
will need to lease or purchase one. In the table above, we set forth the estimated expenses for
90 days of leasing or financing a vehicle capable of carrying two large dog crates, plus
estimated vehicle operation costs (gasoline, etc.). We recommend a Ford Transit Van 150,
250, or 350, Transit Connect, Dodge ProMaster or a Mercedes Sprinter.

Vehicle Logo Wrap Installation. You will need to have your vehicle wrapped with The Dog
Wizard logo and graphics pursuant to our specifications. The cost of installation will vary
depending on the make and model of your vehicle and local installation charges.

Inventory and Supplies. You will need miscellaneous inventory and supplies to support your
administrative functions.

Additional Funds-3 months. This estimate includes your start-up expenses during your first
three months of operation. These expenses include payroll, royalties, additional local
advertising, and other fees payable to us, potential maintenance for equipment, bank charges,
state taxes, depreciation/amortization, labor, and other miscellaneous items. This range does
not include an estimate of your compensation. If you intend to draw a salary during the initial
phase of business, you should modify these estimates accordingly. Your costs may vary
depending on your management skill, experience and business acumen, local economic
conditions, whether you already have some of the items described in this Item, and your actual
sales.

All expenses paid to us or our affiliates are non-refundable. Whether amounts paid to third
parties are refundable would depend on their policies.

In formulating these estimates, we have relied on our officers’ and directors’ experience in
operating a business like the Franchised Business. You should review these figures with a
business advisor before making any decision to purchase a franchise. We have not included
estimated initial expenses for the leasing of office or retail space because you would normally
work from home and vehicle.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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B. MULTI-TERRITORY PURCHASE

Method of To Whom
Expenditure Amount When Due Payment is to
Payment
be Made
Low High
Upon entering into
Initial Franchise Fee Multi-Territory
$120,000 $150,000 Lump Sum Developer Us
(Note 1)
Addendum
(“MTDA”)
Initial Investment for
Your Initial Franchised $34,150 $70,400 See Chart 7(A) above.
Business (Note 2)
TOTAL $154,150 $220,400

Note 1- The low-end comprises the initial franchise fee of $120,000 for three outlets. The high-end
comprises of the initial franchise fee of $150,000 for five outlets.

Note 2-The low-end comprises of the low-end estimate from the Item 7.A table, less the initial franchise
fee ($84,150 - $50,000 = $34,150). The high-end comprises of the high-end estimate from the Item 7.A
table, less the initial franchise fee, as it is included in the initial franchise fee in row 1 in the table above
($120,400 - $50,000 = $70,400).

The estimates in this Chart 7(B) assume that you will be entering into an MTDA for the right to open and
operate three to five Franchised Businesses and the cost of opening the first Franchised Business.

This figure represents the total estimated initial investment required to open your initial Franchised
Business under the Franchise Agreement you must enter into with us at the same time as the execution of
your MTDA.

Other than the Initial Franchise Fee, this figure does not include the costs associated with opening additional
multiple locations which will incur additional costs.

ITEMS8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The Goods or Services Required to be Purchased or Leased.

Advertising Materials.

You must purchase marketing material from us, use a designated vendor with approved material,
and obtain our approval before placing any advertising.
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Computer Hardware and Software.

You must purchase the computer hardware and software we specify, which may include a vendor
designation. You must purchase a scheduling program to schedule appointments as we specify.

Furniture, Fixtures, Equipment.
You must purchase furniture, fixtures, and equipment, pursuant to our specifications.
Insurance

Subject to changes in the Manual or other notices, you must obtain the below types of insurance
at the stated coverage amounts. We require that you purchase the following insurance from our
designated vendor, currently, Business Insurers of the Carolinas or an equivalent policy which
must be approved by us.

Commercial General Liability Policy
e Includes property damage, bodily injury and death, premises and completed ops,
contractual & product liability coverage (Not less than $1 million per occurrence/$2
million aggregate). To also include Care Custody or Control limit (also known as Animal
Bailee with minimum limit of $25,000.

Non-Owned Automobile Liability
« At least $100,000; only if you have subcontractors or employees that are driving vehicles
that are not owned and insured by the company.

Professional Liability (Errors or Omissions).
e Minimum of $25,000 if your business gross revenue is $250,000 or less and you are a
single operator.
e Or a minimum of $100,000 if your business gross revenue is more than $250,000 or you
have subcontractors or employees.

We require you to purchase the following insurance from a responsible carrier or carriers
acceptable to us, with a rating of at least “A” by Standard and Poor, Moody’s and A.M. Best, and
at present must include, at a minimum, the following unless a greater amount is required in your
state:

e Commercial Auto Insurance or Non-Owned Hired with a minimum of $500,000 Combine
Single Limit.

e Employer’s Liability and Worker’s Compensation Insurance (as required by state and
local laws);

From time to time we may expand the insurance requirements and your coverage amounts. You
may also consider an optional Commercial Umbrella Liability Insurance with a minimum
coverage of $1,000,000 per occurrence.
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Each policy, except workers’ compensation, must name us as an additional insured. All policies
must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in our favor and our subsidiaries, affiliates,
successors and assigns and their respective directors, officers, shareholders, members, managers,
partners, employees, servants, representatives, independent contractors and associates.

You may, with our written consent, elect to have reasonable deductibles for the coverages
described in above.

Certificates of insurance must be sent in upon annual expiration date.

Inventory and Supplies

You will need to obtain dog collars, leashes, dog crates and miscellaneous inventory and supplies
pursuant to our specifications. You must purchase certain training supplies from our affiliate or a
designated vendor pursuant to our specifications.

Telephone Answering Service

Your business number must be answered by a live person or live answering service during regular
business hours. You must use our answering services or submit for a vendor that we approve for
the answering services.

Training Services

You and your employees must be trained by us, an affiliate, or an approved third-party designate
that we specify before handling customer dogs.

Uniforms

You must purchase uniforms, apparel, and other logoed attire from us or an affiliate. You and your
employees must always wear our logoed apparel whenever training dogs and/or in any customer
engagement.

Vehicle and Wrap

You must operate your business from a wrapped vehicle pursuant to our specifications. If you do
not have a vehicle capable of carrying two large dog crates, you will need to buy such a vehicle.

The vehicle must display the Marks in the manner specified in the guidelines we provide.

Whether We or Our Affiliates Are Approved Suppliers

We or an affiliate are approved suppliers and the only approved suppliers of training services,
advertising material, logoed attire, Dog Wizard leashes, kennels, collars, and various training
accessories.

Officer Interests in Suppliers
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Our officers, Grant Reeves and Jason Watson own an interest in us, our parent, and our affiliates.

Approval of Alternate Suppliers

If you propose to use any products or services and/or supplier which is not then approved by us,
you must first notify us and submit sufficient information concerning such products or services
and/or supplier so that we will decide at our sole discretion whether such products or services
comply with our specifications and standards and/or such supplier meets our approved supplier
criteria. We have the right to charge reasonable fees to cover our costs (which may include salary
costs of our employees or agents to review and evaluate the product, service or supplier and fees
payable to independent businesses qualified to certify, research or analyze the product, service or
supplier, as appropriate). We will make a reasonable effort to evaluate and approve or disapprove
the additional product or supplier within 2 weeks of our receipt of your notification, but we may
have up to thirty (30) days. We do not generally make our criteria for approval of suppliers
available to you, but we may elect to do so if you ask. We may revoke our approval of a product,
service or supplier at any time and for any reason by providing you written notice or through a
change to the Manual.

Specifications
We issue and modify specifications to franchisees by updating the confidential Manual.

Revenue from Franchisee Purchases

We derive revenue or other material consideration from required purchases or leases by you.

In the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, we earned $1,120,845.02 from required purchases
from franchisees representing 31% of our total revenue of $3,644,501.00.

Required Purchases and Leases as a Proportion of Costs

We estimate that required purchases and leases by franchisees will represent approximately 65-
80% of your costs to establish and operate the Franchised Business.

Supplier Payments to Us

We receive quarterly payments from our processor Fullsteam of 10% of the net payment
processing revenue.

We also receive monthly rebates from Vonigo Pay that range from 0.035% and 3% including a
flat fee per transaction.

Cooperatives

At this time, we do not have any purchasing or distribution cooperatives.
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Purchase Arrangements

We may negotiate purchase price arrangements with suppliers, including price terms, for the

benefit of franchisees.

Material benefits

We do not provide material benefits to you based on your use of a particular supplier. However,
when your franchise is up for renewal, we require you to be in compliance with your franchise
agreement to continue your franchise rights, including compliance with any supplier standards

contained in our Manual.

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

ITEM9

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will
help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in
other items of this disclosure document.

Obligation

Section in agreement

Disclosure document item

a. Site selection and
acquisition/lease

6.11

11 and 12

14.3.9, 19.4, 19.7, 24.12;
Schedule 9

b. Pre-opening purchases 3.1,6.1,6.16,12.1 5and 8
c. Site development and other pre- | 5.1 and 6.11 11
opening requirements
d. Initial and ongoing training 5; Schedule 9 11
e. Opening Declarations Page and 11
Section 12.1; Schedule 9
f. Fees 2.2.8,4,5,6.3,6.15, 11,12, |5,6,7,8,11

remodeling requirements

g. Compliance with standards and | 6 and 8 18, 11, 13, 14, 15 and 16
policies/operating manual

h. Trademarks and proprietary 7,8and 9 13 and 14
information

I. Restrictions on 3.1and 3.2 I8 and 16
products/services offered

J. Warranty and customer service | 6.1and 6.5 6
requirements

k. Territorial development and 1.2; Schedules 2 and 9 12

sales quotas

I. Ongoing product/service 3.1,3.2,and 6.3 8 and 16
purchases

m. Maintenance, appearance, and | 2.2.2, 6.1 and 14.3.6 11
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obligations

Indemnification, and
Acknowledgment)

Obligation Section in agreement Disclosure document item
n. Insurance 13 7and 8
0. Advertising 12 6and 11
p. Indemnification 19.4 6
q. Owner’s 6.5and 17.1 15
participation/management/staffing
r. Records and reports 10 6and 11
s. Inspection and audits 3.4 6and 11
t. Transfer 14 17
u. Renewal 2.2 17
v. Post-termination obligations 9, 16 and 23.2 17
w. Non-competition covenants 17.2 15and 17
X. Dispute resolution 24 17
y. Other: Guarantee of franchisee | Schedule 4 (Guarantee, 15 and 17

ITEM 10
FINANCING

Neither we nor any affiliates offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guaranty your note,

lease or other obligation.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER
SYSTEMS AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Pre-Opening Assistance

Before you open your Franchised Business, we will:

1. Provide you with access to lists of Required Products and Optional Products.
(Sections 3.1 and 3.2 of the Franchise Agreement)

2. Provide an initial training program, as more fully described below in this Item 11.
(Sections 3.3 and 5.1 of the Franchise Agreement)

3. Provide your staff online and live training classes, such as the required Dog
Training Certification class for any staff that will handle dogs. (Section 5.3 of the Franchise
Agreement)

4. Provide you with access to the Manual, which includes (among other things)
systems and processes for establishing and operating the Franchised Business. (Sections 3.5 and 8
of the Franchise Agreement)

5. Consult with you, as we deem necessary, on the implementation of an Advertising
Program, as more fully described below in this Item 11. (Section 12.1 of the Franchise Agreement)

6. Grant you the right to use the System and the Marks. (Section 1.1 of the Franchise
Agreement)

7. Provide Start-up Marketing and Supplies to you, which you pay for, as follows:
Dog Wizard logoed attire; Dog Wizard leashes; Collars, Treat Pouches, The Dog Wizard branded
auto wrap, Start-up Marketing Package; and various training accessories. We provide you the
names of approved suppliers for other items, pursuant to our specifications. We arrange for
delivery of the items, but we do not install these items. Though we may require signage for use in
the field at the place of dog training, building signage is not required for this business because you
will operate it from your home. (Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of the Franchise Agreement)

Site Selection Assistance

We do not currently provide site selection assistance as the franchised business is mobile with the
base operation typically operated from your home. Dog training services will be provided by you
from your home, at clients’ homes or in another suitable private or public location. We do not
generally own the premises and lease them to you. You are responsible for ensuring that the
premises conform to local ordinances and building codes, and for obtaining any required permits.
If you choose to open multiple territories pursuant to an MTDA, we do not provide site selection
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assistance for additional territories as you would still typically operate these additional territories
from your home. (Franchise Agreement 6.11)

Length of Time between Signing and Opening

You must open your Franchised Business within six (6) months of signing the Franchise
Agreement and within one month after the completion of the initial training program. If you choose
to open multiple territories pursuant to an MTDA, you will be obligated to sign your next Franchise
Agreement within six (6) months of signing the prior Franchise Agreement. Since our initial
training program will take approximately 6-7 weeks and the Franchise Agreement will typically
be signed before training, we expect you to open 6 months from the date we sign the Franchise
Agreement. Factors that will affect the length of time to open include the time to earn your dog
training certification from The Dog Wizard Academy, and to obtain any needed permits,
equipment and supplies. (Franchise Agreement 6.11)

Post-Opening Assistance

During the operation of the Franchised Business, we will:

1. Provide you with access to periodic updates to the list of Required Products,
Optional Products. (Section 3.1 and 3.2 of the Franchise Agreement)

2. Conduct site visits, as we deem necessary. (Sections 3.4 of the Franchise
Agreement)

3. Review proposed new products and services. (Section 6.3 of the Franchise
Agreement)

4. Provide access to the Manual. (Sections 3.5 and 8 of the Franchise Agreement)

5. Update the Manual, as we deem appropriate. (Section 8.4 of the Franchise
Agreement)

6. Provide site visits or otherwise, periodic advice and written materials concerning

required and suggested technigues for managing the Franchised Business, as we deem advisable.
(Section 3.6 of the Franchise Agreement)

7. Establish purchasing or distribution cooperatives, as we deem advisable. (Section
3.7 of the Franchise Agreement)

8. Establish and maintain any computer software programs and appropriate hardware,
as we deem necessary for your operation of the Franchised Business. (Section 3.8 of the Franchise
Agreement)

9. Offer additional training as we deem appropriate. (Sections 5.2 and 5.3 of the
Franchise Agreement)
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10. Review proposed advertising materials submitted by you. (Section 12.5 of the
Franchise Agreement)

11.  Conduct regional or national meetings as we deem necessary. (Section 6.10 of the
Franchise Agreement)

12.  Establish an organization to facilitate communication between us and our
franchisees, called a “Franchisee Advisory Council,” if we deem advisable. (Section 6.12 of the
Franchise Agreement)

13. TDW Customer Support. The Company offers an end-to-end customer help desk
that supports the customer communication that is essential to successfully operating your business.
This includes the timely management of all customer leads from initial contact, to scheduling the
evaluation and all other general customer inquiries that are usual in the day-to-day business
operation. You may generate your own leads and schedule your own appointments, however, they
must be entered in the operating system, within company policies. (Section 3.9 of the Franchise
Agreement)

Advertising Program

Start-up Marketing Kit. Before opening the Franchised Business, you must purchase from us
approximately $7,250 of dog training supplies/accessories, marketing items and services, Dog
Wizard logoed apparel, Dog Wizard leashes, Collars, Dog Wizard treat pouches, Dog Wizard
Feather Flag Signage, The Dog Wizard branded auto wrap, and our customized Start-up Marketing
Package i.e., banners, brochures, certifications, etc. Actual dollar figures may vary depending on
supplier pricing to us. We reserve the right to change the mix of this offering at any time and
without notice. The total actual fee charged for the above is fully due with the signing of the
Franchise Agreement and is non-refundable. (Section 4.1 of the Franchise Agreement).

Pre-Opening Digital Marketing — Before opening the Franchised Business, you will need to
purchase from us a one-time search engine optimization (SEO) for your market, as well as
additional local digital marketing, on-going SEO and PPC and a minimum market spend to support
the launch of your business in the amount of $5,400. The Pre-Opening Marketing will include
initial market analysis, website implementation, initial creation and optimization of Google
Business Profiles, social media accounts, online AdWords, press releases, Google Optimization,
etc. and the first month of ongoing fees to support the launch of your business. (Section 12.1 of
the Franchise agreement).

Local Advertising — We require you to spend at least $1500 each month on local advertising and
marketing, pursuant to our guidelines. You must spend at least $600 of the monthly requirement
on our Digital Marketing Program which includes local marketing program, ongoing SEO, and
Paid Advertising with a minimum marketing spend. (Section 12.1 of the Franchise Agreement).

You must submit samples of all advertising and promotional plans and materials to us for our
approval (except with respect to prices to be charged) if we have not prepared or previously
approved them. You may not use plans or materials until they have been approved by us. If you
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have not received written disapproval within 30 days of our receipt of these samples or materials,
you may use them. You must stop using any advertising disapproved by us immediately upon
notice. (Sections 12.3 and 12.5 of the Franchise Agreement).

Brand Fund — We have established a Brand Fund to support national advertising, banner ads, social
media, graphic packages, and multi-media development for franchisee use. You are required to
contribute 2% of Gross Revenues to a Brand Fund. We use monies in the Brand Fund to purchase
advertising that may include online, radio, television, direct mail, billboards, print, or other
advertising. We may use local, regional, or national advertising. We may produce advertising
material in-house or through outside agencies. We are not required to spend any amount on
advertising in the area or territory where you will be located.

Franchisor-owned outlets will not have to contribute to the Brand Fund. We will administer the
Brand Fund and it may not be audited. However, unaudited financial statements of the Brand Fund
will be made available to you upon written request.

In the year ending December 31, 2022, we raised $20,376.59 in Brand Fund Fees and spent 44%
on production and 56% on media placement.

In the year ending December 31, 2022, we spent 100% of the Pre-Opening Digital Marketing
Fees on Digital Marketing.

In the year ending December 31, 2022, we spent 100% of the Local Advertising/Search Engine
Optimization Fees we collected on local advertising and search engine optimization.

If all Brand Fund monies are not spent in the fiscal year in which they accrue, we will carry over
those fees and apply them to the next fiscal year.

Brand Fund monies may be used to solicit new franchise sales. (Franchise Agreement, Section
12.6).

Website
You are not permitted to have your own website but will be allowed to have a subdomain page
pursuant to our guidelines and subject to our approval.

You are permitted to have and maintain private and public-facing Facebook pages and groups of
which the franchisor creates and maintains ownership. In addition, a Google Business Profile will
be created and owned by the franchisor, but maintained by franchisee.

Advertising Council & Advertising Cooperative
There is currently no council composed of franchisees that advises us on advertising or marketing
policies. You are not required to participate in any local or regional advertising cooperatives.

Computer Requirements
You will need either a desktop or laptop computer, plus a smartphone and/or an iPad/Tablet and a
credit card reader. The initial cost of purchasing these computers and related equipment will range
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from $200 to $2,500. The cost will be on the lower end of the range if you already own suitable
equipment.

You will need those software programs that are typically included in a standard suite of office
software (including email, word processing, a web browser and other programs).

Neither we nor our affiliates or any third party have any obligation to provide ongoing
maintenance, repairs, upgrades or updates to that software or hardware. You must maintain your
computer systems in good working order and must replace, update or upgrade your hardware
systems as we require. There are no contractual limitations regarding the frequency or costs of
required upgrades or updates relating to the computer system. The estimated annual cost of
optional or required maintenance, updating, upgrading, or support contracts to your computer
systems is approximately $1,000.

We have established a proprietary operating system which you will be required to use unless
otherwise approved by us in writing. You will also be required to use our standard accounting and
budgeting software, and the chart of accounts we require to operate the Franchised Business. You
must update and maintain your budget on a monthly basis.

We will have independent access to all customer, operational, and financial information stored in
any software provided by an approved supplier and there are no contractual limitations on our right
to access this data. We reserve the right to review your profit and loss statement(s) at any time but
will do so at least once a year. Franchisee shall furnish such financial statements within ten (10)
business days of our request, or shall be in default of the Franchise Agreement

Customer Database

You will create and maintain a customer database from the leads generated by both the efforts of
you and us. You may use this database for as long as you are a franchisee with The Dog Wizard,
but this database and all the contact information therein remains the property of The Dog Wizard.
If you cease to be a Dog Wizard franchisee for whatever reason, effective as of the termination
date, you will cease to have access to the database and all contacts in the database. Further, you
may not make duplicate copies of this database for use in the event you cease being a Dog Wizard
franchisee. We will vigorously uphold this position to the extent that the law permits.

Operations Manual

The Operations Manual (“Manual”) currently consists of 85 pages. The Table of Contents to the
Manual is as follows:

Table of Contents for Operations Manual

Subject Page Count
Intro/Who to Contact 6

Brand Standards 9

The Dog Wizard Learning System 16

Program Outlines 54
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We will provide you with a copy of or on-line access to (or a combination) our Confidential
Operations Manual. (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.5 and 8).

Training Program
Before your Franchised Business opens, you must successfully complete our initial business
training and dog training programs.

TRAINING PROGRAM

HOURS OF HOURS OF
ONLINE HANDS-ON
SUBJECT TRAINING TRAINING LOCATION

Business Training:

e The Importance of Great
Customer Service

e Brand Guidelines

e Optimizing Your Social Media
Presence: Tips & Guidelines

e Grass Roots Marketing & Sales
Initiatives

e Understanding SEO, Google My
Business (GMB) and AdWords

e Software Training for Trainers- 20

Scheduling Appointments and NA Via Zoom
Being Organized
e Software Training to Manage the
Business
e QuickBooks and Accounting to
Plan and Track Your Business
Success
e Conducting the Dog Evaluation &
Making the Sale to the Owner
e Follow-up and Securing Referrals
to Continue Building the Business
Dog Training:
e Intro to The Dog Wizard Initially Via Live
e The Wizard Way & Key Tools Zoom Sessions
e The Importance of Body and the
Language Exercise and 80 Hours 40 hours remainder at the
Socialization location of a Dog
e Foundation Dog Training Wizard Master
 Puppy Training Trainer

e On-Leash Training

26



e Alternative Training Techniques,
E-collar & Advanced Off- Leash
Training

e The Evaluation Process

e Customer Service Fundamentals

e Health and Safety

Online dog training is conducted over the internet. The In-Person/On-Site training is conducted
at a location that we designate, which is currently slated to be at the location of a franchisee who
has an Expert Dog Wizard trainer certified by us.

The In-Person/On-Site dog training portion will be approximately 8 hours per day for 18 days
covering the topics below. We reserve the right to customize your training program based on your
prior dog training experience, which may include a shorter training program.

The initial training program is conducted on a regularly scheduled basis with dates provided
allowing ample lead-time for your planning and attendance. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing
by us, your attendance will begin within 2 months after signing your Franchise Agreement and be
completed no later than 6 months after signing your Franchise Agreement.

The instructional materials used in the training program include the Manual and online learning
modules. We require any certified Expert Dog Wizard Trainer to have a minimum of one year of
experience in the field or with us.

We require that you, or the manager you appoint who will be operating the business day-to day, to
attend the initial business training to learn the basic aspects of how to operate the Franchised
Business. There is no fee for this training. We also require that you, or a lead trainer that you may
designate who will be training dogs, attend our dog training program before operating the
Franchised Business. You must pay our current training fee of $8,000 for one person to attend our
Initial Advanced Dog Training Program. If you decide to send additional trainers concurrently to
our Initial Advanced Dog Training you will pay $16,000 for two attendees and $24,000 for three
attendees. All staff who provide or assist with dog training services must successfully complete a
dog training program to our satisfaction. For those persons(s) you send to training, you will be
responsible for any travel and living expenses (including hotel accommodations).

If, at the end of training, we feel that you are not at a satisfactory level to train dogs and operate
your Franchised Business, we may require you to continue training at your expense by paying an
Additional Dog Training Fee at the rate of $500 per week to get you to a satisfactory level of dog
training and operating your business. The topics covered during the follow-up dog training are
identified in the chart below.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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FOLLOW-UP TRAINING PROGRAM
(This training is designed to help those areas you/we judge need improvement)

Subject Hou_rsf of Location
Training

Methods of training 2-4 Note 1
Basic/advanced obedience 2-4

Off leash reliable 2-4

Distraction training 2-4

Fear aggression 2-4

Dog aggression 2-4

Abused dog training 2-4

Leash/barrier/habitual aggression 2-4

Separation anxiety 2-4

Evaluation process 2-4

Problem solving 2-4

Housebreaking 2-4

Total 24-48

Note 1: We may require that you or your employees attend additional dog training that we deem
necessary. We will consider many factors to determine whether you or your employee attends
additional dog training, including: (a) the length of time since your completion of the initial
training program, (b) the development of new procedures, processes or technology in the System
or in your service segment, and (c) your overall performance.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

The Franchise Agreement grants you the right to own and operate a THE DOG WIZARD
Franchised Business within a defined geographic area (the “Territory”). The Territory will be
defined by a map and a list of contiguous ZIP Codes as described in Schedule 2 to the Franchise
Agreement. Any requested exceptions to this congruency will be decided by us and at our sole
discretion. The border of the Territory on the approved map is the final determination of your
territory. If the ZIP Codes are moved or altered by the U.S. Postal Service. We have the right to
re-define the boundaries of the Territory to correspond as closely as possible to the territorial
border defined in your approved map. Our decision on this matter will be final.

The ZIP Codes that comprise the Territory are intended to serve a minimum population of 200,000-
225,000 people. The population will be determined using extrapolated U.S. Census figures and
business mapping software designated by us. The population size of your Territory will be
determined prior to the execution of your Franchise Agreement.

Your Franchise Agreement does not give you any option, right of first refusal, or similar right to

acquire additional franchises or territories, except if you choose to execute the Multi-Territory
Developer Addendum (“MTDA”), you will develop, open and operate multiple territories within
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a defined Development Area (the “Development Area”). We determine the Development Area
using the same criteria that we use in deciding the Territory for a Franchised Business

Our approval of your location within the Territory, or Development Area, is not generally required.
The Franchised Business and any additional territories are intended to be operated from your home
or a designated trainer’s home. The location where you train any dogs must be within the territory,
be able to house dogs and have a safe fenced in area. You may relocate the Franchised Business
within your Territory without our approval so long at the location meets the above requirements.
You will need our written permission if you want to move your location outside of your Territory,
which such permission may require you to purchase additional zip code(s) contiguous to the
original Territory that you purchased.

If you wish to establish a retail or commercial location for your Franchised Business, you must
first obtain our written permission. Any new facility you open or use to operate the Franchised
Business must utilize The Dog Wizard branding and graphics in a manner approved by us to ensure
consistency with our branding requirements. We may grant an exception to you if you have
previously operated a daycare and boarding facility under another brand name. We may also
require other criteria relevant to the operation of your Franchised Business in a fixed retail or
commercial location.

You will receive an exclusive territory, meaning a geographic area within which we will not
establish either a company-owned or franchised outlet selling dog training services under the same
Marks. Continuation of territory exclusivity depends on your ability to achieve a certain sales
volume. Specifically, if after operating 24 months you generate revenue that is less than $8,333
per month for 6 or more consecutive months, and your trailing 12-month average is less than
$100,000 in revenue, we reserve the right to terminate your Franchise Agreement.

We or an affiliate reserve the right to (a) use other channels of distribution, such as the Internet,
catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your territory
using the Marks; (b) use other channels of distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales,
telemarketing, or other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your territory of products or
services under trademarks other than the Marks you will use to operate your Franchised Business;
(c) establish or operate, or license to others the right to establish and operate businesses that offer
other products and services, such as dog daycare and boarding business using the Marks within
your territory; (d) acquire or operate dog training businesses operating under trademarks other than
the Marks in the Territory, which may compete directly with the Franchised Business; (e) establish
or operate, or license to others the right to establish and operate, dog training businesses under the
System and the Marks at any location outside of the Territory, regardless of proximity to the
Territory; and (f) conduct marketing and promotional activities in the Territory.

We are not required to compensate you for soliciting or accepting orders from inside your
Territory.

You may solicit customers only from inside your territory, and may not do so within the territory

of another Dog Wizard franchisee. However, you may solicit customers outside your territory
only if the geography in which you solicit does not conflict with the Territory owned by another
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Dog Wizard franchisee. All dog training services must be conducted within your Territory.
Solicitation may include other channels of distribution such as the Internet, catalog sales,
telemarketing, or other direct marketing.

All of your advertising and marketing is subject to our approval of both form and content (see Item
11) and any marketing and promotion occurring outside the Territory must be submitted to us for
approval, and we may withhold permission at our sole discretion.

We do not currently operate, franchise or have plans to operate or franchise a business under a
different trademark to sell goods or services similar to those that you will offer.

We reserve all rights not specifically granted to you.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

We grant you the right to operate a Franchised Business under the name “The Dog Wizard.” The
franchise agreement licenses to you the right to use the following principal trademarks (“Marks”)
registered or applied for with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”):

o Principal or Registration Registration Date
Description of Mark Supplemental Number
Register of the
USPTO
The Dog Wizard Principal 6033749 April 14, 2020
A

The Principal 6032788 April 14, 2020
DOG
WIZARD

You must follow our requirements when you use the Marks. You must use only the Marks that
we designate, and you may use them only in the manner we authorize. You may not use the Marks
as part of your corporate or other legal name.

During the term of the Franchise Agreement and any renewal or extension, you must
conspicuously identify yourself as the owner of the Franchised Business in conjunction with your
use of the Marks whenever you use the Marks, including on invoices, order forms, receipts,
business stationery, contracts with all third parties or entities, and on certain displays as we
designate. You must not use the Marks to incur any obligation on our behalf. You must comply
with our instructions in filing any required trade name or fictitious name registration (sometimes
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called “d/b/a” filings). You must sign all documents which we deem necessary to protect the
Marks or to maintain their continued validity and enforceability. You must not attempt to register
or otherwise obtain any Internet domain name or URL containing any of the Marks or any other
word, name, symbol or device likely to cause confusion with any of the Marks.

We have filed all required affidavits and renewals.

There are currently no effective determinations of the USPTO, the Trademark Trial and Appeal
Board, or any state trademark administrator or any court; or any pending infringement, opposition,
or cancellation proceeding in which we unsuccessfully sought to prevent registration of a
trademark in order to protect a trademark licensed by the franchisor. There are no pending material
federal or state court litigation regarding our use or ownership rights in a trademark

ITK9 Company, LLC, an Ohio Limited Liability Company, owns the trademarks listed in the chart
above and licenses them to us pursuant to a written License Agreement dated January 1, 2020. The
License Agreement is perpetual in duration and may be terminated upon a material breach not
remedied after 30 days’ written notice. If the License Agreement was terminated, you could lose
the right to use the trademarks licensed to us under the License Agreement. There are no other
currently effective agreements that significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of our
trademarks listed in this section.

If you learn of any claim against you for alleged infringement, unfair competition, or similar claims
about the Marks, you must promptly notify us. We are not required to take affirmative action when
notified of these uses or claims.

We have the sole right to control any administrative proceedings or litigation involving a
trademark licensed by us to you. The Franchise Agreement does not require us to participate in
your defense or indemnify you for expenses or damages if you are a party to an administrative or
judicial proceeding involving a trademark licensed by us to you or if the proceeding is resolved
unfavorably to you.

If we discontinue or modify our Marks, you must adopt and use any new marks as required by us.
Any expenses you incur because of adopting and using these marks are your responsibility.

We have learned of a business operating under the name “Dogs Wizard” in or around Matthews,
NC that offers dog grooming services, which may be an infringement of our mark, we have
notified the entity of their potential infringement.

Other than as disclosed above, we do not know of any superior prior rights or infringing uses that
could materially affect your use of our Marks anywhere.
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ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

No patents are material to the Franchised Business. No pending patent applications are material to
the Franchised Business.

We claim copyrights in the Manual and in our marketing and advertising materials. We have not
registered these copyrights with the United States Registrar of Copyrights. You may use these
items only with our permission. You must stop using any of these materials if we tell you to stop
using them or if your Franchise Agreement is no longer in effect.

There are currently no effective determinations of the Copyright Office (Library of Congress) or
any court regarding the copyrighted materials. No agreement significantly limits our right to use
or allow others to use the copyrighted materials. We do not know of any infringing uses which
could materially affect your use of the copyrighted materials in any state. We can control any
action involving the copyrights. You must promptly notify us of any suspected unauthorized use
of the copyrighted materials, any challenge to the validity of the copyrights or any challenge to
our right to use or license others to use the copyrights. We may take action against these potentially
infringing uses by others, but we are not required to do so. We will defend you against any third-
party claim arising out of your use of the copyrights. If we determine that you have used the
copyrights properly, we will pay for the defense. If we determine that you have used the copyrights
in a manner not allowed by the Franchise Agreement, you must pay for the defense.

The Manual and other materials contain our confidential, proprietary, and trade secret information.
This information includes business methods, pricing techniques, specifications, standards,
procedures, and other techniques used in developing and operating the Franchised Business.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE
ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

You must participate directly in the operation of the Franchised Business or designate an on-site
supervisor to operate the day to day operation of the business if you plan to be a semi-absentee
owner. Any on-site supervisor and any owner of the franchise who works with dogs must
successfully complete our initial dog training or staff training program.

We may require that you or others sign other agreements with us, like a Confidentiality Agreement
(see Schedule 4 to the Franchise Agreement), an In-Term Covenant Not to Compete (see Schedule
3 to the Franchise Agreement), a Post-Term Covenant Not to Compete (see Schedule 3 to the
Franchise Agreement) and a Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgment (See Schedule 4
to the Franchise Agreement)

Confidentiality Agreement. We require that certain people involved in your Franchised Business
execute the Confidentiality Agreement, under which they will agree to maintain the confidentiality
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of any confidential information they receive in connection with their involvement in your
Franchised Business.

In-Term Covenant Not to Compete. We require that certain people involved in your Franchised
Business execute the In-Term Covenant Not to Compete, under which they will agree that during
the term of their involvement with your Franchised Business, they will not compete with us or any
of our franchisees in the United States.

Post-Term Covenant Not to Compete. We require that certain people involved in your Franchised
Business execute the Post-Term Covenant Not to Compete, under which they will agree that for
two years following the term of their involvement with your Franchised Business, they will not
compete with us or any of our franchisees in the city or county in which your Franchised Business
operates

Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgment. We require that individual franchisees and
any owners of a franchisee that is an entity execute the Guarantee, Indemnification, and
Acknowledgment under which they will agree to pay or perform each obligation under the
Franchise Agreement. We do not require spouses to sign the Guarantee, Indemnification, and
Acknowledgment.

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You may only purchase, use and sell in the operation of your Franchised Business certain products
and services that we require or approve. We may be an approved supplier for some portion of
these products and services, as we may determine from time to time. You may not use and/or offer
for sale any products or services that we have not approved.

If you wish to purchase, use or sell any products or services which are not approved, you must first
obtain our approval. There is no limit to our right to modify the list of Required Products, or to
approve or disapprove products or services. See Item 8 for more information.

ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements.
You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document

Provision Section in franchise or Summary
other agreement
a. Length of the Section 2.1 10 years.
franchise term
b. Renewal or Section 2.2 You may renew for additional consecutive ten-
extension of the term year renewal terms, if you meet our conditions.
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Provision

Section in franchise or
other agreement

Summary

c. Requirement for

franchisee to renew or

extend

Section 2.2

You may renew if you give us notice of your
intent to renew, modernize the equipment,
signs and other materials used in the
Franchised Business to reflect the System
standards in effect at the time, are not in
default, have paid all your monetary
obligations, sign our then-current Franchise
Agreement, sign a release of claims against us,
meet our qualification and training
requirements in effect at the time and pay a
renewal fee. When renewing, you may be
asked to sign a contract with materially
different terms and conditions than your
original contract.

d. Termination by
franchisee

Sections 4.4 and 14

You may terminate the Franchise Agreement
by not renewing, by selling it pursuant to its
terms, or upon any grounds permitted by
applicable state law.

e. Termination by
franchisor without

cause

Not applicable

No provision.

f. Termination by
franchisor with cause

Section 15; Schedule 9

We can terminate your Franchise Agreement if
you are in default.

We can terminate your development rights
under the  Multi-Territory  Developer
Addendum (“MTDA”) only if you are in
default of the MTDA

g. “Cause” defined —
curable defaults

Section 15.3; Schedule 9
MTDA Section 3 and 5

You will have 30 days to cure defaults, except
defaults which are “non-curable.”

We may terminate your Franchise Agreement
if after 24 months of operating the Franchised
Business you generate revenue that is less than
$8,333 per month for 6 or more consecutive
months and your trailing 12-month average is
less than $100,000.

We can terminate your development right for
any unopened territories under the MTDA if
you fail to meet the development schedule in
the MTDA. We may terminate the MTDA if
we terminate the franchise agreement.
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Provision

Section in franchise or

other agreement

Summary

However, we would not terminate any opened
territory under a separate franchise agreement.

h. “Cause” defined —
non-curable defaults

Sections 15.1 and 15.2

Non-curable defaults include: insolvency;
failure to complete training or commence
operations, abandonment of the Franchised
Business, conviction of a felony or certain
misdemeanors and other crimes, threat or
danger to public health or safety or to the
health or safety of any animal under your
supervision, any unapproved transfer, failure
to effect a transfer within 6 months following
death or incapacity, failure to comply with or
obtain covenants, disclosure of confidential
information, misuse of the Marks, refusal to
allow inspection of books and records, and
recurring defaults.

i. Franchisee’s Section 16 You must: stop representing yourself as a
obligations on franchisee, stop using our Marks, cancel any
termination/non- assumed name registration of “d/b/a”, not use
renewal any reproduction or colorable imitation of our
Marks, pay all money due to us and our
affiliates, and return the Manual.
MTDA-You forfeit your rights to territories as
to which you have not met the Development
Schedule.
j. Assignment of Section 14.1 We may transfer the Franchise Agreement to
contract by franchisor any person or legal entity.
k. “Transfer” by Section 14.2 “Transfer” includes any sale, assignment,

franchisee — defined

transfer, conveyance, pledge, encumbrance,
merger, or gift by you or any of your
successors  (including any individual,
partnership, corporation, or other legal entity
that owns you) of more than 5% of your
interest in the Franchise Agreement, the
Franchised Business or you.

I. Franchisor approval
of transfer by
franchisee

Sections 14.2 and 14.3

Before you may transfer, you must request and
receive from us our written consent to the
proposed transfer.
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Provision

Section in franchise or
other agreement

Summary

m. Conditions for
franchisor approval of
transfer

Section 14.3

You may transfer if: you have paid all your
monetary obligations, you are not in default,
you sign a release of claims against us, the
purchaser enters into an assignment acceptable
to us or signs our then-current Franchise
Agreement, the purchaser meets our
qualification and training requirements in
effect at the time, the purchaser modernizes the
equipment, signs and other materials used in
the Franchised Business to reflect the System
standards in effect at the time, you remain
liable for obligations arising up to the date of
transfer, the transferee successfully completes
training, and you pay us a transfer fee.

n. Franchisor’s right of
first refusal to acquire
franchisee’s business

Not applicable

No provision.

o. Franchisor’s option
to purchase
franchisee’s business

Not applicable

No provision.

p. Death or disability  |Section 14.5 The franchise must be transferred within 6
of franchisee months of your death or incapacity.

g. Non-competition Section 17.2 During the term, you may not divert business
covenants during the to any competing business. Subject to
term of the franchise applicable state law.

r. Non-competition Section 17.2 You may not compete for 2 years within your

covenants after the
franchise is terminated
or expires

territory or a 30-mile radius of the boundaries
of your territory, or within another existing
territory, or within a 30-mile radius of its
boundaries. Subject to applicable state law.

s. Modification of the |Section 22 No modifications generally unless in writing

agreement and signed by both parties, but the Manual is
subject to change by us.

t. Integration/merger  |Section 22 Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement are

clause binding (subject to state law). Any
representations or promises outside of the
Franchise Disclosure Document and Franchise
Agreement may not be enforceable.

u. Dispute resolution  |Section 24.9 You must mediate claims with us before

by arbitration or bringing them in court. Arbitration only

mediation applies if specified in state addendum to the
franchise agreement.

v. Choice of forum Section 24.2 Litigation must be in Ohio (subject to

applicable state law).
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Provision Section in franchise or Summary
other agreement
w. Choice of law Section 24.1 Ohio law applies (subject to applicable state
law).

ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not currently use any public figures to promote our franchise.

ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a Franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential
financial performance of its Franchise and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable
basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial
performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a
franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a
franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing
information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

Exhibits 1 and 2 below show average figures based on operating outlets that are divided into three
different cohorts, A, B & C. Cohort A is defined as those outlets that have 1 to 2 dog trainers,
Cohort B is those outlets that have 3 to 5 trainers and Cohort C is outlets that have 6 or more
trainers working for the outlet on a full-time basis. Based on this definition, there are 18 outlets
that comprise Cohort A, 13 outlets that comprise Cohort B, and 3 outlets that comprise Cohort C.
These 34 outlets operated for the full calendar year 2022.

One outlet was not included in the data as that outlet did not provide information. Of the remaining
34 outlets, one operated as a franchise outlet until it was reacquired by us in September 2022.
Despite the reacquisition, the outlet’s information for the calendar year has been included in the
data.

Here we set forth a financial performance representation based on historical data, which we
describe as follows:

. Average
Exhibit 1 'z‘}lggggr(twf(_jlf_ g) (Median) of Average (Median)
Trai Cohort B - 3-5 of Cohort C - 6+
rainers .
Trainers
# Franchisees Per Cohort 18 13 3
2022 Aveézggrlga' Gl $189.569 $513,985 $1,456 631
(Note 1) ($171,778) ($438,239) ($1,412,630)
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2022 Average Total Expenses $118,916 $299,355 $880,845
(Note 2) ($93,126) ($311,821) ($842,157)
2022 Average Net Profit $70,652 $214,630 $575,758
(Note 3) ($45,443) ($240,895) ($570,473)
2023 Net Profit Margin 37% 42% 40%
AverageF#:’;)I:;I;]riiéners Per 158 377 733
(Note 4 (2) (4) (6)
Average Revenue per Trainer $115,172 $139,317 $196,807
(Note 5) (102,392) ($131,537) (%$206,840)
Average Average Average
Exhibit 2 (Median) of | (Median) of | 40 ian) of
Cohort A-1- | CohortB-3- | 0~ e,
2 Trainers ** 5 Trainers
# Franchisees Per Cohort 18 13 3
2022 Gross Revenue $189,569 $513,985 $1,456,631
(Note 1) ($171,778) ($438,239) ($1,412,630)
Average SEO Spend $4,329 $4,944 $4,880
(Note 6) ($3,300) ($3,960) ($2,640)
Average Other Marketing Spend* $3,205 $3,017 $4,654
(Note 7) ($2,303) ($3,578) (%4,654)
Total Marketing Spend as % of Revenue 3.97% 1.55% 0.65%
Average Total Leads Generated 707 1308 2568
(Note 8) (730) (1276) (2303)
Average Total Evaluations 469 880 1682
(Note 9) (534) (792) (1829)
Conversion Rate of Total L_eads Generated to 66.3% 67.3% 65.5%
an Evaluation
Average Total Evaluations Converted to 131 386 664
Contract (110) (398) (566)
(Note 10)
Percentage of Total Evaluations Converted 0 0 0
to Contract from Total Leads Generated 18.5% 29.5% 25.9%
Average Sale $1,754 $1,740 $2,597
(Note 11) ($1,739) ($1,667) ($2,617)

* Includes all additional marketing activities such as digital advertising, event sponsorship, print, radio,

etc.

** Cohort A includes 18 locations participating in SEO plus 12 locations participating in PPC efforts.
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Exhibits 3a, 3b and 3c below still divide the 34 outlets into three cohorts depending on the number of
trainers within the outlets as above; however, these Exhibits further divide the cohorts into subcategories
or subsets depending on whether the outlet operates as “Mobile Only Training Business” or a “Mobile &
Facility-Based Training Business."

Cohort A @ 1 to 2 Trainers per Location
Exhibit 3a ] o ) .
(Note 12) Mobile only Training Mobile & Facility-based
Business Training Business
Average (Median) of 12 Average (Median) of 6
Franchisees Franchisees
. . 3.2 2.0
Average (Median) Years of Operation (2.5) @)
2022 Total Avlgg?lngjl;/ledlan) Gross $169.867 $228.972
(Note 1) ($141,981) ($199,980)
Average (Median) Total Expenses $95,978 $164,793
(Note 2) ($75,670) ($126,312)
Average (Median) Net Profit (Note 3) é;gggg) éggﬂg)
Cohort B @ 3 to 5 Trainers per Location
Exhibit 3b . L ) i
(Note 13) Mobile only Training Mobile & Facility-based
Business Training Business
Average (Median) of 3 Average (Median) of 10
Franchisees Franchisees
. . 4.7 3.3
Average (Median) Years of Operation (@) ?)
2022 Total Avlg;?/%ilgl;/ledlan) Gross $414.454 $543.844
(Note 1) ($359,421) ($462,224)
Average (Median) Total Expenses $177,256 $335,985
ote ) :
Note 2 $118,526 $339,739
. . $237,198 $207,860
Average (Median) Net Profit (Note 3) ($240 895) ($231.242)
Cohort C @ 6+ Trainers per Location
Exhibit 3c . o ) -
(Note 14) Mobile only Training Mobile & Facility-based
Business Training Business
Average (Median) of 1 .
Eranchisee ** Avg of 2 Franchisees
. . 9.0 5.0
Average (Median) Years of Operation (9.0) (5)
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2022 Total Avlgre?/%(reu(:(\a/ledlan) Gross $888.862 $1,740,515
(Note 1) ($888,862) ($1,740,515)

Average (Median) Total Expenses $723,588 $959,474
(Note 2) ($723,588) ($959,474)

Average (Median) Net Profit (Note 3) (ﬁgggi) (ggigﬂ)

Notes:

Note 1 — Average Total Gross Revenue is defined as all monies received in connection with the operation
of the Franchised Business from the sale of any authorized products or services under, using or in
connection with our Marks. The figure does not include any refunds, discounts made to clients or sales,
excise or other taxes that are separately stated and that you are required by law to collect from clients and
pay to any governmental tax authority. Tips and gratuities are not included in calculating Average Total
Gross Revenue. Some of the outlets’ reported gross revenue includes revenue from dog boarding; however,
this only applies to revenue obtained from dogs that are boarded as a part of the training process. Therefore,
revenues from strictly boarding are not included in the figure.

Below we provide the high/low and number/percentage of outlets that achieved or surpassed the Average
Gross Revenue figures provided above, for each cohort.

Average Gross | Number (%) of outlets that achieved Reported
Revenue or surpassed average High / Low
Cohort A $189,569 7 (38.8%) S?gigiiég/
Cohort B $513,985 5(38.5%) Slsgcz);égggg /
Cohort C $1,456,631 2 (66.6%) 525286232223 /

Note 2 — Average Total Expenses for these Cohorts and subsets are: all expenses incurred in the operation
of the Franchised Business, including cost of goods sold, rent, labor, supplies, marketing, royalties and
brand fund, vehicle-related expenses, business loan expenses, insurance, tech fees, computers, software
licenses, legal and accounting fees, professional dues and fees, office supplies, utilities, travel, trainer
education fees and other miscellaneous fees/expenses. Average Total Expenses do not include interest,
income taxes, depreciation, or amortization.

Royalties and brand fund fees paid by franchisees were normalized to reflect the royalties and brand fund
fees you would pay as a franchisee. The actual royalties and brand fund fees paid may have been different
than reflected in the tables.

This Average Total Expenses have been adjusted to remove owner’s income, where reported as well as
expenses that are not typical of the Franchised Business. Below are the average and median owner income
and average and median expenses not typical removed from the tables according to Cohort.

Average (Median) Expenses not Typical of
Franchised Business

$24,627.26 $1,050.32

(516,712.50) (S0)

Average (Median) Owner Income

Cohort A
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$40,405.06 $3,940.53
Cohort B
($0) ($0)
$99,233.33 $28,814.67
Cohort C ($35,700) (%0)

Note 3 — Average Net Profit is defined as Average Total Gross Revenue minus cost of goods sold and all
ordinary and recurring expenses (Average Total Expenses).

Below we provide the high/low and number/percentage of outlets that achieved or surpassed the Average
Net Profit figures provided above, for each cohort.

Average Net Profit Number (%) of outlets that achieved or surpassed
average
Cohort A $70,652 6 (33%)
Cohort B $214,630 8 (62%)
Cohort C $575,785 1(33%)

Note 4 — Average Number of Trainers was obtained from our Franchisees and represents the average
number of trainers for each Cohort.

Note 5 — Average Revenue per Trainer is obtained by averaging each outlet’s total reported revenue and
dividing that figure by the number of trainers at that outlet.

Below we provide the high/low and number/percentage of outlets that achieved or surpassed the Average
Revenue Per Trainer figures provided above, for each cohort.

Average Revenue Per Number (%) of outlets that achieved or surpassed
Trainer average
Cohort A $115,172 7 (38.8%)
Cohort B $139,317 5 (38.5%)
Cohort C $196,807 2 (66.6%)

Note 6 — Average SEO Spend is the average spent on Google and other such search engine optimization in
each Cohort.

Note 7 — Average Other Marketing Spend is the average spent by the outlets in each Cohort on other
required marketing activities and projects.

Note 8 — Average Total Leads Generated is defined as the leads generated by each outlet, averaged across
all outlets in each Cohort.

Note 9 — Average Total Evaluations is defined as the number of evaluations conducted by each outlet
averaged across all outlets in each Cohort.

Note 10 — Average Total Evaluations Converted to Contract is obtained by determining the total number of
contracts obtained in an outlet and dividing the total number of evaluations conducted by that figure, then
averaged across all outlets in the Cohort.

Note 11 — Average Sale is defined as the average client revenue per outlet per client contract sold and
averaged across all outlets in the Cohort.
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Below we provide the high/low and number/percentage of outlets that achieved or surpassed the Average
Sales figures provided above, for each cohort.

Number (%) of outlets that achieved or surpassed
Average Sales
average
Cohort A $1,754 9 (50.0%)
Cohort B $1,740 6 (46.2%)
Cohort C $2,597 2 (66.6%)

Note 12 — Below we provide the high/low and number/percentage of outlets that achieved or surpassed the
reported Average Gross Revenues and Average Net Profits within both subsets of Cohort A.

. - Mobile & Facility-
Cohort A MOngS?:;gSHg)mmg Based Training
Business (6)
Average Gross Revenue $169,867 $228,972
5 -
Number (%) of outlets that achieved or 4 (33.3%) 2 (33.3%)
surpassed revenue average
Reported High / Low $506,983 / $15,763 $377,805 / $148,836
Average Net Profit $73,889 $64,179
5 -
Number (%) of outlets_ that achieved or 3 (25%) 2 (33.3%)
surpassed profit Average

Note 13 — Below we provide the high/low and number/percentage of outlets that achieved or surpassed the
reported Average Gross Revenues and Average Net Profits within both subsets of Cohort B.

Mobile Only Training

Mobile & Facility-

surpassed profit Average

Cohort B . Based Training
Business (3) Business (10)
Average Gross Revenue $414,454 $543,844
5 -
Number (%) of outlets that achieved or 1(33.3%) 3 (30%)
surpassed revenue average
. $1,025,296 /
Reported High / Low $571,896 / $312,046 $307 604
Average Net Profit $237,198 $207,860
5 -
Number (%) of outlets that achieved or 2 (66.6%) 6 (60%)

Note 14 — Below we provide the high/low and number/percentage of outlets that achieved or surpassed the
reported Average Gross Revenues and Average Net Profits within both subsets of Cohort C.

Mobile Only Training

Mobile & Facility-

Cohort C . Based Training

Business (1) Business (2)

Average Gross Revenue $888,862 $1,740,515
5 -

Number (%) of outlets that achieved or 1 (100%) 1 (50%)
surpassed revenue average
i $2,068,400 /
Reported High / Low $888,862 / $888,862 $1.412 630
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Average Net Profit $165,274 $781,041

5 -
Number (%) of outletg that achieved or 1 (100%) 1 (50%)
surpassed profit Average

Written substantiation for the financial performance representations will be made available to
prospective franchisees upon request.

The data presented here was provided to us by our franchisees. We have not audited these figures.

Some outlets have earned this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no
assurance you will earn as much.

Other than the foregoing, we do not make any representations about a franchisee's future financial
performance or the past financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also
do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally
or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the
actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or
projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor's management by
contacting Grant Reeves, ITK9 Franchise, LLC, 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256, (704) 954-
8830, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

Table No. 1
Systemwide Outlet Summary
For Years 2020 to 2022
Outlet Type | Year Outlets at ;[(heea ?tart of the ECn)gtcl)?ttshzt ;r;g r Net Change
Franchised 2020 26 30 +4
2021 30 34 +4
2022 34 35 +1
2020 2 3 +1
Cgr\zﬁ:‘gy 2021 3 1 -2
2022 1 3 +2
Total Outlets | 2020 28 33 +5
2021 33 35 +2
2022 35 38 +3
Table No. 2
Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (Other than the Franchisor)
For Years 2020 to 2022
State Year Number of Transfers

2020 0

Florida 2021 0

2022 1

2020 0

Oklahoma 2021 0

2022 1

2020 0

Virginia 2021 1

2022 0
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Totals

2020

2021

2022

Status of Franchised Outlets
For Years 2020 to 2022

Table No. 3

State Year

Outlets
at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminat
ions

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired

by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations
for Other
Reasons

Outlets
at
End
of
Year

2020

California | 2021

2022

2020

Colorado | 2021

2022

2020

District of | 2021

| .
Columbia 2022

2020

Florida 2021

2022

2020

Georgia | 2021

2022

2020

Indiana 2021

2022

Rrlo|lo|lr|lRRPlwWlW|DM|lRPR|R|R|RPR|RLR|RLR|lo|lo|lo

oO|lRhb,rP | OlO OO MNO|P| O O OO OO |F,|O|O

oO|lo/lo/lo o ool olojlo o o/lojojlo|o|o|o

O oo/l o ool oo ojloloflojlo|o|o|o | oo

o lojlolo o ojlo|l©Oo|lP O O OO Ol O|lO|O|O

O olojloololooOo|lpPr OOl OflOCO]O|lO | O |0O | O

RlRr|lo|lRr|RlPlOJwW| Wi FR|lFP|RPR|FRPR|RPR|RLR|lFR|O|O
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State

Year

Outlets
at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminat
ions

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired

by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations
for Other
Reasons

Outlets
at
End
of
Year

Kentucky

2020

2021

2022

Michigan

2020

2021

2022

Minnesota

2020

2021

2022

Missouri

2020

2021

2022

Nevada

2020

2021

2022

O oo ool o ololoojlo|o|o | oo

North
Carolina

2020

=
*

2021

2022

Ohio

2020

2021

2022

Oklahoma

2020

2021

2022

Rl OlOflWH W Ww oo|oo|N|flP O OO OO |F, |k | O(F | P I PIW|lW|F
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State

Year

Outlets
at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminat
ions

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired

by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations
for Other
Reasons

Outlets
at
End
of
Year

Pennsylvania

2020

2021

2022

South
Carolina

2020

2021

2022

Tennessee

2020

2021

2022

Texas

2020

2021

2022

Virginia

2020

2021

2022

NI NP PP IO LW W I PO P, || O
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Totals

2020

N
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-
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w
o

2021

w
o

o1

w
&

2022

34

4
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*Two outlets merged into one outlet.
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Table No. 4

Status of Company-Owned Outlets

For Years 2020 to 2022
Outlets Outlets
Ol Outlets | Reacquired Outlets ol at
State Year |at Start Sold to
Opened from Closed . End of
of Year . Franchisee
Franchisee Year

2020 0 0 1 0 1 0

Florida 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0

2020 0 0 1 0 1 0

Kentucky | 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0

2020 1 0 1 1 0 1

North 55 1 0 0 0 0 1
Carolina

2022 1 0 0 0 0 1

2020 0 0 0 0 0 0

Ohio 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 1 0 0 0 1

2020 0 0 2 0 1 1

south | 5499 1 0 0 0 1 0
Carolina

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0

2020 0 0 0 0 0 0

Texas 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 1 0 0 1

2020 0 1 0 0 0 1

Vermont | 2021 1 0 0 1 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0

Totals 2020 2 0 5 1 3 3
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Outlets Outlets
ot Outlets | Reacquired Outlets Sl at
State Year |at Start Sold to
of Year Opened from Closed Eranchisee End of
Franchisee Year
2021 3 0 0 1 1 1
2022 1 1 1 0 0 3
Table No. 5
Projected Openings as of December 31, 2022
Franchise Projected New Projected New
State Agreements Signed Franch_ised Company-_Owned
But Outlet Not Outlets in the Outlets in the
Open Next Fiscal Year Next Fiscal Year
California 1 1 0
Colorado 1 1 0
Florida 4 3 0
Tennessee 1 1 0
TOTALS 7 6 0

Exhibit E-1 contains a list of The Dog Wizard franchisees as of the date of this Franchise
Disclosure Document.

Exhibit E-2 contains a list of The Dog Wizard franchisees who have been terminated, cancelled or
otherwise ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreement during our last fiscal year or who
have not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the date of this Franchise Disclosure
Document. If you buy a The Dog Wizard franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to
other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

During the last three fiscal years, no current or former franchisees have signed confidentiality
clauses that restrict them from discussing with you their experiences as a franchisee in our
franchise system.

We have not sponsored, endorsed or created any trademark-specific franchisee associations. No

independent franchisee organizations have asked to be included in this Franchise Disclosure
Document.
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ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Exhibit F contains our audited financial statements for our fiscal year ending December 31, 2022,
2021, and 2020.

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

The following contracts are attached to this Franchise Disclosure Document:

Exhibit A Franchise Agreement
Schedule 1- Ownership of Franchise
Schedule 2- Territory
Schedule 3- Non-Disclosure and Non-Competition Agreement
Schedule 4- Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgement
Schedule 5- Authorization Agreement for Prearranged Payment (Direct Debits)
Schedule 6- Code of Conduct (Rules, Standards, Procedures, and Code of Conduct)
Schedule 7- State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement
Schedule 8- SBA Addendum
Schedule 9- Multi-Territory Developer Addendum

Exhibit B Release
Exhibit H Franchisee Disclosure Acknowledgment

ITEM 23
RECEIPTS

Exhibit J contains two copies of an acknowledgment of Receipt of this disclosure document.
Please date and sign both copies, keeping one copy for your records and returning the other copy
to us.

[remainder of page intentionally left blank]
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EXHIBIT A
TO THE DOG WIZARD FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT



A
The
DOG
WIZARD
ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
“DECLARATIONS PAGE”

This Declarations Page, which incorporates by reference the terms of the ITK9 Franchise,
LLC Franchise Agreement (collectively, “Agreement™) between ITK9 Franchise, LLC d/b/a The
Dog Wizard (“we,” “us” “our” or “Franchisor”) and the Franchisee named below and all
Signators, in their individual capacity, identified on this Declarations Page (collectively “you,”
“your,” or “Franchisee”)

1. The Initial Franchise Fee for this Franchise Agreement will be: $ , Which is due on
the Execution Date. If you are signing this Franchise Agreement pursuant to a Multi Territory
Developer Addendum in a prior Franchise Agreement, no further Initial Franchise Fee is due.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, as of the Execution Date, we and you agree to be bound by the
terms of this Declarations Page and ITK9 Franchise, LLC Franchise Agreement:

FRANCHISEE:
SIGNATORS:
By: By:
(Signature) (Signature)
(Printed Name) (Printed Name)
Title: Title:
Address: Address:

ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC

By: Execution Date:




ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
TABLE OF CONTENTS
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

A. We have developed distinctive and proprietary systems for establishing and
operating dog training businesses, as the result of the expenditure of time, skill, effort, and money,
(collectively, the “System”).

B. The distinguishing characteristics of the System include business processes, trade
secrets, customer lists, knowledge, know-how, trade names, service marks, trademarks, logos,
emblems, trade dress, dog training techniques and programs and other intellectual property;
distinctive signage; standards and specifications for services, products, supplies, appearance,
operations and management control; safety standards; training and assistance; purchasing
programs; and advertising, marketing, promotional and sales programs; all of which may be
changed, discontinued, improved, modified and further developed by us from time to time.

C. The System is identified by certain trade names, service marks, trademarks, logos,
emblems, trade dress and indicia of origin, including the mark “THE DOG WIZARD,” as we
specify from time to time (the “Marks”).

D. We offer franchises for the operation of dog training businesses under the System
and using the Marks (the “Franchised Business”); and you desire to operate one of these
businesses and to receive the training and other assistance provided by us.

E. The value of the System and the Marks is based on (1) the maintenance of high
quality with regard to the products and services offered through the Franchised Business, (2) the
high quality standards of the individual Franchised Businesses, (3) the use of distinctive
trademarks, service marks, and advertising representing high quality products and services, (4)
strict adherence to our high standards in order to maintain and enhance the public acceptance of
the System and the Marks (5) the processes and procedures designed to obtain and maintain a
strong customer base, and (6) the training and management of personnel.

F. You understand and acknowledge the importance of our high standards of quality,
consistency, appearance, and service and the necessity of operating the Franchised Business in
conformity with our standards and specifications.

Understanding these assumptions, the parties agree as follows:

1. GRANT

1.1. License. We grant to you the right, and you undertake the obligation, upon the
terms and conditions of this Agreement: (a) to establish and operate a Franchised Business; (b) to
use the Marks and the System solely in connection therewith; and (c) to use, solely in connection
with the operation of the Franchised Business, certain business processes, trade secrets, customer
lists, knowledge, know-how, and other intellectual property identified by us from time to time.
You must not perform dog training services at any location outside of the Territory (as defined in
Section 1.2, below) without our written permission, which may be withheld for any or no reason.



1.2.  Territory. The Territory will be defined by a map and a list of contiguous ZIP
Codes as described in Schedule 2 to the Franchise Agreement. Any requested exceptions to this
congruency will be decided by us and at our sole discretion. The border of the Territory on the
approved map is the final determination of your territory. If the ZIP Codes are moved or altered
by the U.S. Postal Service. We have the right to re-define the boundaries of the Territory to
correspond as closely as possible to the territorial border defined in your approved map. Our
decision on this matter will be final.

The ZIP Codes that comprise the Territory are intended to serve a minimum population of 200,000-
225,000 people. The population will be determined using extrapolated U.S. Census figures and
business mapping software designated by us.

We do not give you any option, right of first refusal, or similar right to acquire additional franchises
or territories, except if you choose to execute the Multi-Territory Developer Addendum
(“MTDA”), you will develop, open and operate multiple territories within a defined Development
Area (the “Development Area”). We determine the Development Area using the same criteria that
we use in deciding the Territory for a Franchised Business

Our approval of your location within the Territory, or Development Area, is not generally required.
The Franchised Business and any additional territories are intended to be operated from your home
or a designated trainer’s home. The location where you train any dogs must be within the territory,
be able to house dogs and have a safe fenced in area. You may relocate the Franchised Business
within your Territory without our approval so long at the location meets the above requirements.
You will need our written permission if you want to move your location outside of your Territory,
which such permission may require you to purchase additional zip code(s) contiguous to the
original Territory that you purchased.

If you wish to establish a retail or commercial location for your Franchised Business, you must
first obtain our written permission. Any new facility you open or use to operate the Franchised
Business must utilize The Dog Wizard branding and graphics in a manner approved by us to ensure
consistency with our branding requirements. We may grant an exception to you if you have
previously operated a daycare and boarding facility under another brand name. We may also
require other criteria relevant to the operation of your Franchised Business in a fixed retail or
commercial location.

You will receive an exclusive territory, meaning a geographic area within which we will not
establish either a company-owned or franchised outlet selling dog training services under the same
Marks. Continuation of territory exclusivity depends on your ability to achieve a certain sales
volume. Specifically, if after operating 24 months you generate revenue that is less than $8,333
per month for 6 or more consecutive months, and your trailing 12-month average is less than
$100,000 in revenue, we reserve the right to terminate your Franchise Agreement.

We or an affiliate reserve the right to (a) use other channels of distribution, such as the Internet,
catalog sales, telemarketing, or other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your territory
using the Marks; (b) use other channels of distribution, such as the Internet, catalog sales,
telemarketing, or other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your territory of products or
services under trademarks other than the Marks you will use to operate your Franchised Business;
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(c) establish or operate, or license to others the right to establish and operate businesses that offer
other products and services, such as dog daycare and boarding business using the Marks within
your territory; (d) acquire or operate dog training businesses operating under trademarks other than
the Marks in the Territory, which may compete directly with the Franchised Business; (e) establish
or operate, or license to others the right to establish and operate, dog training businesses under the
System and the Marks at any location outside of the Territory, regardless of proximity to the
Territory; and (f) conduct marketing and promotional activities in the Territory.

We are not required to compensate you for soliciting or accepting orders from inside your
Territory.

You may solicit customers only from inside your territory, and may not do so within the territory
of another Dog Wizard franchisee. However, you may solicit customers outside your territory
only if the geography in which you solicit does not conflict with the Territory owned by another
Dog Wizard franchisee. All dog training services must be conducted within your Territory.
Solicitation may include other channels of distribution such as the Internet, catalog sales,
telemarketing, or other direct marketing.

We reserve all rights not specifically granted to you.

1.3.  Modification of the System. You acknowledge that the System may be changed,
supplemented, improved, and otherwise modified from time to time by us, and you agree to comply
with all of our requirements in that regard, including purchasing, offering, promoting and selling
new or different products or services as we specify.

2. TERM AND RENEWAL

2.1. Term. This Agreement will be effective when signed by us and you. The term of
this Agreement will be ten (10) years, which will begin on the “Execution Date,” as indicated on
the Declarations Page. If you have not begun operation of the Franchised Business within six (6)
months of the Execution Date and within 30 days of completion of the initial training program
described in Section 5.1, whichever is earlier, we can terminate the Franchise Agreement without
any refund to you and we are not required to allow you more time.

2.2.  Renewal. You may renew this Agreement for additional consecutive terms of ten
(10) years each. We may require satisfaction of any or all of the following conditions prior to
renewal:

2.2.1. You must give us written notice of your election to renew at least six (6)
months, but not more than nine (9) months, before to the end of the term;

2.2.2. You must update the equipment, signs, and any materials used in the
Franchise Business to reflect the then-current standards and image of the System;

2.2.3. You must not be in default of any provision of this Agreement, any
amendment of or successor to this Agreement, or any other agreement between you and us or our



affiliates; and you must have substantially and consistently complied with all the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and such agreements during their terms;

2.2.4. You must have satisfied all monetary obligations owed by you to us, our
affiliates and your suppliers, and must have timely met those obligations throughout the term of
this Agreement;

2.2.5. 'You must, at our option, sign our then-current form of franchise agreement
which will supersede this Agreement in all respects. The terms of the then-current form of
franchise agreement may differ in many or all material respects from the terms of this Agreement,
including differences in the provisions regarding royalty fees, term, Territory, and advertising
contributions or obligations; but, you will not be required to pay another Initial Franchise Fee;

2.2.6. You must sign a general release, in a form prescribed by us, of any and all
claims against us and our affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, securities holders,
agents, and employees; and

2.2.7. You must comply with our then-current qualification and training
requirements, at your expense.

2.2.8. You agree to pay to us a Renewal Fee of $10,000 to enter a new franchise
agreement and continue your rights as a franchisee for an additional term.

2.3. Expiration. In the event that you fail to give notice of renewal in the manner
described in Section 2.2.1 or fail to comply with the other conditions contained in Section 2.2, this
Agreement will automatically expire without further notice.

3. OUR DUTIES

3.1. Required Products. We will make available, at no charge to you, before you open
the Franchised Business and periodically throughout the term of this Agreement, a list of products,
services and supplies required for use in the operation of or to be offered by the Franchised
Business (“Required Products™). You may be required to purchase the Required Products from
us or from suppliers designated by us.

3.2.  Optional Products. We will make available, at no charge to you, before you open
the Franchised Business and periodically throughout the term of this Agreement, a list of products,
services and supplies which you may elect to use or to be offered for sale from the Franchised
Business (“Optional Products”). You may be required to purchase the Optional Products from
us or from suppliers designated by us.

3.3.  Your Training. We will provide to you training as described in Section 5 of this
Agreement.

3.4. Site Visits. We and you acknowledge that we will conduct on-site reviews,
inspections, consultations and in-person observations (“site visits”) of your operation of the
Franchised Business as we see fit.



3.5.  Confidential Operations Manual. We will provide you with a copy of or on-line
access to (or a combination) our Confidential Operating Manual (the “Manual” or “The Wizard
Way Manual™), as more fully described in Section 8 of this Agreement.

3.6.  Periodic Advice. From time to time, we will provide to you advice and written
materials concerning both required and suggested techniques for managing and operating the
Franchised Business covering such subject matters as: dog training techniques, sales and customer
service, marketing and business developments, human resource development, compliance
requirements and recommendations, and management information systems and enhancements.
This advice will be provided as we deem appropriate and may be communicated through the
Manual, site visits or in any other manner that we decide is appropriate.

3.7.  Cooperatives. We may establish purchasing or distribution cooperatives for any
of the products or services promoted, offered or sold by you.

3.8.  Proprietary Programs. We have established and maintain one or more computer
software programs and databases for the operation of the Franchised Businesses or the System.
These programs include software programs to assist in accounting, customer service, marketing,
operations or management functions of the Franchised Business, in the form and configuration
determined by us (“Proprietary Programs”).

3.9. TDW Customer Support. We offer an end-to-end customer help desk that
supports key customer-facing communication critical to successfully operating your business. This
includes the timely management of all customer leads from initial contact, to scheduling the
evaluation and all other general customer inquiries that are usual in the day-to-day business
operation. You may generate your own leads and schedule your own appointments, however, they
must be entered in the operating system within company policies.

4. FEES
4.1. Initial Fees. You must pay us an “Initial Franchise Fee” as follows:

The Initial Franchise Fee for a single THE DOG WIZARD Franchised Business is $50,000. If the
population of your Territory exceeds 225,000, you must pay an additional $0.25 (25 cents) for
every person added to Territory. We will not reduce the Fee if your Territory is less than 225,000
persons. The Initial Franchise Fee is due upon signing the Franchise Agreement and is non-
refundable. The same calculation for expanding a Territory applies to a Multiple Franchise
purchase. The population will be determined using extrapolated U.S. Census figures and business
mapping software designated by us. The Initial Franchise Fee is due upon signing the Franchise
Agreement and is non-refundable.

If you purchase Multiple Franchises from us, pursuant to the Multi-Territory Developer Addendum
found in Schedule 9 to the Franchise Agreement, you will realize a unit discount as shown below:

Initial/upfront Cost per Total Initial
Purchase Unit Franchise Fee




1 unit $50,000 $50,000
2 units $45,000 $90,000
3 units $40,000 $120,000
4 units $35,000 $140,000
5 units $30,000 $150,000

We participate in the International Franchise Association’s Veterans Transition Franchise
Initiative (“VetFran Program™). The VetFran Program encourages franchise ownership by offering
financial incentives to honorably discharged veterans of the U.S. Armed Forces. We offer a $5,000
discount from the Initial Franchise Fee to veterans who meet the requirements of the VetFran
program.

Start-up Marketing Kit. You must purchase from us approximately $7,250 of items and services
before opening which will include the following: Dog Wizard logoed apparel, Dog Wizard leashes,
Collars, Dog Wizard Feather Flag Signage, The Dog Wizard branded auto wrap, our customized
Start-up Marketing Package i.e. banners, brochures, certifications, etc., and Treat pouches and
other various training accessories. Actual dollar figures may vary depending on supplier pricing
to us. We reserve the right to change the mix of this offering at any time and without notice. These
fees are non-refundable.

4.2.  Advertising Fees. You must undertake and participate in advertising and
promotional programs as specified in Section 12 of this Agreement.

4.3. Royalty Fee. Beginning when you sign up your first client and accept payment,
you agree to pay to us a weekly Royalty Fee of 8% of your Gross Revenues for the previous
calendar week

“Gross Revenues” means all money and other consideration that you receive in connection
with the operation of the Franchised Business or any competitive business, from the sale of any
authorized products or services (as that term may be modified from time-to-time by us), or from
the sale of any goods or services under, using, or in connection with our Marks. It does not include
refunds or discounts made to clients, or sales, excise, or other taxes that are separately stated and
that you are required by law to collect (and do collect) from clients and pay to any governmental
taxing authority.

Royalties are due to us by you based on the real-time collection of actual cash that you
receive in any payment method that you receive from a client (cash, credit, Venmo, as
examples).

4.4 Early Termination Fee. If this Agreement is terminated before the end of the 10-
year Term, you will pay to us the sum of the royalties paid to us for the twenty-four (24) months
prior to the termination of the Franchise Agreement or the total number of months if the franchise
has been in operation fewer than 24 months. This will be in a lump sum payment from you to us,
due to us within 30 days of your termination.



45  TDW Customer Support. You select the level of support you desire and pay the
corresponding fee. At present we offer the options summarized as follows:

Option

Fees

First Year Support:
Managing all prospect
leads, related
communication, and
scheduling the initial
evaluation

¢ Ring Central Line required at $40 per month per line (you pay us)
e Rate: no cost for the first 90 days. Thereafter $7.50 per lead that we
manage (you pay us)

Option 1: Managing all
prospect leads, related
communication, and
scheduling the initial
evaluation

¢ Ring Central Line required at $40 per month per line (you pay us)
e Rate: $8.50 per lead that we manage (you pay us)

Option 2: Hire your own
TDW dedicated office
administrative person

e Before transitioning to managing your own customer service
function, you must complete our Administrative Office Online
Learning Track at $500 per administrator (you pay us)

¢ You will still be required to pay your Ring Central regular dedicated
line(s) at $40 per month per line (you pay us)

Further details are contained in our Manual or other bulletin. We reserve the right to vary the
options available and may increase the costs associated with these options by up to 15% per year.

4.6  Renewal Fee. To renew for another term, you must comply with all terms and
conditions in Section 2 of this Agreement, including the payment of a renewal fee as described in
Section 2.2.8 of this Agreement.

4.7  Transfer Fee. Before your transfer of this Agreement, you must comply with all
terms and conditions in Section 14 of this Agreement, including the payment of a transfer fee as
described in Section 14.3.9 of this Agreement.

4.8  Transfer Assistance Fee. If you request our assistance in a proposed transfer,

you must pay us a Transfer Assistance Fee of $12,500, plus any sales broker or business broker
costs involved in consummating the business sale and transfer.

4.9 Interest and Late Fee. If any payment is received by us more than fifteen (15)

days past due, you must pay us immediately upon demand, in addition to the overdue amount,
interest on the overdue amount from the date it was due until paid, at the rate of 1.5% per month
or the maximum rate permitted by law, if less. Entitlement to such interest is in addition to any
other remedies we may have. You must pay us a $50 administrative fee each time any report or
record required by this Agreement is not received by us by its due date and time.

4.10 ACH Authorization. Before you may open for business, you must sign and deliver

to us all bank documents needed to permit us to debit your bank account via ACH Electronic
Transfer for all fees and payments due to us or our affiliates. If you change your bank account or




transfer your account to a different bank, you must notify us within one day, and sign and deliver
to us and the bank new documents to permit us to debit your bank account within three days. We
require you to execute an Automatic Bank Draft Authorization and pay most fees to us via ACH
electronic funds transfer. See Schedule 5 to the Franchise Agreement- Authorization Agreement
for Prearranged Payment (Direct Debits).

411 Payment. All payments described in this Franchise Agreement are non-refundable.
All payments required by us must be paid on a weekly or monthly basis, as we may specify in
further detail in our Manual or otherwise. You will not be entitled to set-off any required payments
against any monetary claim you may have against us. We reserve the right to apply any monies
received from you to any of your obligations as we determine.

4.12 Sales or Excise Tax. If required by the federal government, state or locality in
which your Franchised Business is located, the Initial Franchise Fee, royalty, training,
development fee, national branding contribution, products and possibly other services, products or
fees may be subject to sales or excise or similar type tax, which you must pay to us at the same
time and in the same manner as you pay these fees to us.

4,13 Third Party Charges and Reimbursement. If we pay any expense on your
behalf, including our good faith refund of fees paid by a client of yours, you agree to reimburse to
us the monies we have paid.

S. TRAINING

5.1. Initial Business and Dog Training. Prior to the opening of the Franchised
Business, we require that you, or the manager you appoint who will be operating the business day-
to-day, attend the initial business training to learn the basic aspects of how to operate the
Franchised Business. In addition, you, or a lead trainer that you may designate who will be training
dogs, must attend our dog training program. Training must be completed to our satisfaction. Online
training is conducted over the internet. The In-Person/On-Site training is conducted at a location
that we designate, which is currently slated to be at the location of a franchisee who has an Expert
Dog Wizard trainer certified by us.

The initial online training program is conducted on a regular basis with dates and times provided
allowing ample lead-time for your planning and attendance. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing
by us, your attendance will begin within 2 months after and be completed no later than 6 months
after signing your Franchise Agreement.

The In-Person/On-Site training portion will be approximately 8 hours per day for 18 days. We
reserve the right to customize your training program based on your prior dog training experience,
which may include a shorter training program.

We reserve the right to customize your training program based on your prior dog training
experience, which may include a shorter training program.



5.2. Dog Training Fee. All your staff who provide or assist with dog training services
must successfully complete a training program to our satisfaction at a facility designated by us,
which may be provided on-line, virtually, and/or at a location that we determine. You must pay
us the then-current training fee for each staff member who will be conducting customer dog
training. Currently, the charge for the Dog Training Fee is $8,000. If you decide to send additional
trainers concurrently to our Initial Advanced Dog Training you will pay $16,000 for two attendees
and $24,000 for three attendees. In the future, you may enroll other personnel in one of our
Education Programs by paying the appropriate Dog Training Education Fee. The cost for this
training will be disclosed at that time. The Dog Training Fee does not include transportation, meals,
or housing.

5.3. Additional Dog Training Fee. If, at the end of training, we feel that you or your
trainer(s) are not at a satisfactory level to operate your Franchised Business, we may allow you or
your trainer to continue training at your expense at the rate of $500 per week to get you or them to
a satisfactory level of dog training and operating your business.

54. Expenses and Fees During Training.

5.4.1. We do not charge a fee for our initial business training. We charge a Dog
Training Fee of $8,000 for one trainer to attend our dog training program. If you wish to include
more than one person in initial training, then you must submit that request in writing and we will
consider it based on availability at that time, and other charge will apply.

5.4.2. You will be responsible for all travel, lodging and living expenses,
including meals, for you or employees, which are incurred in connection with all initial and
additional training. dog training programs. Neither you nor any other of your employees will be
compensated by us or our affiliate for the dog training services they provide or participate in during
any training program. You are responsible for compensating (if necessary) any individual
receiving training from us.

5.5. Delegation of Training. You acknowledge that we may conduct any training
described in this Section 5 directly or we may delegate these obligations to an affiliate or a third
party (who may be another franchisee), as we determine advisable.

6. YOUR DUTIES

6.1. Compliance with Standards. You understand and acknowledge that every detail
of the Franchised Business is important to you, us, and other franchisees in order to develop and
maintain high operating standards, to increase the demand for the services and products offered,
promoted and sold by all businesses operating under the Marks and the System, and to protect our
reputation and goodwill. You must maintain our standards with respect to facilities (if applicable),
services, products, operations, safety, customer relations, consistency and appearance, at your own
expense. You specifically acknowledge that the humane, safe and caring treatment of dogs is
essential to maintaining the value and customer acceptance of the Marks and the System.

6.2.  No Deviation without Consent. You must operate the Franchised Business in
strict conformity with such methods, standards and specifications as we may from time to time




prescribe in the Manual or otherwise in writing. You must not deviate from these methods,
standards and specifications without our written consent.

6.3.  Additional Products. You must purchase, utilize and sell such Required Products
as we may specify from time to time. If you wish to utilize or sell a product or service which is
not a Required Product or an Optional Product (“Additional Products”), you must notify us in
advance in writing. You must provide to us the information with regard to such Additional Product
that we require to evaluate the Additional Product. We will make a reasonable effort to evaluate
and approve or disapprove such Additional Product within two (2) weeks of our receipt of your
notification; but, because we may need additional time to review such Additional Product, we will
have up to thirty (30) days to approve or disapprove such Additional Product. You must use or
sell only products or services which are either Required Products, Optional Products, or Additional
Products which have been approved in writing by us (“Approved Additional Products”). We
reserve the right to charge you a fee to evaluate any Additional Products as provided in the Manual.
You must stop using or selling any product or service which has been disapproved by us.

6.4. Appearance. You must ensure that all advertising and promotional materials,
signs, decorations, and other items specified by us bear our Marks in the form, color, location, and
manner prescribed by us.

6.5.  Staffing.

6.5.1. You must maintain a competent, conscientious, certified staff. You must
take steps necessary to ensure that its staff preserve good customer relations; render competent,
prompt, courteous, and knowledgeable service; and meet such minimum standards as we may
establish from time to time in the Manual. You and your staff must conduct yourselves in a manner
that will not detract from our name and goodwill. You will be solely responsible for all
employment decisions and functions of the Franchised Business, including those related to hiring,
firing, wage and hour requirements, insurance and worker’s compensation, record keeping,
supervision, and discipline of employees; but, in order to protect the integrity and reputation of the
Marks and the System, each of your employees must agree in writing to abide by the System’s
code of conduct (“Code of Conduct”), as it may be modified by us from time to time in the
Manual. The current Code of Conduct is attached as Schedule 6.

6.5.2. All employees engaged by you will be regarded as your employees only and
there will be no joint employer or other relationship between us and your employees. You must
advise each of your employees, in writing and before the commencement of their employment,
that they will be employed by you only and not us. We and you each acknowledge and agree that
we have no authority to and will not exercise any control over the essential terms and conditions
of employment of any personnel working for or hired by you. With respect to such personnel, and
without limiting the generality of the preceding sentences, only you have the power, and you
hereby accept the responsibility, to hire, pay, promote, discipline, fire, train, establish employment
policies, provide an employee handbook, supervise and control their schedule and work conditions,
determine pay rates and methods of payment, and maintain employment records. With respect to
your employees, we:
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(i) will not participate in your hiring, firing, promotion, demotion, disciplinary, or
scheduling decisions;

(if)  will not supervise the work to be performed,
(iii)  will not be responsible for the determination or payment of wages;

(iv) will not provide employment benefits (including workers’ compensation, group
health insurance, or retirement plans);

(v) will not supply tools or equipment; and

(vi) will not determine the applicability of minimum wage or overtime laws or
exemptions;

and have no authority to do any of the foregoing.

6.5.3. Youwill pay all salaries for your personnel. You are responsible for all costs
and overhead associated with the conduct of the Franchised Business except as otherwise
specifically provided in this Agreement. You are responsible for the payment of all wages,
commissions, bonuses, fringe benefits, insurance premiums, payroll taxes and other items required
by applicable laws, if any, to all personnel working for or hired by you, whether classified as
employees or independent contractors. Without prejudice to the foregoing, you will make all
statutory deductions and contributions and are solely responsible for complying—and shall
comply—with all applicable laws relating to the employment of your employees, including all
wage and hour laws, the classification of workers as employees or independent contractors, and
the classification of employees as exempt or non-exempt under applicable minimum wage and
overtime laws. Employment of your employees will be at your own risk and expense and your
employees will have no claims against us for wages, commissions, bonuses, fringe benefits,
insurance premiums, Social Security and Medicare contributions, or any other form of
compensation (including severance compensation).

6.5.4. In clarification of your indemnification obligations under Section 19.4 and
without limiting the comprehensiveness thereof, you must indemnify and defend us against and
hold us harmless from any sanction, surcharge, penalty, liability, cost, expense or, in general terms,
from any amount or burden that we may incur or have to bear in connection with your employees.

6.6. Computer Hardware and Software. You must purchase, install and use such
computer hardware and software as we may require from time to time. You must obtain a license
for (if necessary), install, implement, maintain and upgrade such computer hardware and software
at your expense and use each Proprietary Program designated by us. You agree to sign our standard
software license agreement for each Proprietary Program, if any, within 90 days of notification
which may require you to pay a fee and permit our affiliates to have independent access to
information shared by, in or through the Propriety Program. We may also require that you provide
us independent access to any information relating to the Franchised Business stored on any
computer hardware by any software program, whether or not it is a Proprietary Program. You
agree that any data stored in or compiled by a Proprietary Program will be our property, including
customer lists. You agree to obtain and maintain, at your own expense, such computer hardware
as may be necessary to efficiently utilize each Proprietary Program, as may be determined by us
or otherwise designated by the license for such Proprietary Program.
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6.7. Franchisee Intranet. We have the right, but not the obligation, to establish a
“Franchisee Intranet”, a website or other electronic system providing private and secure
communications (e.g., an intranet) between us, you, other Dog Wizard franchisees, and other
persons and entities as determined by us in our sole discretion. If we establish a Franchisee Intranet,
you must establish and maintain access to it in the manner specified by us, and must from time-to-
time execute such agreements and/or acknowledge and agree to comply with such policies
concerning the use of the Franchisee Intranet as we may prepare or require.

6.8. Telephone Service. Prior to the opening of the Franchised Business, you must
establish and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement prompt and adequate telephone
service (as we may prescribe in writing). We will on your behalf establish and maintain at least
one dedicated telephone line for use exclusively by the Franchised Business, which will be the
“Designated Number” and which must be answered by TDW Customer Support, an employee of
yours or by an answering service approved by us during regular business hours designated by us
from time-to-time. Each telephone line must have all service features prescribed by us from time-
to-time. We may require you to increase the number of telephone lines to accommodate your call
volume or to use a designated call center. All required lines must be operational and functional
before the Franchised Business opens and at all times during the term of this Agreement. You
must use only the Designated Number in or on all advertising (including Internet advertising),
stationery, business cards, marketing and promotional materials, directory listings (including
online directories) and other public materials relating to the Franchised Business. The Designated
Number must be listed in all telephone directories (including paper and online directories) only
under the name “THE DOG WIZARD” and a location within the Territory. All outgoing calls
relating to the Franchised Business must display only the Designated Number and/or the name
“THE DOG WIZARD?” on the receiving party’s caller identification, and you may not block your
outgoing caller identification information.

6.9. Forms. You must use such contracts, invoices and other standard forms as we may
periodically prescribe; but you will be responsible for ensuring that all provisions of such contracts
are valid and enforceable under, and comply with, applicable law.

6.10. Franchisee Modifications/Grant-back. You must not implement any change,
modification, amendment, or improvement to the System without our written permission. You
must notify us in writing of any change, modification, amendment, or improvement in the System
which you propose to make, and must provide to us such information as we request regarding the
proposed change, modification, amendment, or improvement. No such change, modification,
amendment or improvement may be implemented or made without our written permission. You
agree that we will have the right to incorporate the proposed change, modification, amendment, or
improvement into the System and will obtain all right, title, and interest therein, including any
rights to any patents, patent improvements, trade secrets and copyrights for a reasonable fee
determined by us in our sole discretion. You further agree to sign any such documentation, from
time to time, as we may require to give effect to this section.

6.11. Location. You acknowledge that the Franchised Business is to be operated from
your home or your trainers home and that dog training services will be provided by you or your
trainer from your home, their home, at clients’ homes or in suitable public locations. You may not
establish a retail or commercial location for the Franchised Business without our written
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permission, which may be withheld for any or no reason. If we elect to permit the Franchised
Business to be operated at a retail or commercial location, we may establish site selection and other
criteria for such location. You must comply with all terms of its lease or sublease (if any) and all
other agreements affecting the locations and operation of the Franchised Business; must undertake
your best efforts to maintain a good and positive working relationship with your landlord and/or
lessor and their other tenants and/or lessees, and must refrain from any activity which could
jeopardize your right to remain in possession of, or to renew the lease or sublease. If you want to
obtain a retail or commercial location from which to operate the Franchised Business, we reserve
the right to establish additional branding and appearance requirements, modified royalty rates and
other modifications to the System relevant to the your operation of the Franchised Business from
a fixed location and you must comply with such modifications.

6.12. Meetings. You must attend at your own expense such regional or national meetings
and gatherings as we deem necessary at dates and locations selected by us. You will not be
required to attend more than one in-person meeting in any calendar year, but will be required to
attend virtual meetings.

6.13. Ownership. You must maintain and provide to us, without request, a current list
of all owners, members, shareholders, or partners of record and all beneficial owners of any class
of voting securities of you (if you are a legal entity and not an individual) and promptly notify us
of any changes to such list. You represent, warrant and covenant that the owners, members,
shareholders, or partners of record, and all beneficial owners of any class of voting security of you
as of the Execution Date are described on Schedule 1.

6.14. FEranchisee Advisory Council. We have established an organization to facilitate
communication between us and franchisees operating under the Marks and the System (the
“Franchisee Advisory Council”). The Franchisee Advisory Council may be terminated or
dissolved by us at any time.

6.15. Self-Help. If, as a result of a site visit, on-site review or consultation, any
deficiencies related to the Franchised Business are identified, you agree to correct such deficiency
within a reasonable time as we may designate in writing. If you fail to correct such deficiencies
in a manner satisfactory to us, we will have the right, but not the obligation, to enter the premises
of the Franchised Business, without being guilty of trespass, and take such action as is necessary
to correct such deficiency and you must reimburse us our reasonable costs and expenses in doing
so upon demand. These rights are in addition to all other rights and remedies available to us under
this Agreement.

6.16. Wrapped Vehicle. You must operate your business from a wrapped vehicle
pursuant to our specifications. If you do not have a vehicle capable of carrying two large dog
crates, you will need to acquire one. The vehicle must display the Marks in the manner specified
in the Manual. Your wrapped vehicle must be used for appointments with current and potential
clients.

6.17. Minimum Requirements. Continuation of territory exclusivity depends on your
ability to achieve a certain sales volume. Specifically, if after operating 24 months you generate
revenue that is less than $8,333 per month for 6 or more consecutive months, and your trailing 12-
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month average is less than $100,000 in revenue, we reserve the right to terminate your Franchise
Agreement

7. TRADEMARKS

7.1.  Control of Marks. We represent that we will take all steps reasonably necessary
to preserve and protect the validity of the Marks and our right to use and to license others to use
the Marks.

7.2.  Use of Marks. With respect to your use of the Marks pursuant to this Agreement,
you agree that:

7.2.1. You must use only the Marks designated by us, and must use them only in
the manner authorized and permitted by us;

7.2.2. You must use the Marks only for the operation of the Franchised Business
and only in the Territory, or in advertising for the Franchised Business;

7.2.3. Unless otherwise authorized or required by us, you must operate and
advertise the Franchised Business only under the name “THE DOG WIZARD”, without prefix or
suffix. You must not use the Marks as part of your corporate or other legal name;

7.2.4. You must identify yourself (and not us) as the owner of the Franchised
Business in conjunction with any use of the Marks, including the use thereof on leases, invoices,
order forms, receipts, and business stationery, as well as at such other locations as we may
designate in writing;

7.2.5. Your right to use the Marks is limited to the uses authorized under this
Agreement, and any unauthorized use thereof will constitute an infringement of our rights;

7.2.6. You must not use the Marks to incur any obligation or indebtedness on
behalf of us;

7.2.7. You must not register, attempt to register, obtain any ownership in, or
otherwise utilize any website, domain name, URL, Internet presence or other electronic
communications portal which contains, incorporates, or consists of the Marks or any of them,
without our written consent, which may be withheld for any or no reason. If you register, attempt
to register, obtain any ownership in, or otherwise utilize any website, domain name, URL, Internet
presence or other electronic communications portal in violation of this Section 7.2.7, in addition
to any rights we may have under Section 15 hereof, you agree that any such website, domain name,
URL, Internet presence or other electronic communications portal, including any copyrights
therein, will be deemed to be our property. If a court determines that any ownership rights to any
website, domain name, URL, Internet presence or other electronic communications portal are not
automatically transferred to us pursuant to this Section 7.2.7, you agree to sign any documents we
deem necessary to give effect to this Section 7.2.7.

7.2.8. You must sign any documents deemed necessary or useful by us to obtain
protection for the Marks or to maintain their validity and enforceability; and
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7.2.9. You must promptly notify us of any suspected unauthorized use of the
Marks, any challenge to the validity of the Marks, or any challenge to our ownership of the Marks,
or any challenge to our right to use and to license others to use such Marks, or your right to use
the Marks. We have the right to direct and control any administrative proceeding or litigation
involving the Marks, including any settlement. We have the right to take action against uses by
others that may constitute infringement of the Marks.

7.3.  Acknowledgements. You expressly understand and acknowledge that:

7.3.1. The Marks are valid and serve to identify the System and those who are
authorized to operate under the System;

7.3.2. During the term of this Agreement and after its expiration or termination,
you must not directly or indirectly contest the validity of our ownership of, or our right to use and
to license others to use, the Marks;

7.3.3. Your use of the Marks pursuant to this Agreement does not give you any
ownership interest or other interest in or to the Marks;

7.3.4. Any and all goodwill arising from your use of the Marks will inure solely
and exclusively to our benefit, and upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, no monetary
amount will be attributable to any goodwill associated with your use of the System or the Marks;
and

7.3.5. We reserve the right to substitute or add different trademarks for use in
identifying the System and the businesses operating thereunder if we, in our sole discretion,
determine that substitution or addition of different marks as Marks will be beneficial to the System.
You must implement promptly any such substitution or addition of new Marks and immediately
cease to use any mark indicated by us. You must bear the costs of conforming to our new or
substituted Marks.

8. MANUAL

8.1. Manual Defined. To protect our reputation and goodwill and to maintain high
standards of operation under the System, you must operate the Franchised Business in strict
accordance with the standards, methods, policies, dog training techniques and procedures specified
in the Manual (which may consist of more than one (1) volume, and of materials in any format as
we deem appropriate which taken together will constitute the “Manual”). You will be provided
with one copy of or online access to (as we deem appropriate) the Manual for the duration of this
Agreement and any renewals, additions, supplements, or extensions thereof, upon completion by
you of our initial training program to our satisfaction.

8.2.  Confidentiality. You must treat the Manual, any other manuals created for or
approved for use in the operation of the Franchised Business, and the information contained
therein, as confidential, and must use all reasonable efforts to maintain such information as secret
and confidential. You represent and warrant that you and your officers, directors, managers,
employees, agents, contractors and any other personnel having access to any of our confidential
information, including the Manual, must each sign a Non-Disclosure and Non-Competition
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Agreement in the form attached as Schedule D to this Agreement. You must not (a) copy,
duplicate, record, or otherwise reproduce the foregoing materials, in whole or in part, except as
expressly approved by us in writing or (b) otherwise make them available to any unauthorized
person.

8.3.  Ownership of and Access to Manual. The Manual will remain our sole property
and must be kept in a secure place. We may permit you to obtain electronic copies of, and updates
or revisions to, the Manual through the Internet, extranets, email or otherwise. You agree to
permanently delete or destroy any extraneous or superseded copies (including electronic copies),
as we may periodically prescribe.

8.4. Revisions. We may from time to time revise the contents of the Manual, and you
agree to comply with each new or changed standard, after receiving notice of such revision.

8.5. Controlling Copy. You must ensure that the Manual is kept current. In the event
of any dispute as to the contents of the Manual, the terms of the master copy maintained by us
online will be controlling.

9. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

You must not, during the term of this Agreement or thereafter, communicate, divulge, or use for
the benefit of any other person, partnership, association, or corporation any confidential
information, business processes, trade secrets, customer lists, knowledge, know-how, patents
applied for concerning the methods of operation of the Franchised Business, or any other
information designated by us as confidential (collectively, “Confidential Information”) which
may be communicated to you or of which you may be apprised of by virtue of your operation
under the terms of this Agreement. You must divulge such Confidential Information only to those
of your employees as must have access to it in order to operate the Franchised Business. Any and
all other information, knowledge, know-how, techniques, and other data which we designate as
confidential will be deemed Confidential Information for purposes of this Agreement.

10. ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS

10.1. General. You must prepare, and must preserve for at least three (3) years from the
dates of their preparation, complete and accurate books, records, and accounts in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, using only the chart of bookkeeping accounts and in the
form and manner prescribed by us from time to time in the Manual or otherwise in writing.

10.2. Recordation. You must record all revenues, sales tax, and charges collected on
behalf of third parties in accordance with applicable laws and the procedures prescribed in the
Manual, on the computer system, or as we may specify.

10.3. Tax Returns. You must submit to us copies of your complete federal income tax
return for the previous tax year, as filed with the Internal Revenue Service, by April 30 of each
year, or, if you have received an extension of time to file and submit to us, by April 30, a file-
stamped copy of IRS Form 4868 or 2688, as applicable, then within fifteen days after the final due
date for the return, but in no event later than October 30 of each year.
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10.4. Reports. You must, at your expense, submit to us in the form and manner
prescribed by us, such other forms, reports, records, information, and data as we may reasonably
designate. You must also provide to us by February 15 of each year your profit and loss statement,
and balance sheet statements, for the prior year.

11. INSPECTION OF RECORDS.

At all times during the term of this Agreement and for a period of three (3) years after a transfer
(defined in Section 14.2) or the termination or expiration of this Agreement, you must permit us
or our designated agents at all reasonable times to examine, at our expense and at such location as
we reasonably select, your books and records of account, bank statements, canceled checks, client
files, federal, state and local income, sales, excise and payroll tax returns, and any other
information or records pertaining to the Franchised Business (hereafter collectively referred to as
“Business Records”). You and your principals and employees will fully cooperate with our
agents in their conduct of an inspection. If, as a result of any inspection, we determine that you
have understated your Gross Revenues in any report submitted to us, then you must immediately
pay us, upon demand, the Royalty Fees payable on the amount of the understatement plus the
interest imposed by Section 4.9. If, as a result of any inspection, we determine that you understated
your Gross Revenues by three percent (3%) or more for any monthly period, or if an inspection is
prompted by your failure to maintain any record required to be maintained under this Agreement,
failure to timely submit any report or other information required by this Agreement, or failure to
cure a default within the applicable period specified in Section 15 then you also must: (i) reimburse
us for all costs and expenses of the inspection (including per diem charges for our employees,
travel expenses and reasonable accounting and attorney fees) , and (ii) within three (3) months
after our request, provide us with your income statements for the immediately preceding two-year
period, audited or reviewed (at our option) by an independent certified public accountant. If we
reasonably suspect that you have understated your Gross Revenues in any report, we may request
and you must promptly provide a copy of the complete federal income tax return for the previous
tax year, as filed with the Internal Revenue Service, of each principal of Franchisee. The foregoing
remedies are in addition to any other remedies we may have under this agreement or at law or in
equity. We have the right, at all times during the term of this Agreement and for a period of three
(3) years after a transfer (defined in Section 14.2) or the termination or expiration of this
Agreement, to have an independent audit made of your Business Records. The terms of this
paragraph will survive any transfer or the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

12. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION

12.1. Pre-Opening Digital Marketing. Before opening the Franchised Business, you
Itewill need to purchase from us a one-time search engine optimization (SEO) for your market, as
well as additional local digital marketing, on-going SEO and PPC and a minimum market spend
to support the launch of your business in the amount of $5,400. The Pre-Opening Marketing will
include initial market analysis, website implementation, initial creation and optimization of online
digital presence including but not limited to: local Google Business Profile, social media accounts,
online AdWords, press releases, Google Optimization, etc. and the first month of the local
advertising fees to support the launch of your business.
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12.2. Local Advertising Programs. Franchisee must actively advertise the Marks and
the System in the Territory. We require you to spend, monthly, at least $1,500 on local advertising
and marketing pursuant to our guidelines. You agree to spend a minimum of $600 per month in
our Digital Marketing Program. We may audit these expenditures to ensure compliance and may
charge you the difference in the event you do not spend the monthly minimum.

12.3. Approval Required. Alladvertising and promotion by you must be in such media
and of such type, format and other particulars as we may approve, must be conducted in a dignified
manner, and must conform to such standards and requirements as we may specify. You must not
use any advertising or promotional plans or materials unless and until you have received written
approval from us, pursuant to the procedures and terms set forth in Section 12.5 hereof.
Advertising and promotional materials requiring our approval includes advertising placed in any
media, including the Internet, and advertising displays or other printed or electronic materials that
you or your employees may use which contain any of the Marks, including business forms,
stationery, cards, and Internet websites.

12.4. Website. You specifically acknowledge and agree that a website is considered
“advertising” under this agreement and is subject to (among other things) our approval in
accordance with Section 12.3. In connection with any website, you agree to the following:

12.4.1. We have the right, but not the obligation, to establish and maintain a
website, which may promote the Marks, the System, any or all of the products and services offered
by a Franchised Business, franchised locations, and/or the offer and sale of Dog Wizard franchises.
You must use all websites relating to the Franchised Business required by us. We have the sole
right to control all aspects of the website, including its design, content, functionality, links to the
websites of third parties, legal notices, and policies and terms of usage, and all the expenses thereof
are payable out of the Fund under Section 12.3. We also have the right to discontinue the operation
of the website at any time in our sole discretion.

12.4.2. You may not directly or indirectly establish, maintain, or operate a separate
Dog Wizard website without our prior written consent. Any Dog Wizard website established,
maintained, or operated by you must contain a link to and from our website and we have the right
to require modifications of the content, appearance, and format of your Dog Wizard website. The
term “Dog Wizard website” means a website that displays any of the Marks or a significant amount
of the content of which relates to the Franchised Business, us, the System, or any business that
offers or sells products or services that compete with any products or services offered by Dog
Wizard franchises.

12.4.3. You may not, without our prior written consent, establish or permit or aid
any other person to establish any link to any website or any other electronic or computer-generated
advertising or communication arrangement that we may establish.

12.4.4. We have the right, but not the obligation, to designate one or more landing
page(s) to describe you, the Franchised Business, and/or your location, with such landing page(s)
to be located within our website, or to provide you with a separate Dog Wizard website for such
purposes. You must comply with our policies with respect to the creation, maintenance, and
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content of any such web pages, and we have the right to limit and/or discontinue the content and/or
operation of such website and landing pages.

12.4.5. In order to maintain the goodwill in the System and in the business of other

Franchised Businesses, we have the right to impose conditions and standards requirements on your
use of Electronic Distribution Channels, including any Dog Wizard website maintained by you,
including the following:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
v)

(vi)
(vii)

All rights to all domain names containing any of the Marks or relating to the
Franchised Business, any products and services offered by Franchised Businesses,
or any business that offers or sells products or services that compete with any
products or services offered by Franchised Businesses, may be owned only by us.
You may not register in your own name any domain name containing any of the
Marks or relating to the Franchised Business or any products and services offered
by Franchised Businesses.

In order to maintain the common identity of the System and the high-quality
standards associated therewith, you must obtain our prior written approval for any
domain name and for the form and content of any Dog Wizard website before you
use it on the Internet. Unless our prior written approval has been obtained, no
element of the Marks or similar words may be used as part of the domain name or
URL.

Any Dog Wizard website that you establish or maintain must contain a hyperlink
to our website and all other hyperlinks to third-party websites must be previously
approved in writing by us.

Any modifications to a Dog Wizard website established or maintained by you must
first be approved in writing by us.

Before establishing a Dog Wizard website, you must obtain appropriate legal
advice regarding the content and to ensure that the website complies with all
relevant legislation and regulations.

You must fully indemnify us against all claims arising out of any website
established or maintained by you.

You must comply fully with your terms and conditions of business over the Internet
and ensure that such terms and conditions of business receive our prior written
approval.

12.4.6. “Electronic Distribution Channels” include the Internet, World Wide

Web, websites (including any website established or maintained by us or you), URLS, domain
names, e-mail addresses, mobile applications, Internet listings, banners, advertisements, pop-up
ads, pay-per-click programs, and other services, pages, or links on or with the Internet, World
Wide Web, Internet service providers, electronic mail services, communication providers, search
engines, social media, web logs (or “blogs™), and similar services.
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12.4.7. You may not participate in or register with any Internet group, website or
similar medium which has as its aim (whether stated or not) or its effect the denigration of us or
the System.

12.4.8. You may not open an account or profile on a social media site relating to
the Franchised Business or using any of the Marks without our prior written consent, which may
be given subject to conditions, which include the grant to us of administrator rights and you editor
access only, and subject to your compliance with the provisions of the Manual relating to social
media sites.

12.4.9. You may not, without our prior written consent, redirect Internet traffic
from another domain name or URL to any Dog Wizard website established by you or any other
website containing any of the Marks or any content provided by us or relating to the Franchised
Business.

12.4.10. We have the right to modify the provisions of this section 12.4 as
we solely determine is necessary or appropriate for the best interests of the System.

12.5. Review of Materials. You must submit samples of all advertising and promotional
plans and materials to us for our approval (except with respect to prices to be charged) if such
plans and materials have not been prepared or previously approved by us. You must not use the
plans or materials until they have been approved by us. If written notice of disapproval is not
received by you within thirty (30) days of the date of our receipt of such samples or materials, you
will be permitted to use them. You must stop using any advertising disapproved by us immediately
upon notice.

12.6. Brand Fund. We have established a Brand Fund to support national advertising,
banner ads, social media, graphic packages, and multi-media development for franchisee use. You
are required to contribute 2% of Gross Revenues to the Brand Fund beginning when you sign up
your first client and accept payment. We reserve the right to adjust this amount in our sole
discretion. We use monies in the Brand Fund to conduct advertising using online, radio, television,
direct mail, billboards, print or other advertising. We may use local, regional, or national
advertising. We may produce advertising material in-house or though outside agencies. We are
not required to spend any amount on advertising in the area or territory where you will be located.

Franchisor owned outlets do not have to contribute to the Brand Fund, but may do so. We
administer the Brand Fund. The Fund is not audited. Unaudited financial statements of the Brand
Fund will be made available to you upon written request. If not all Brand Fund Fees are spent in
the fiscal year in which they accrue, we will carry over those fees and apply them to the next fiscal
year. We may use Brand Fund Fees to solicit new franchise sales.

13. INSURANCE

13.1. General. You must procure, before the commencement of any operations under
this Agreement, and must maintain in full force and effect at all times during the term of this
Agreement at your expense, an insurance policy or policies protecting you and us (including their
respective officers, directors, shareholders, agents, and employees) against any demand or claim
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in connection with the Franchised Business, as described below. Such policy or policies must be
written by a carrier with a minimum Best Rating of A unless specific approval is granted by us.

Coverage Amounts. Subject to changes in the Manual or other notice, before you begin operation
of your Franchised Business, you must obtain the following types of insurance at the stated
coverage amounts: We require that you purchase the following insurance from our designated
vendor, currently, Business Insurers of the Carolinas or an equivalent policy which must be
approved by us.

e Commercial General Liability Policy

eincluding property damage, bodily injury and death, premises and completed ops,
contractual & product liability coverage (Not less than $1m per occurrence/$2m
aggregate). To also include Care Custody or Control limit (also known as Animal Bailee
with minimum limit of $25,000;

eNon-Owned Automobile Liability

« At least $100,000; only if you have sub-contractors or employees that are driving vehicles
that are not owned and insured by the company.

- Professional Liability (Errors or Omissions).

e Minimum of $25,000 if your business gross revenue is $250,000 or less and you are a
single operator.

« Or a minimum of $100,000 if your business gross revenue is more than $250,000 or you
have subcontractors or employees

We require that you purchase the following insurance from a responsible carrier or carriers
acceptable to us, with a rating of at least “A” by Standard and Poor, Moody’s and A.M. Best, and
at present must include, at a minimum, the following unless a greater amount is required in your
state:

e Commercial Auto Insurance or Non-Owned Hired Auto Insurance with a minimum of
$500,000 Combine Single Limit.

e Employer’s Liability and Worker’s Compensation Insurance (as required by state and local
laws);

From time to time we may expand the insurance requirements and your coverage amounts. You
may also consider an optional Commercial Umbrella Liability Insurance with a minimum
coverage of $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Each policy, except workers’ compensation, must name us as an additional insured. All policies
must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in our favor and our subsidiaries, affiliates,
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successors and assigns and their respective directors, officers, shareholders, members, managers,
partners, employees, servants, representatives, independent contractors and associates.

You may, with our written consent, elect to have reasonable deductibles for the coverages
described in above.

Certificates of insurance must be sent in upon annual expiration date.

13.2. Independent Obligation. Your obligation to obtain and maintain the policy or
policies in the amounts specified in the Manual will not be limited in any way by reason of any
insurance which we may maintain, nor will your performance of that obligation relieve you of
liability under the indemnity provisions set forth in Section 19.4 of this Agreement. The
Commercial General Liability and Business Automobile policies will contain a contractual
coverage endorsement insuring your performance under such indemnity.

13.3.  Additional Insureds. All policies except Workers Compensation must contain a
provision that your insurance coverage is primary to any coverage maintained by us. Your
Commercial General Liability and Business Automobile policies must include a separation of
insured’s clause or endorsement, in a form acceptable to us and, unless otherwise permitted by us
in writing, all policies must name us, our servants, agents, and employees as additional insureds
and must expressly provide that these persons may recover under such policies on any loss
occasioned by us, our affiliates, or its servants, agents, or employees by reason of your negligence
or that of your servants, agents, or employees. Such policies must also provide that any interest
of ours, our servants, agents, and employees will not be affected by your breach of any policy
provisions.

13.4. Delivery of Certificates. Prior to the commencement of any operations under this
Agreement, and thereafter at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any policy, you must
deliver to us Certificates of Insurance evidencing the proper types and minimum amounts of
coverage. All Certificates must provide that no less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice must
be given to us in the event of material alteration to or cancellation of the coverages evidenced by
the Certificates.

13.5. Our Right to Procure. If you fail to procure or maintain the insurance required by
this Agreement, we will have the right and authority (but not the obligation) to procure or maintain
the insurance and to charge same to you. The charges, together with a reasonable fee for our
expenses in so acting, will be payable by you immediately upon notice. The foregoing remedies
will be in addition to any other remedies we may have.

14. TRANSFER OF INTEREST

14.1. Transfer by Us. We have the absolute right to sell, transfer, or assign our business,
in whole or in part, and whether by sale of assets or securities, or otherwise, this Agreement, the
System or the Marks to any person or legal entity, and such sale, transfer or assignment will
constitute a novation of this Agreement and any designated assignee of ours will become solely
responsible for all of our obligations under this Agreement from the date of transfer.
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14.2. Transfer by You. You understand and acknowledge that the rights and duties set
forth in this Agreement are personal to you, and that we have entered into this Agreement in
reliance on your (or, if you are a corporation or partnership, your principals’) business skill,
financial capacity, and personal character. Accordingly, neither you nor any immediate or remote
successor to any part of your interest in this Agreement, nor any individual, partnership,
corporation, or other legal entity which directly or indirectly owns any interest in you may sell,
assign, transfer, convey, pledge, encumber, merge, or give away (collectively, “transfer”),
directly, through any judicially mandated division or distribution of assets or otherwise, any direct
or indirect interest which individually or in the aggregate, when combined with any other transfer,
has the effect of transferring five percent (5%) or more of the outstanding interest in this
Agreement, in you, in the Franchised Business, or in all or substantially all of the assets of the
Franchised Business or you without our prior written consent. Our prior written consent to a
proposed transfer will not be unreasonably withheld for any transfer. Any purported assignment
or transfer not having our written consent will be null and void and will constitute a material breach
of this Agreement, for which we may immediately terminate without opportunity to cure pursuant
to Section 15.2.5 of this Agreement.

14.3. Notification and Approval. You must notify us in writing of any proposed
transfer of any direct or indirect interest which individually or in the aggregate, when combined
with any other transfer, has the effect of transferring five percent (5%) or more of the outstanding
interest in this Agreement, in you, in the Franchised Business, or in all or substantially all of the
assets of the Franchised Business at least thirty (30) days before such transfer is proposed to take
place. If any transfer which requires our consent, alone or together with other previous,
simultaneous, or proposed transfers, would have the effect of changing control of you (if you are
not an individual), this Agreement, or all or substantially all of the assets of the Franchised
Business, we may, in our sole discretion, require any or all of the following as conditions of its
approval:

14.3.1. That all of your accrued monetary obligations and all other outstanding
obligations to us and our affiliates have been satisfied;

14.3.2. That you are not in default of any provision of this Agreement, any
amendment of or successor to this Agreement, or any other material agreement between you and
us or our affiliates or with, among others, your landlord, mortgagee, bank, other lenders, or
suppliers, etc.;

14.3.3. That the transferor sign a general release, in a form satisfactory to us, of any
and all claims against us and our affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, shareholders,
member, agents, and employees;

14.3.4. That the transferee (and, if the transferee is other than an individual, such
owners of a beneficial interest in the transferee as we may request) enter into a written assignment,
in a form satisfactory to us, assuming and agreeing to discharge all of your obligations under this
Agreement; and, if the obligations of Franchisee were guaranteed by the transferor, that the
transferee guarantee the performance of all such obligations in writing in a form satisfactory to us;
or we may at our option require transferee to sign the then-current form of franchise agreement;
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14.3.5. That the transferee (and, if the transferee is other than an individual, such
owners of a beneficial interest in the transferee as we may request) demonstrate to our satisfaction
that it meets our educational, managerial, and business standards; possesses good moral character,
business reputation, and credit rating; has the aptitude and ability to operate the Franchised
Business (as may be evidenced by prior related business experience or otherwise), and has
adequate financial resources and capital inclusive of its obligations to you to operate the
Franchised Business in a fiscally responsible manner;

14.3.6. That the transferee, at its expense, update the equipment, signs, and any
materials used in the Franchise Business to reflect the then-current standards and image of the
System;

14.3.7. That you remain liable for all of the obligations to us in connection with the
Franchised Business which arose prior to the effective date of the transfer and sign any and all
instruments reasonably requested by us to evidence such liability;

14.3.8. That the transferee, at the transferee’s expense, successfully complete any
training programs then in effect upon such terms and conditions as we may reasonably require at
transferee’s expense; and

14.3.9. That you pay a transfer fee of $12,500. However, in the case of a transfer to
an entity controlled by you, to a member of your immediate family, to an individual employed by
you in connection with the Franchised Business for at least 12 consecutive months prior to such
transfer, or to another franchisee that has operated a Franchised Business for at least two (2) years,
the transfer fee paid to us shall only be $1,000.

14.4. No Security Interest. You must not grant a security interest in the Franchised
Business or in any of the assets of the Franchised Business unless the secured party agrees that in
the event of any default by you under any documents related to the security interest, we will have
the right and option (but not the obligation) to be substituted as obligor to the secured party and to
cure any of your defaults, and if we exercise such option, any acceleration of indebtedness due to
your default will be void. You agree to fully indemnify us from any and all costs or damages
including attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by us in curing any of your defaults. You and any
such secured party must comply with applicable terms of this Section 14.

14.4.1. You must not agree to grant any security interest or other lien or
encumbrance in the System, the Marks or any other confidential or proprietary property or
information of ours and any attempt to grant such an interest will constitute a breach of this
Agreement and will be deemed to be void and of no force and effect. You agree to fully indemnify
us for any costs or damages including attorneys’ fees, other professional or expert fees, and costs,
incurred by us in bringing any action to invalidate or attempt to invalidate any security interest or
other lien or encumbrance purported to have been granted by you relating to any confidential or
proprietary information or property of ours.

14.5. Death or Incapacity. Upon the death or mental incapacity of any person with an
interest in this Agreement, in you (if you are not an individual), in the Franchised Business, or in
all or substantially all of the assets of the Franchised Business:
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14.5.1. The executor, administrator, or personal representative of such person must
transfer such interest to a third party approved by us within six (6) months after such death or
mental incapacity. Such transfers, including transfers by devise or inheritance, will be subject to
the conditions in Section 14.3. In the case of transfer by devise or inheritance, if the heirs or
beneficiaries of any such person are unable to meet the conditions in this Section 143, the executor,
administrator, or personal representative of the decedent must transfer the decedent’s interest to
another party approved by us within a reasonable time, which disposition will be subject to all the
terms and conditions for transfers contained in this Agreement. If the interest is not disposed of
within a reasonable time, we may terminate this Agreement, pursuant to Section 15.2.6 hereof.
Any transfer subject to this section which is made in accordance with a succession plan approved
in advance by us will be deemed approved for the purposes of this Section 14.5.1. We will not
unreasonably withhold any approvals required by this Section 14.5;

14.5.2. We will have the right to take such steps as are necessary to manage the
Franchised Business for your account until such time as a transfer can be completed pursuant to
Section 14.5.1. You further grant us the right to receive a fee of $500 per day for such services
and reimbursement for its expenses in connection with such services.

15. TERMINATION

15.1. Termination without Notice. You will be deemed to be in default under this
Agreement, and all rights granted to you will automatically terminate without notice to you, if you
become insolvent (either by virtue of having an excess of liabilities over assets or the inability to
meet your obligations as they become due in the ordinary course of business).

15.2. Termination with Notice and No Opportunity to Cure. Upon the occurrence of
any of the following events of default, we may, at our option, terminate this Agreement and all
rights granted hereunder, without affording you any opportunity to cure the default, effective
immediately upon your receipt of notice:

15.2.1. If you fail to successfully complete the required initial training program(s)
to our satisfaction or begin operation of the Franchised Business within 6 months of the Execution
Date;

15.2.2. If you cease to operate or otherwise abandon the Franchised Business or
otherwise forfeit the right to do or transact business in the jurisdiction where the Franchised
Business is located,;

15.2.3. If you are convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor carrying a jail term (but
not an infraction), a crime involving moral turpitude, or any other crime or offense that we believe
is reasonably likely to have an adverse effect on the System, the Marks, the goodwill associated
therewith, or our interest therein;

15.2.4. If a threat or danger to public health or safety or to the health or safety of
any animal under your supervision or care results from your operation of the Franchised Business;
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15.2.5. If any purported assignment or transfer of any direct or indirect interest in
this Agreement, in you (if you are not an individual), or in all or substantially all of the assets of
the Franchised Business is made to any third party without our prior written consent, contrary to
the terms of Section 14;

15.2.6. If an approved transfer is not effected within the time provided following
death or mental incapacity;

15.2.7. If you fail to comply with the covenants in Section 17.2 or fail to obtain
execution of the covenants required under Sections 8.2, 9.2 or 17.6;

15.2.8. If, contrary to the terms of Sections 8 or 9, you disclose or divulge the
contents of the Manual or other Confidential Information provided to you;

15.2.9. If you misuse or make any unauthorized use of the Marks or any other
identifying characteristics of the System, fail to adhere to our guidelines regarding use and display
of your name and the Marks, or otherwise materially impair the goodwill associated therewith or
our rights therein;

15.2.10. If you refuse to permit us to inspect the Franchised Business or your
books, records, or accounts upon demand;

15.2.11. If you, upon receiving a notice of default fail to initiate immediately a
remedy to cure such default; or

15.2.12. If you commit three or more breaches of this Agreement in any twelve
(12) month period, whether or not any such default is cured after notice.

15.3. Termination with Notice and Opportunity to Cure. Except as otherwise
provided in Sections 15.1 and 15.2 of this Agreement, you will have thirty (30) days after your
receipt from us of a written notice of default within which to remedy any default under this
Agreement and to provide evidence thereof to us, or there is a 90-day cure period for failure to
meet Minimum Requirements. You may avoid termination by immediately initiating a remedy to
cure such default and curing it to our satisfaction within the thirty-day period, and by promptly
providing proof thereof to us. If any such default is not cured within the specified time, or such
longer period as applicable law may require, this Agreement will terminate without further notice
to you, effective immediately upon the expiration of the thirty-day period or such longer period as
applicable law may require. You will be in default pursuant to this Section 15.3 for failure
substantially to comply with any of the requirements imposed by this Agreement, as it may from
time to time reasonably be supplemented by the Manual, or failure to carry out the terms of this
Agreement in good faith.

16. OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION

Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, all rights granted hereunder to you will
terminate immediately, and:
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16.1. You must immediately cease to, and must not thereafter, directly or indirectly,
represent to the public or hold yourself out as a present or former franchisee of ours.

16.2.  You must immediately and permanently stop using, in any manner whatsoever, any
confidential methods, procedures, and techniques associated with the System; the Proprietary
Programs; the Mark “THE DOG WIZARD” and all other Marks and distinctive forms, slogans,
signs, symbols, and devices associated with the System. In particular, you must stop using all
telephone numbers, signs, advertising materials, websites or web pages, displays, stationery,
forms, products, and any other articles which display the Marks.

16.3. You must take such action as may be necessary to cancel any assumed name
registration or equivalent registration obtained by you which contains the mark “THE DOG
WIZARD” or any other Marks, and you must furnish us with evidence satisfactory to us of
compliance with this obligation within five (5) days after termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

16.4. You agree, if you continue to operate or subsequently begin to operate any other
business, not to use any reproduction, counterfeit, copy, or colorable imitation of the Marks, either
in connection with such other business or the promotion thereof, which, in our sole discretion, is
likely to cause confusion, mistake, or deception, or which, in our sole opinion, is likely to dilute
our rights in and to the Marks. You further agree not to utilize any designation of origin or
description or representation which, in our sole opinion, falsely suggests or represents an
association or connection with us.

16.5. You must promptly pay all sums owing to us and our affiliates, including any Early
Termination Fee required by Section 4.4. In the event of termination for any default by you, such
sums will include all damages, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred
by us as a result of the default.

16.6. You must immediately deliver to us the Manual and all other records,
correspondence, and instructions containing confidential information relating to the operation of
the Franchised Business, all of which are acknowledged to be our property, and may retain no
copy or record of any of the foregoing, with the exception of your copy of this Agreement, any
correspondence between the parties, and any of the documents which you reasonably need for
compliance with any provision of law.

17. COVENANTS

17.1. Best Efforts. You covenant that, during the term of this Agreement, except as
otherwise approved in writing by us, you must devote your full time and best efforts to the
management and operation of the Franchised Business.

17.2. Non-Compete And No Solicitation.

17.2.1. Non-Compete In-Term. You will not, during the Term of this
Agreement, in the United States or its territories, directly or indirectly, offer or engage in dog
training services except in the provision of such services through the Franchised Business.
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17.2.2. Non-Compete Post-Term.  You will not, for a period of two years after
the termination (for any reason), assignment by you, or expiration of this Agreement, in the
Territory or within thirty (30) miles of the boundaries of the Territory or any another territory
franchised by us and in operation at that time, directly or indirectly, for a fee or charge, offer or
engage in dog training services.

17.2.3. No Solicitation of Customers. You will not, for a period of two years after
the termination (for any reason), assignment by you, or expiration of this Agreement, in the
Territory or within thirty (30) miles of the boundaries of the Territory, directly or indirectly solicit
the patronage of any client served by your prior Franchised Business during the last 24 months
that you were a franchisee, or such shorter time as you were a franchisee, for the purpose of
offering such person or entity, for a fee or charge, dog training services.

17.3.  Waiver of Bond. You agree that if we bring suit to enforce Sections 17.2 above,
you agree to waive any requirement that we post bond to obtain a temporary, preliminary, or
permanent injunction to enforce these duties.

17.4. Severability. If any covenant or provision of Section 17 is determined to be void
or unenforceable, in whole or in part, it shall be deemed severed and removed from this Agreement
and shall not affect or impair the validity of any other covenant or provision. Further, these
obligations are considered independent of any other provision in this Agreement and the existence
of any claim or cause of action by either party to this Agreement against the other, whether based
upon this agreement or otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the enforcement of these
obligations.

17.5. Your Claims No Defense. You agree that the existence of any claims you may
have against us, whether or not arising from this Agreement, will not constitute a defense to our
enforcement of the covenants in this Section 17.

17.6. Execution of Individual Covenants. You must obtain and furnish to us signed
covenants similar in substance to those set forth in Section 17.2 of this Agreement from the
following persons: (a) all of your officers, directors, and holders of a beneficial interest of five
percent (5%) or more of the securities of you, and of any corporation directly or indirectly
controlling, controlled by, or under common control with you, if you are a corporation; (b) the
general partners and any limited partners (including any corporation, and the officers, directors,
and holders of a beneficial interest of one percent (1%) or more of the securities of any corporation
which controls, directly or indirectly, any general or limited partner), if you are a partnership; and
(c) all members and managers of you if you are a limited liability company. Every covenant
required by this Section will be in the form provided as Schedule 3 of this Agreement.

17.7. Eaquitable Relief. You acknowledge that any failure to comply with the
requirements of this Section will cause us irreparable injury, for which no adequate remedy at law
may be available. You also acknowledge that our ability to obtain equitable relief on a System-
wide basis for breaches by franchisees of non-disclosure and non-competition covenants benefits
you by enabling us to defend and protect the distinctiveness of the System. Accordingly, you
consent to the issuance of an order of specific performance, temporary restraining order, or
preliminary or permanent injunction against violation by you of the covenants.
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17.8. FEreedom to Contract. You represent and warrant that neither you nor any of your
principals are, at the time of signing this Agreement, subject to any non-compete, non-disclosure,
non-circumvent, non-solicitation, confidentiality or other agreement which would restrict or limit
your or such principal’s ability to participate in the ownership or operation of the Franchised
Business. You further represent and warrant that neither you nor any of your principals will be in
breach of any such non-compete, non-disclosure, non-circumvent, non-solicitation, confidentiality
or other agreement as a result of entering into this Agreement or participating in the ownership or
operation of the Franchised Business.

18. TAXES, PERMITS, AND INDEBTEDNESS

18.1. Payment of Taxes. You must promptly pay when due all taxes levied or assessed,
including unemployment and sales taxes, and all accounts and other indebtedness of every kind
incurred by you in the operation of the Franchised Business.

18.2. Compliance with Laws. You are solely responsible for complying with all federal,
state, and local laws, rules, and regulations, and must timely obtain any and all permits, certificates,
or licenses necessary for the full and proper conduct of the Franchised Business, including licenses
to do business, fictitious name registrations, sales tax permits and all requisite trade, business,
occupational or professional licenses.

18.3. Natification of Suits. You must immediately notify us in writing of the
commencement of any action, suit, or proceeding, and of the issuance of any order, writ,
injunction, award, or decree of any court, agency, or other governmental instrumentality, which
may adversely affect the operation or financial condition of the Franchised Business.

19. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND INDEMNIFICATION

19.1. Independent Contractor. It is understood and agreed by the parties that this
Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship between them, that you must be an independent
contractor, and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to constitute either party an agent, legal
representative, subsidiary, joint venture, partner, employer, employee, or servant of the other for
any purpose whatsoever.

19.2. Communication of Status to Consumers. During the term of this Agreement,
you must hold yourself out to the public as an independent contractor operating the Franchised
Business pursuant to a franchise agreement from us. You agree to take such action as may be
necessary to do so, including exhibiting a notice of that fact, the content and location of which we
reserves the right to specify. Such notice must specify that we are not the owner of the Franchised
Business.

19.3. Losses and Expenses. As used in this Section 19, the phrase “losses and
expenses” Wwill include, without limitation, all losses, compensatory, exemplary or punitive
damages, fines, charges, costs, lost profits, attorneys’ fees, accountants’ fees, expert witness fees,
expenses, settlement amounts, judgments, compensation for damages to our reputation and
goodwill, costs of or resulting from delays, financing, costs of advertising material and media
time/space, and costs of changing, substituting or replacing the same, and any and all expenses of
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refunds, compensation and other such amounts incurred in connection with the matters described
in this section.

19.4. Indemnification. You must, at all times, indemnify and hold harmless to the fullest
extent permitted by law us, our corporate affiliates, successors and assigns and the respective
directors, officers, employees, agents and representatives of each (collectively, the
“Indemnitees™) from all losses and expenses incurred in connection with any action, suit,
proceeding, claim, demand, investigation or inquiry (formal or informal), or any settlement thereof
(whether or not a formal proceeding or action has been instituted) which arises out of or is based
upon any of the following:

19.4.1. Your (or your principals’) violation, breach, liability or asserted violation
of breach of or liability under any contract, federal, state or local law, regulation, rule, order,
standard or directive;

19.4.2. Libel, slander or any other form of defamation by you;

19.4.3. Your violation or breach of any warranty, representation, or other term or
provision of this Agreement; and

19.4.4. Acts, errors or omissions of yours or any of your agents, servants,
employees, contractors, partners, affiliates or representatives.

19.5. Notification of Claims. You must promptly notify us of any action, suit,
proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation as described in Section 19.4. If any
Indemnitees are or may be named as a party in any such action, we may elect to undertake the
defense and/or settlement thereof. No such undertaking by us will diminish your obligation to
indemnify the Indemnitees and to hold each of them harmless.

19.6. Resolution of Claims. With respect to any action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand,
inquiry or investigation, we may, at any time and without notice, in order to protect persons or
property or our reputation or goodwill or others, order, consent or agree to any settlement or take
any remedial or corrective action as we deem expedient, if, in our sole judgment, there are
reasonable grounds to believe that:

19.6.1. Any of the acts or circumstances enumerated in Section 19.4 have occurred;
or

19.6.2. Any act, error, or omission of yours may result directly or indirectly in
damage, injury or harm to any person or any property.

19.7. Payment. All losses and expenses incurred under this Section 19 will be
chargeable to and paid by you pursuant to your obligations of indemnity hereunder, regardless of
any actions, activity or defense undertaken by us or the subsequent success or failure of such
actions, activity or defense.

20. APPROVALS AND WAIVERS
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20.1. Approvals. Whenever this Agreement requires our prior approval or consent, you
must make a timely written request to us therefor. Such approval or consent must be obtained in
a writing signed by an authorized officer of ours.

20.2. No Warranties. We make no warranties or guarantees upon which you may rely,
and assume no liability or obligation to you, by providing any waiver, approval, consent, or
suggestion to Franchisee in connection with this Agreement, or by reason of any neglect, delay, or
denial of any request therefor. Nothing in this Section 20.2 will be deemed to disclaim, or to waive
your reliance on, any statements made in the disclosure document required or authorized by the
Trade Regulation Rule of the Federal Trade Commission entitled “Disclosure Requirements and
Prohibitions Concerning Franchising.”

20.3. No Waiver. No failure of ours to exercise any power reserved to us by this
Agreement, or to insist upon strict compliance by you with respect to any obligation or condition
hereunder, and no custom or practice of the parties at variance with the terms hereof, will constitute
a waiver of our right to demand exact compliance with any of the terms hereof.

21. NOTICES

Any and all notices required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and
must be personally delivered, sent by registered or certified mail, or sent by overnight courier (such
as UPS, FedEx or other similar service) which affords the sender evidence of delivery or attempted
delivery, to the respective parties at the following addresses, unless and until a different address
has been designated by written notice to the other party:

Notices to Franchisor:

ITK9 Franchise, LLC
4170 Pearl Road
Medina, OH 44256
Attn: Grant Reeves

Notices to Franchisee: at the address indicated below you signature on the Declarations Page or
such other more current address as we may have for you, or by e-mail.

Any notice by a means which affords the sender evidence of delivery or attempted delivery

will be deemed to have been given and received at the date and time of receipt or attempted
delivery.

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, the Declarations Page, the attachments, and the documents referred to
herein constitute the entire Agreement between us and you concerning the subject matter hereof,
and supersedes any prior agreements, no other representations, warranties, or promises having
induced you to sign this Agreement. Nothing in this or in any related agreement, however, is
intended to disclaim the representations we made in the franchise disclosure document that we
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furnished to you. Except for those permitted to be made unilaterally by us hereunder, no
amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement will be binding on either party unless
mutually agreed to by the parties and signed by their authorized officers or agents in writing.

23. SEVERABILITY AND CONSTRUCTION

23.1. Severability. If any section, part, term, provision, and/or covenant herein is
determined to be invalid and contrary to, or in conflict with, any existing or future law or
regulation, by a court, that determination will not impair the operation of, or have any other effect
upon, any other portions, sections, parts, terms, provisions, and/or covenants of this Agreement as
may remain otherwise intelligible; and the latter will continue to be given full force and effect and
bind the parties hereto; and the invalid portions, sections, parts, terms, provisions, and/or covenants
will be deemed not to be a part of this Agreement.

23.2. Survival. Any provision or covenant of this Agreement which expressly or by its
nature imposes obligations beyond the expiration or termination of this Agreement (whether
termination is by Franchisor or Franchisee, and regardless of cause) will survive expiration or
termination, including, but not limited to, Sections 8, 9, 17, and 24.

23.3. No Third Party Beneficiary. Except as provided to the contrary herein, nothing
in this Agreement is intended, nor will be deemed, to confer upon any person or legal entity other
than you, us, our officers, directors, shareholders, agents and employees, and such of our
successors and assigns as may be contemplated by Section 14 hereof, any rights or remedies under
or by reason of this Agreement.

23.4. Reduction of Covenants. You agree to be bound by any promise or covenant
imposing the maximum duty permitted by law which is subsumed within the terms of any
provision hereof, as though it were separately articulated in and made a part of this Agreement,
that may result from striking from any of the provisions hereof any portion or portions a court may
hold to be unreasonable and unenforceable in an unappealed final decision to which we are a party,
or from reducing the scope of any promise or covenant to the extent required to comply with such
a court order.

23.5. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in any number of counterparts, each
of which when so signed and delivered will be deemed an original, but such counterparts together
will constitute one and the same instrument.

24, APPLICABLE LAW; DISPUTE RESOLUTION

24.1. Applicable Law. This Agreement is effective upon its acceptance in Ohio by our
authorized officer. Except as to claims governed by federal law, Ohio law governs all claims that
in any way relate to or arise out of this Agreement or any of the dealings of the parties (“Claims”).
However, no laws regulating the sale of franchises or governing the relationship between
franchisor and franchisee shall apply unless the jurisdictional requirements of such laws are met
independently of this paragraph.
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24.2. Jurisdiction and Venue. You and we agree that venue and jurisdiction for any
Claims shall be proper solely in the state and federal court nearest to our corporate headquarters,
presently located in Medina, Ohio.

24.3. Jury Waiver. Inany trial between any of the parties as to any Claims, you and we
agree to waive our rights to a jury trial and instead have such action tried by a judge.

24.4. Class Action Waiver. You agree to bring any Claims, if at all, individually and
you shall not join such claim with claims of any other persons or entity or bring, join or participate
in a class action against us.

24.5 Punitive Damages Waiver. As to any Claims, you and we agree to waive our
rights, if any, to seek or recover punitive damages.

24.6 Limitation of Actions. You agree to bring any Claims against us, if at all, within
one (1) year of the occurrence of the facts giving rise to such Claims, and that any action not
brought within this period shall be barred as a claim, counterclaim, defense, or set-off.

24.7  Prior Notice of Claims. As a condition precedent to commencing an action for a
Claim, you must notify us within thirty (30) days after the occurrence of the violation or breach, and
failure to timely give such notice shall preclude any claim for damages.

24.8 Internal Dispute Resolution. You must first bring any Claim to our CEO, after
providing notice as set forth in Section 24.7 above. You must exhaust this internal dispute resolution
procedure before you may bring your Claim before a third party.

24.9 Mediation. Before you may bring any Claim against us in court, you agree to try for
a period of 60 days to mediate such claim before a mutually agreed to mediator in the city or county
where our headquarters are located. If we cannot mutually agree on a mediator, you and we agree to
use the mediation services of the American Arbitration Association (“AAA”), and split any AAA and
mediator fees equally.

24.10 Waiver of bond. You agree that if we are forced to sue to enforce any provision of
this Agreement, you agree to waive any requirement that we post bond to obtain a temporary,
preliminary, or permanent injunction to enforce these duties.

24.11 Third Party Beneficiaries. Our officers, directors, members, shareholders, agents,
and employees are express third party beneficiaries of the terms of the Applicable Law; Dispute
Resolution provisions contained herein.

24.12 Costs and Attorney Fees. If we are the substantially prevailing party as to any
Claims, you agree to reimburse us for all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees
incurred in prosecuting or defending such litigation.

25. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

25.1. You acknowledge that you have conducted an independent investigation of the
business franchised hereunder, and recognize that the business venture contemplated by this
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Agreement involves business risks and that its success will be largely dependent upon your ability
(or, if you are a corporation, partnership or limited liability company, the ability of your principals)
as an independent businessperson. We expressly disclaim the making of, and you acknowledge
that you have not received from us, any indication, promise, warranty or guarantee, express or
implied, as to the potential volume, profits, or success of the business venture contemplated by
this Agreement.

25.2. You acknowledge that you received a complete copy of this Agreement, the
attachments hereto, and agreements relating thereto, at least seven (7) days prior to the date on
which this Agreement was signed. You further acknowledge that you received a disclosure
document required or authorized by the Trade Regulation Rule of the Federal Trade Commission
entitled “Disclosure Requirements and Prohibitions Concerning Franchising” at least fourteen (14)
days prior to the date on which this Agreement was signed or as otherwise required by applicable
state law.

25.3. You acknowledge that you have read and understood this Agreement, the
attachments hereto, and agreements relating thereto, as well as the aforesaid disclosure document
and that we have afforded you ample time and opportunity to consult with advisors of your own
choosing about the potential benefits and risks of entering into this Agreement and that, in fact,
you have so consulted with professional advisors about such subject matter.

25.4. You acknowledge and agree that we may delegate any right or obligation of ours
under this Agreement to such third party as we may designate. You further acknowledge that: (i)
the terms “Franchisor,” “we” or “us” as used in this Agreement will refer only to ITK9 Franchise,
LLC and not our parent or affiliates, if any; (ii) we are not authorized to contract for or on behalf
of its parent or any of its affiliates, if any; and (iii) this Agreement will not be deemed to bind or
otherwise restrict our parent or any of its affiliates, if any.

34



SCHEDULE 1
TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

OWNERSHIP OF FRANCHISEE

Name and Address

Type of Interest
(i.e., limited partner, general
partner, member, or
shareholder)

Percentage of Total
Ownership Interest




SCHEDULE 2
TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

TERRITORY

The Territory consists of the following Postal ZIP Codes located in the State of




SCHEDULE 3
TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

NON-DISCLOSURE AND NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

IN CONSIDERATION of my employment or other relationship with
, a Franchisee of ITK9 Franchise, LLC (“Franchisee”), with its principal place of
business at , | hereby agree with Franchisor as follows:

| recognize that through my employment or other relationship with Franchisee | will
receive valuable, specialized training and confidential information, including, without limitation,
information regarding the operational, sales, promotional, and marketing methods and techniques
of Franchisor and its Franchise System. While | am employed by or otherwise have a relationship
with Franchisee or at any time thereafter, | promise not to communicate, divulge, or use for the
benefit of any other person, partnership, association, or corporation any confidential information,
business processes, trade secrets, knowledge, know-how, including but not limited to the
Franchisor’s Operations Manual, or patents applied for concerning the methods of operation of a
THE DOG WIZARD Franchised Business which may be communicated to me or of which | may
be apprised by virtue of my affiliation with Franchisee. | understand that all information,
knowledge, know-how, techniques, and other data which Franchisor designates as confidential
will be deemed confidential for purposes of this Agreement. Also, | covenant that during the term
of my employment or other relationship with Franchisee and for a period of TWO YEARS
thereafter, except as otherwise approved in writing by Franchisor, | will not, either directly or
indirectly, for myself, or through, on behalf of, or in conjunction with any person or legal entity:

@ Divert or attempt to divert any present or prospective business or customer of any
franchisee of Franchisor to any competitor, by direct or indirect inducement or otherwise, or do or
perform, directly or indirectly, any other act injurious or prejudicial to the goodwill associated
with Franchisor’s Marks and its Franchise System;

(b) Employ or seek to employ any person who is at that time employed by Franchisor
or by any other franchisee of Franchisor, or otherwise directly or indirectly induce such person to
leave his or her employment; or

(© Except for my ownership of a less than five percent (5%) beneficial interest in the
outstanding equity securities of any publicly held corporation, I will not own, maintain, operate,
provide material assistance to, or have any interest in (as owner or otherwise) any dog training
business which is located or operates in substantial part within the city or county in which
Franchisee operates.

I understand and acknowledge that Franchisor will have the right, in its sole discretion, to
reduce the scope of any covenant set forth in this Agreement, or any portion hereof, without
Franchisee’s or my consent, and | agree to comply immediately with any covenant as so modified.



| further agree that if a court of competent jurisdiction finally determines this Covenant to
be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the Covenant will be deemed restricted in application to the
extent required to render it valid under applicable law.

| acknowledge and agree that the Franchisor, ITK9 Franchise, LLC, has third party
beneficiary rights to enforce the terms of this Agreement. 1 acknowledge that any failure to comply
with the requirements of this Agreement will cause Franchisor irreparable injury, for which no
adequate remedy at law may be available.

I understand that notwithstanding any Ohio choice or conflict of laws rules to the contrary,
this Covenant will be interpreted and enforced in accordance with the substantive laws of the State
of Ohio. For the purpose of any suit, action, or proceeding arising out of this Covenant, | submit
to the jurisdiction of the state and federal courts in the jurisdiction in which Franchisor maintains
its principal place of business and waive any objections or defenses | may have based on improper
venue, lack of personal jurisdiction, inconvenience of forum or any similar matter.

Accepted this __ day of , 20

Employee:

Signature

Printed Name

Franchisee:

Signature

Printed Name



SCHEDULE 4
TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

GUARANTEE, INDEMNIFICATION, AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

As an inducement to ITK9 Franchise, LLC (“Franchisor”) to sign the Franchise
Agreement  between  Franchisor  and : a
(“Franchisee”) dated , 20 (the “Agreement”), the
undersigned, jointly and severally, hereby unconditionally guarantee to Franchisor and its
successors and assigns that all of Franchisee’s obligations under the Agreement and any
extensions, renewals, amendments, and modifications thereof, will be punctually paid and
performed.

Upon demand by Franchisor, the undersigned will immediately make each payment and
perform each obligation required of Franchisee under the Agreement, including but not limited to
Sections 4 (Fees), 6 (Your Duties), 9 (Confidential Information), 16 (Obligations Upon
Termination or Expiration), 17 (Covenants), 18 (Taxes, Permits, and Indebtedness), 19
(Indemnification), and 24 (Applicable Law and Dispute Resolution). The undersigned hereby
waive any right to require Franchisor to: (a) proceed against Franchisee for any payment required
under the Agreement; (b) proceed against or exhaust any security from Franchisee; or (c) pursue
or exhaust any remedy, including any legal or equitable relief, against Franchisee. All choices
relating to the enforcement of the Agreement will be made in the Franchisor’s unfettered
discretion. Without affecting the obligations of the undersigned under this Guarantee, Franchisor
may, without notice to the undersigned, extend, modify, or release any indebtedness or obligation
of Franchisee, or settle, adjust, or compromise any claims against Franchisee. The undersigned
waive notice of amendment of the Agreement and notice of demand for payment by Franchisee,
and agree to be bound by any such amendments and changes to the Agreement.

The undersigned hereby agree to defend, indemnify, and hold Franchisor harmless against
any and all losses, damages, liabilities, costs, and expenses (including, but not limited to,
reasonable attorneys’ fees, accountants’ fees, fees for other required professional, expert or
specialized services, reasonable costs of investigation, court costs, and arbitration fees and
expenses) resulting from, consisting of, or arising out of or in connection with any failure by
Franchisee to pay or perform any obligation of Franchisee under the Agreement, any amendment
thereto, or any other agreement signed by Franchisee referred to therein, as well as enforcement
of this Guarantee. The undersigned agrees to provide Franchisor with such financial statements
and other information as Franchisor may request, all of which the undersigned represent and
warrant will be true, correct, and complete.

This Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgment will terminate upon the
termination or expiration of the Agreement, or any extensions, renewals, amendments, and
modifications thereof, except that all obligations and liabilities of the undersigned which arose
from events which occurred on or before the effective date of such termination will remain in full
force and effect until satisfied or discharged by the undersigned, and all covenants which by their
terms continue in force after the expiration or termination of the Agreement will remain in force
according to their terms. Upon the death of an individual guarantor, the estate of such guarantor



will be bound by this Guarantee, but only for defaults and obligations hereunder existing at the
time of death; and the obligations of the other guarantors will continue in full force and effect.

This Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgment, will be interpreted and construed
under the laws of the State of Ohio, notwithstanding any Ohio choice of law rule to the contrary.
If, however, any provision of this Agreement would not be enforceable under the laws of the State
of Ohio, and if the Franchised Business is located outside of the State of Ohio and such provision
would be enforceable under the laws of the state in which the Franchised Business is located, then
such provision will be interpreted and construed under the laws of that state. Nothing in this
Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgment is intended by the parties to subject this
Agreement to any franchise, business opportunity, or similar statute, rule, or regulation of the State
of Ohio to which it would not otherwise be subject.

All notices required or permitted under this Guarantee must be in writing and must be
personally delivered, sent by certified mail, or sent by any other means (including, without
limitation, overnight courier service such as UPS, FedEx or a similar service), which affords the
sender evidence of delivery or attempted delivery to the following addresses unless and until a
different address has been designated by written notice to the other party:

Notices to Franchisor: ITK9 Franchise, LLC
4170 Pearl Road
Medina, OH 44256
Attn: Grant Reeves

Notices to Guarantor(s):

Attn:

Any notice by a method which affords the sender evidence of delivery or attempted
delivery will be deemed to have been given at the date and time of receipt or attempted delivery.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has signed this Guarantee as of the
date of the Agreement.

GUARANTORS




SCHEDULE 5
TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

ACH Authorization Form

DEBIT/CREDIT AUTHORIZATION FORM

I (we) hereby authorize ITK9 Franchise, LLC and The Financial Institution to initiate
debit(s)/credit(s) to my (our) checking/savings accounts at the financial institution listed below
(THE FINANCIAL INSTITUTION), in accordance with the terms of my franchise agreement,
and, if necessary, initiate adjustments for any transactions credited/debited in error.

This authority will remain in effect until I notify either ITK9 Franchise, LLC or The Financial
Institution in writing to cancel it in such time as to afford a reasonable opportunity to act on such
instructions. | can stop payment of any entry by notifying The Financial Institution at least 3 days
before my account is scheduled to be charged. | can have the amount of an erroneous charge
immediately credited to my account for up to 15 days following issuance of my statement by the
above-referenced financial institution or up to 60 days after deposit, whichever occurs first.

(Name of Financial Institution)

(Address of Financial Institution — Branch, City, State, & Zip)

(Signature) (Date)

(Name — PLEASE PRINT)

(Address — PLEASE PRINT)

Financial Institution Routing Number:

Checking/Savings Account Number:
On your check:

t‘! Nationwide" 123
YOUR MHAME DaTE

1234 Main reet

Anywhere, OH 00C00

PAY TO THE %
CRDER ©F

sOoLL0D 723 2L II:DDDLE}LEE?EqII L | 1

I
ACCOUNT CHECK
NUMBER NUMBER

ITK9 Franchise, LLC — 4170 Pearl Road, OH 44256
T. (877) 585-9727 F. (877) 585-9727



SCHEDULE 6

TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

CODE OF CONDUCT
(Rules, Standards, Procedures, and Code of Conduct)

Code of Conduct

All personnel representing the franchised business are subject to dismissal for any violation of the Code of
Conduct outlined below. The Dog Wizard shall utilize a fair and equitable process in reviewing an alleged
violation and shall discipline in a manner appropriate given the alleged violation. The determination and
ruling that is the result of any of the below violations will be at the sole discretion of The Dog Wizard.

The Dog Wizard Code of Conduct policy includes but is not limited to the following:

1.

© oo N GA WD

el
= o

12.
13.
14.
15.

16.
17.

18.

19.

20.

Initials:

I will not leave a dog in a car unattended without monitoring devices designated to keep the doors locked,
with the temperature controlled and safe.

I will not leave a dog in a car unless it is climate-controlled, and a remote monitoring system is active.

I will have water available to every dog in a crate at all times.

When transporting a dog, | will keep them in a kennel

I will not withhold food from a dog

I will keep dogs in appropriately sized crates

I will only use brands of crates that have been approved by The Dog Wizard

I will only accept dogs in a healthy body condition for boarding and training

I will not take any inappropriate risk with any client’s dog before the dog is deemed to be ready for off-leash.

. I'will not leave any client’s dog unattended outside of a crate (including your house, fenced in yard, and car).
. 1 will wear the designated Dog Wizard branded apparel during anytime | am conducting business on behalf

of the Company.

I will only utilize Dog Wizard approved training tools.

I will not abuse, misuse, destruct, negligently use The Dog Wizard equipment, facilities, supplies or records
I will not have an inappropriate relationship with any attendee, employee, or client.

I will not park my logoed vehicle outside of any establishment that we determine could cause harm to our
brand reputation.

Failure to report injury, accident, or unsafe conditions immediately to a supervisor or The Dog Wizard

I will not use words or take actions that create, or have the potential to create, an unsafe or hostile environment
for other attendees, staff, or clients.

I will not take any offensive and/or aggressive acts (including those that could also constitute criminal acts
such as assault or theft), discrimination, boundary violations, or working while under the influence of any
substance that would damage The Dog Wizard reputation and the public’s trust during work hours.

I will be forthcoming with all client updates and strive to meet all client expectations.

I will be on time for all classes and appointments and will not cancel unless it is an emergency.

The Dog Wizard reserves the right to amend this Code of Conduct at any time in the future.

Franchisee/Employee ITK9 Franchise, LLC

Franchisee/Employee



SCHEDULE 7
TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

STATE ADDENDA TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

1 Sections 15.1, 15.2, and 15.3 are deleted and in their place are substituted the following:

15.2  Termination by Us Without Right to Cure. We may terminate this Agreement
without notice and the opportunity to cure for any of the following reasons:

(a) The franchisee or the business to which the franchise relates has been judicially
determined to be insolvent, all or a substantial part of the assets thereof are assigned to or for the
benefit of any creditor, or the franchisee admits his or her inability to pay his or her debts as they
come due;

(b) The franchisee abandons the franchise by failing to operate the business for five
consecutive days during which the franchisee is required to operate the business under the terms
of the franchise, or any shorter period after which it is not unreasonable under the facts and
circumstances for the franchisor to conclude that the franchisee does not intend to continue to
operate the franchise, unless such failure to operate is due to fire, flood, earthquake, or other
similar causes beyond the franchisee’s control;

(c) The franchisor and franchisee agree in writing to terminate the franchise;

(d) The franchisee makes any material misrepresentations relating to the acquisition of
the franchise business or the franchisee engages in conduct which reflects materially and
unfavorably upon the operation and reputation of the franchise business or system;

(e) The franchisee fails, for a period of 10 days after notification of noncompliance, to
comply with any federal, state, or local law or regulation, including, but not limited to, all health,
safety, building, and labor laws or regulations applicable to the operation of the franchise;

(f) The franchisee, after curing any failure in accordance with Section 14.3 engages in the
same noncompliance whether or not such noncompliance is corrected after notice;

(9) The franchisee breaches the franchise agreement three or more times in a 12-month
period, whether or not corrected after notice;

(h) The franchised business or business premises of the franchise are seized, taken over,
or foreclosed by a government official in the exercise of his or her duties, or seized, taken over,
or foreclosed by a creditor, lienholder, or lessor, provided that a final judgment against the
franchisee remains unsatisfied for 30 days (unless a supersedeas or other appeal bond has been
filed); or a levy of execution has been made upon the license granted by the franchise agreement
or upon any property used in the franchised business, and it is not discharged within five days of
such levy;



(1) The franchisee is convicted of a felony or any other criminal misconduct which is
relevant to the operation of the franchise;

(1) The franchisee fails to pay any franchise fees or other amounts due to the franchisor or
its affiliate within five days after receiving written notice that such fees are overdue; or

(K) The franchisor makes a reasonable determination that continued operation of the
franchise by the franchisee will result in an imminent danger to public health or safety.

15.3 Termination by Us with Opportunity to Cure. We may terminate this
Agreement, after sending you notice and a 60-day opportunity to cure, or there is a 90-day
cure period for failure to meet Minimum Requirements for any other breach of this

Agreement.
FRANCHISEE: ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
By: Date:

Name:
Title:




ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

1. Ilinois law governs the Franchise Agreement.

2. In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside the State of Illinois
is void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of
Ilinois.

3. 815 ILCS 705/41 provides as follows: “Sec. 41. Waivers void. Any condition, stipulation,
or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any
provision of this Act or any other law of this State is void.”

4. Your rights upon Termination and Non-Renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 of the
Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

5. The Franchise Agreement is modified to also provide that we defer collection of all initial
fees until we have satisfied our pre-opening obligations to you and you have commenced doing
business under the Franchise Agreement. The Illinois Attorney General’s Office imposed this
deferral requirement due to our financial condition.

FRANCHISEE: ITKO FRANCHISE, LLC
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

By: Date:

Name:

Title:




ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MARYLAND

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

1. Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must
be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

2. A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

3. A general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall
not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

4. All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or
waiver of liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any
liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

5. The Franchise Agreement is amended to also provide: “Based upon our financial condition
the Maryland Securities Commissioner requires that we defer the payment of all initial fees due to
the franchisor and/or its affiliates by the franchisee until all pre-opening obligations of the
franchisor are completed and the franchise is open for business. Accordingly, you will not be
required to pay the initial fees until we have completed all our pre-opening obligations to you and
you begin operating your business.”

FRANCHISEE: ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

By: Date:

Name:

Title:




ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

e Minn. Stat. §80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring
the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes.
In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreements can abrogate or
reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter
80C, or (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the
laws of the jurisdiction.

e With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with
Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14 Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require (except in certain specified cases),
that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180
days’ notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and that consent to the transfer of
the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

e The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks,
trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any
loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the
name. Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the
trademarks. Refer to Minnesota Stat. § 80C.12, Subd. 1(g).

e Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent
to a general release.

e The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor
may seek injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J. Also, a court will determine if a
bond is required.

e Section 4.4 of the Franchise Agreement is amended to state that “These provisions are not
enforceable under Minnesota law.”

e The Franchise Agreement is amended to limit any Non-Sufficient Fund fee to $30 per
occurrence pursuant to Minnesota Statute 604.113.

¢ No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of
(1) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including, fraud in the



inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor,
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision
supersedes any other term of any document executed with the franchise, including but not
limited to Section 20.2, Section 22 and Section 25 of the Franchise Agreement.

Any Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd.

5.

Initial Fee Deferral:

The Franchise Agreement is amended to also provide:

The franchisor defers the receipt of the initial franchise fee until the franchised business opens.

FRANCHISEE:

By:

Name:

Title:

By:

Name:

Title:

ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC

By:
Name:
Title:

Date:




ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

1. If the franchise agreement contains any provisions that conflict with the Rhode
Island Franchise Investment Act, the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail to the extent of
such conflict.

2. Any provision in the franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a
forum outside of Rhode Island is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under the
Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act.

3. Any provision in the franchise agreement requiring the application of the laws of a
state other than Rhode Island is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under the Rhode
Island Franchise Investment Act.

4. The Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act stipulates that you cannot release or
waive any rights granted under this Act. Any provision of this franchise agreement, which
constitutes a waiver of rights granted under the Act, is superseded.

5. You agree to bring any claim against us, including our present and former
employees and agents, which in any way relates to or arises out of this Agreement, or any of the
dealings of the parties hereto, solely in arbitration before the American Arbitration Association.

FRANCHISEE: ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

By: Date:

Name:

Title:




ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF VIRGINIA

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

1. The Franchise Agreement is amended by the addition of the following language:

“The Virginia State Corporation Commission’s Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
requires us to defer payment of the initial franchise fee and other initial payments owed by
franchisees to the franchisor until the franchisor has completed its pre-opening obligations under
the franchise agreement.”

“No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by you in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by us, any franchise seller, or any other person
acting on our behalf. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.”

FRANCHISEE: ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

By: Date:

Name:

Title:




ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection
Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions
which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including
the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or
mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the
time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of
arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a
franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of
franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed
pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are
represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit
the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such
as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or
actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an
employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party
seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted
annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against
an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent
contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained
in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and
unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee
from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting



or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise
agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.

Section 17.2.2 of the Franchise Agreement is amended to state that the post-termination non-
competition provision may not be enforceable in Washington.

Section 17.5 of the Franchise Agreement, entitled, “Your Claims No Defense,” is deleted from the
Franchise Agreement.

Section 17.7 of the Franchise Agreement, entitled, “Equitable Relief,” is deleted from the
Franchise Agreement.

Section 20.2 of the Franchise Agreement, entitled, “No Warranties,” is deleted from the Franchise
Agreement.

Section 22 of the Franchise Agreement, entitled, “Entire Agreement,” is modified to remove the
following text: “no other representations, warranties, or promises having induced you to sign this
Agreement.”

Section 24.6 of the Franchise Agreement, entitled, “Limitation of Actions,” is deleted from the
Franchise Agreement.

Section 25.1 of the Franchise Agreement, entitled, “Acknowledgments,” is modified to delete the
following text: “We expressly disclaim the making of, and you acknowledge that you have not
received from us, any indication, promise, warranty or guarantee, express or implied, as to the
potential volume, profits, or success of the business venture contemplated by this Agreement.”

Initial Fee Deferral:

The Franchise Agreement is amended to also provide:

“Based upon our financial condition the Washington Securities Division requires that we defer the
payment of all initial fees due to the franchisor and/or its affiliates by the franchisee until all pre-
opening obligations of the franchisor are completed and the franchise is open for business.
Accordingly, you will not be required to pay the initial fees until we have completed our pre-
opening obligations to you and you are open for business. The Development Fee will be collected
proportionally with respect to each Franchised Business that opens.”

This Washington Addendum to the Franchise Agreement amends the Franchise Agreement, Multi-
Territory Developer Addendum, and Related Agreements.

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum.

[Signature Page Follows]



FRANCHISEE:

By:

Name:

Title:

By:

Name:

Title:

ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:




ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms
below control.

1.

If the Franchise Agreement contains any provision that conflict with the Wisconsin Fair
Dealership Law, the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail to the extent of such
conflict.

The Franchise Agreement is amended to also include the following language:

With respect to franchises governed by Wisconsin law, the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law
applies to most, if not all, franchise agreements and prohibits the termination, cancellation,
non-renewal or the substantial change of the competitive circumstances of a dealership
agreement without good cause. That Law further provides that 90 days’ prior written notice
of a proposed termination, etc. must be given to the dealer. The dealer has 60 days to cure
the deficiency and if the deficiency is cured, the notice is void.

FRANCHISEE: ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC

By:

By:

Name:

Title:

By:

Name:
Title:

Date:

Name:

Title:




SCHEDULE 8
TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

SBA ADDENDUM TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT



ADDENDUM TO FRANCHISE ' AGREEMENT

THIS ADDENDUM (“Addendum™) is made and entered into on ,20  .byand
between (** Franchisor 9 S
located at . and

(* Franchisce ",
located at
Franchisor and Franchisce entered into a Franchise Agreement  on

, 20 (such Agreement, together with any amendments, the - Franchise

Agreement™). Franchisce is applying for financing(s) from a lender in which funding is provided

with the assistance of the U. S. Small Business Administration (“SBA™). SBA requires the execution of this
Addendum as a condition for obtaining SBA-assisted financing.

In consideration of the mutual promises below and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and

suﬂ'lclmcg of which the parties acknowledge the parties agree that nomlhslandmg any other terms in
ki Agreement or any other document _Franchisor requires Franchisce

to sign:

CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP

e |If Franchisse  is proposing to transfer a partial interest in Franchisce  and
Franchisor has an option to purchase or a right of first refusal with respect to that
partial intcrest, Franchisor may exercise such option or nght only if the proposed
transferce is nol a current owner or family member of a cument owner of
Franchisce . If the Franchisor 's consent is required for any transfer (full or
partial), Franchisor will not unreasonably withhold such consent. In the event of an
approved transfer of the (Enter type of) interest or any portion thereof, the transferor
will not be liable for the actions of the transferee Franchisee £

FORCED SALE OF ASSETS

e If Franchisor has the option to purchase the business personal assets upon default or
termination of the Franchise Agreement and the parties are unable to agree on the
value of the asscts, the value will be determined by an appraiser chosen by both parties. If
the Franchisce owns the real cstate where the franchisee location is
operating,  Franchisce will not be required to sell the real estate upon default or
termination, but Franchisce may be required to lease the real estate for the
remainder of the franchise term (excluding additional rencwals) for fair market
value.

' While relationships established under license, jobber, dealer and similar agreements are not generally described
as "franchise” relationships, if such relationships meet the Federal Trade Commission's {FTC's) definition of a
franchise (see 16 CFR § 436), they are treated by SBA as franchise relationships for franchise affiliation
determinations per 13 CFR § 121.301(f){5).

SBA Form 2462 (01-2018) Page 1



COVENANTS

e If the Franchisee owns the real estate where the franchisee location is
operating, Franchisor has not and will not during the term of the Franchise
Agreement record against the real estate any restrictions on the use of the property,
including any restrictive covenants, branding covenants or environmental use restrictions.
If any such restrictions are currently recorded against the Franchisee 's real cstate,
they must be removed in order for the Franchisce to obtain SBA-assisted financing.

EMPLOYMENT

e Franchisor will not directly control (hire, fire or schedule) Franchisee s

employees.  For temporary personnel franchises, the temporary employees will be
cmployed by the Franchisee not the Franchisor .

As to the referenced Franchise Agreement, this Addendum automatically terminates when SBA no
longer has any interest in any SBA-assisted financing provided to the Franchisee .

Except as amended by this Addendum, the Franchise Agreement remains in full force and effect
according to its terms.

Franchisor and Franchisce acknowledge that submission of false information to SBA, or the

withholding of material information from SBA, can result in cnminal prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and
other provisions, including liability for treble damages under the False Claims Act, 31 US.C. §§ 3729 -
3733,

Authorized Representative of FRANCHISOR :

By:

Print Name:

Title:

Authorized Representative of FRANCHISEE 3

By

Print Name:

Title:

Note to Parties: This Addendum only addresses “affiliation™ between the Franchisor and
Franchisee . Additionally, the applicant Franchisce and the chise

system must meet all SBA eligibility requirements.

SBA Form 2462 (01-2018) Page 2



SCHEDULE 9
TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

MULTI-TERRITORY DEVELOPER ADDENDUM

If any of the terms of the Franchise Agreement are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms of
this Multi-Territory Developer Addendum (“MTDA”) below control.

1.

2.

Territories. You are acquiring the following additional territories (“Development Area”)
consisting of the Postal ZIP Codes attached to this Addendum and located in:

The City and State of
The City and State of
The City and State of
The City and State of

oo oe

Initial Franchise Fees: The Initial Franchise Fees are as stated in Section 4.1 of the
Franchise Agreement. All Initial Franchise Fees are due upon execution of the first
Franchise Agreement and this Multi-Territory Developer Addendum (“MTDA”).

Development Schedule. You are not required to open the territories in the Development
Area in any particular order. You agree that you are obligated to sign a Franchise
Agreement for one territory within six (6) months of signing this Franchise Agreement,
and at six (6) months intervals thereafter until you have signed a Franchise Agreement for
each territory in the Development Area (“Development Schedule”).

If you fail to meet or satisfy the timing in the above Development Schedule, we may
terminate the franchise agreement(s) of your unopened Territory(ies) by delivering notice
of termination to you stating the reason for termination, but we must allow you thirty (30)
days after giving notice of termination to cure this breach and meet your obligations by
opening the scheduled Territory.

You agree that for our consideration in allowing the schedule set forth above, we may keep
as non-refundable all franchise fees you may have paid to us at any time.

Execution of Franchise Agreement. You will execute our then-current form of franchise
agreement for each territory identified in Paragraph 1 of this MTDA, before taking steps
to develop the outlet, which may contain different or additional terms than those set forth
in any agreement signed concurrently with this MTDA.




10.

11.

12.

Initial Training. You are not required to re-attend initial training or pay any fees associated
with initial training in connection with the second or any further additional franchise
agreements executed pursuant to this Addendum. However, any additional trainers may
be required to attend our Dog Training program and pay the required Dog Training Fees.

Telephone Service. You are not required to establish and maintain additional telephone
services for additional contiguous territories provided you already have an open Territory
with a Designated Number.

Pre-Opening Digital Marketing. You are not required to pay pre-opening digital marketing
fees for contiguous territories. You will pay a one-time expansion planning fee of $1200
to develop the strategy for the overall market. This fee is due at the time of signing this
agreement. Upon execution of each Franchise Agreement, you will pay a $600 Expansion
Fee to implement the digital marketing strategy in the contiguous territory.

Local Advertising Program. You are not required to establish this in each contiguous
territory with an already established Local Marketing Program. Distance and market
competition evaluation will be reviewed at the time of expansion to determine if additional
local marketing programs, one-time search engine optimization, on-going SEO and/or PPC
need to be added to effectively market the contiguous territory. This is at our sole
discretion. Franchisee is required to increase monthly spend per contiguous territory and
agree to actively advertise to increase the lead generation per territory opened. The increase
in budget will be mutually agreed upon based on our evaluation of the results.

Start-Up Marketing Kit. You will not be required to purchase a start-up marketing kit for
each territory. It is expected that you have adequate experience and knowledge with The
Dog Wizard to determine what, how much, and what expense is appropriate for the
anticipated revenue. You may also use existing stock from other Dog Wizard franchises
that you own to supply start-up needs. Additionally, any funds or payments for start-up
supplies will be paid to us according to normal Dog Wizard payment requirements, and not
at the time of executing the Franchise Agreement.

TDW Customer Support. In contiguous territories you will continue with services as
already established and be subject to those fees related to Option 1 or Option 2 at that time.

Insurance. Franchisee will not be required to procure additional insurance coverage for
each additional territory as long as it is contiguous with and subject to an already
established policy that meets our requirements for coverage. Franchisee will be required to
establish Commercial Umbrella Liability Insurance defined by the Franchise Agreement.

Default and Termination. If you fail to meet or satisfy the timing in the above Development
Schedule, we may give you written notice of the default and if such default is not cured
within thirty (30) days after notice of the default, we may terminate your rights to develop
any territories as to which you have breached the above Development Schedule.




You agree that for our consideration in allowing the Development Schedule set forth above,
we may keep as non-refundable all initial franchise fees you may have paid to us at any
time.

Except to the extent modified above, the terms of the Franchise Agreement remain in full force
and effect.

FRANCHISEE: ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
By: By:

Name: Name:

Title: Title:

By: Date:

Name:

Title:




EXHIBIT B
RELEASE

THIS RELEASE is made and given by ,
(“Releasor”) with reference to the following facts:

1.

Releasor and ITK9 Franchise, LLC, (“Releasee”) are parties to one or more franchise
agreements.

The following consideration is given:

the execution by Releasor of a successor Franchise Agreement or other

renewal documents renewing the franchise (the “Franchise”); or

Releasor’s consent to Releasee’s transfer of its rights and duties under the

Franchise Agreement; or

Releasor’s consent to Releasee’s assumption of rights and duties under the
Franchise Agreement; or

[insert description]

Release- Franchisee and all of Franchisee’s guarantors, members, employees, agents,
successors, assigns and affiliates fully and finally release and forever discharge Releasee,
its past and present agents, employees, officers, directors, members, Franchisees,
successors, assigns and affiliates (collectively “Released Parties”) from any and all claims,
actions, causes of action, contractual rights, demands, damages, costs, loss of services,
expenses and compensation which Franchisee could assert against Released Parties or any
of them up through and including the date of this Release.

THIS IS A SPECIFIC RELEASE GIVING UP ALL RIGHTS WITH RESPECT TO THE
TRANSACTIONS OR OCCURRENCES THAT ARE BEING RELEASED UNDER
THIS AGREEMENT.

California Releasor- You represent and warrant that YOU EXPRESSLY WAIVE ANY
AND ALL RIGHTS AND BENEFITS UNDER CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE 81542,
which provides as follows:

A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not
know or suspect to exist in his or her favor at the time of executing the
release, which if known by him or her must have materially affected his or
her settlement with the debtor.

The above Release shall not apply to any liabilities arising under the California Franchise
Investment Law, the California Franchise Relations Act, Indiana Code § 23-2-2.5.1
through 23-2-2.7-7, the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, Michigan



Franchise Investment Law, Minnesota Franchise Act, North Dakota franchise laws, the
Rhode Island Investment Act, and the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act.

7. Releasor agrees to comply with all its applicable post-termination or post-transfer
obligations (as the case may be) in the Franchise Agreement described above.
FRANCHISEE: ITKO FRANCHISE, LLC
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
By: Date:
Name:

Title:




EXHIBITC

LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS

STATE

STATE ADMINISTRATOR

CALIFORNIA

Department of Financial Protection and Innovation
2101 Arena Boulevard

Sacramento, CA 95834

(866) 275-2677

HAWAII

State of Hawaii

Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

335 Merchant Street

Room 205

Honolulu, HI 96813

(808) 586-2744

ILLINOIS

Office of the Attorney General
Franchise Division

500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

(217) 782-4465

INDIANA

Indiana Securities Division
Securities Commissioner
Room E-111

302 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204
(317) 232-6681

MARYLAND

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, MD 21202

(410) 576-7044

MICHIGAN

Michigan Department of Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

Antitrust and Franchise Unit

670 Law Building

Lansing, M1 48913

(517) 373-7117

MINNESOTA

Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7" Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101

(651) 539-1600




STATE

STATE ADMINISTRATOR

NEW YORK

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty St. 21% Floor
New York, NY 10005
212-416-8222

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol — 5" Floor

Bismarck, ND 58505-0510

(701) 328-2910

RHODE ISLAND

Department of Business Registration
Securities Division

1511 Pontiac Avenue

John O. Pastore Center

Building 69-1

Cranston, Rl 02920

(401) 277-3048

SOUTH DAKOTA

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation
124 S. Euclid Suite 104
Pierre, SD 57501

(605) 773-3563

VIRGINIA

State Corporation Commission

Department of Securities and Retail Franchising
1300 E. Main Street

Ninth Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

(804) 371-9051

WASHINGTON

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

P.O. Box 9033

Olympia, WA 98507

(360) 902-8760

WISCONSIN

Commissioner of Securities
201 West Washington Avenue
Madison, W1 53703

(608) 266-1365




EXHIBIT D

AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

STATE

AGENT FOR SEVICE OF PROCESS

CALIFORNIA

Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation
2102 Arena Blvd.
Sacramento, CA 95834

CONNECTICUT

The Banking Commissioner

The Department of Banking Securities and Business
Investment Division

260 Constitution Plaza

Hartford, CT 06103-1800

Phone Number (860) 240-8299

HAWAII

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street

Room 205

Honolulu, HI 96813

ILLINOIS

[llinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

INDIANA

Indiana Secretary of State
201 State House

200 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, IN 46204

MARYLAND

Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place
Baltimore, MD 21202

MICHIGAN

Michigan Department of Commerce
Corporations and Securities Bureau
670 Law Building

Lansing, M1 48913

MINNESOTA

Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce
85 7t Place East, Suite 500
St. Paul, MN 55101

NEW YORK

New York Secretary of State
99 Washington Avenue
Albany, NY 12231-0001
(518) 373-2492

NORTH DAKOTA

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol — 5" Floor

Bismarck, ND 58505-0510
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STATE

AGENT FOR SEVICE OF PROCESS

RHODE ISLAND

Director of Department of Business Registration
1511 Pontiac Avenue

John O. Pastore Center

Building 69-1

Cranston, Rl 02920

SOUTH DAKOTA

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation
124 S. Euclid Suite 104
Pierre, SD 57501

VIRGINIA

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission
1300 E. Main Street

First Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

WASHINGTON

Department of Financial Institutions
150 Israel Rd.
Tumwater, WA 95801

WISCONSIN

Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities
201 West Washington Avenue
Madison, W1 53703




EXHIBIT E-1

TO THE DOG WIZARD FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

LIST OF CURRENT FRANCHISEES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2022

*We note franchisees who own outlets pursuant to a Multi-Territory Developer Addendum with

an asterisk above.

Operational Outlets:

California

Octavia Landa

Sunny Dog Training LLC d/b/a
San Diego Dog Wizard
619-737-0101
sandiego@thedogwizard.com

Colorado

Jessica Young

d/b/a Ft. Collins Dog Wizard
970-295-4666
fortcollins@thedogwizard.com

District of Columbia

Scott Edmond Dancer
d/b/a DC Dog Wizard
202-459-0999
dc@thedogwizard.com

Florida

Mary L. Clegg*

Florida Sirius Dogs, LLC

d/b/a The Dog Wizard Clearwater
813-464-2168
clearwater@thedogwizard.com

Paul Arthurs

Connection K9 Training, LLC
d/b/a Orlando Dog Wizard
407-217-1410
orlando@thedogwizard.com

Mary L. Clegg

Florida Sirius Dogs, LLC
d/b/a Sarasota Dog Wizard
941-866-0234
sarasota@thedogwizard.com

Mary L. Clegg *

Florida Sirius Dogs, LLC
d/b/a Tampa Dog Wizard
813-464-2168
tampa@thedogwizard.com

Mary L. Clegg*

Florida Sirius Dogs, LLC

d/b/a The Dog Wizard North Tampa
813-464-2168
northtampa@thedogwizard.com

Georgia

Justin Hall

The Dog Wizard, LLC
d/b/a Atlanta Dog Wizard
404-234-2205
atlanta@thedogwizard.com

Indiana

Romario Romain

R2K9 LLC

d/b/a The Dog Wizard Indianapolis
314-794-2300
indianapolis@thedogwizard.com

Kentucky

Scott B. Templeton and H. Gale Templeton

Companion Animal Resources, LLC
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d/b/a Ashland Dog Wizard
606-775-0550
ashland@thedogwizard.com

Scott B. Templeton and H. Gale Templeton
Companion Animal Resources, LLC

d/b/a Frankfort Dog Wizard
502-890-0206
frankfort@thedogwizard.com

Renee Patricia Hayes

Brick by Brick K9, LLC
d/b/a Louisville Dog Wizard
502-272-6446
louisville@thedogwizard.com

Michigan

Sarah Anderson

d/b/a Grand Rapids Dog Wizard
616- 888-6225
grandrapids@thedogwizard.com

Minnesota

Glenn and Karen Lownsbery
Twins Cities Dog Wizard LLC
/b/a Twin Cities Dog Wizard
612-445-7464
twincities@thedogwizard.com

Missouri

Scott B. Templeton, Gale Templeton and

Chris Hrivnak

Companion Animal Resources (CARE) and
Chris Hrivnak d/b/a St Louis Dog Wizard

314-477-7089
stlouis@thedogwizard.com

Nevada

Matthew Godwin
Sinto Zen LLC

d/b/a The Dog Wizard
702-529-1991

lasvegas@thedogwizard.com

North Carolina

Scott Dancer

DC Dog Wizard LLC

d/b/a Asheville Dog Wizard
828-641-9555
asheville@thedogwizard.com

Danielle Kharman

d/b/a Charlotte Dog Wizard
704-626-2666
charlotte@thedogwizard.com

Melanie Perry

Mel Y Perry Training, LLC
d/b/a Lake Norman Dog Wizard
704-625-1061
lakenorman@thedogwizard.com

Katelyn Elizabeth Andersen
d/b/a Jacksonville Dog Wizard
(910) 939-8114
jacksonville@thedogwizard.com

Gregory A. Deaton

Deaton K9 Services, Inc d/b/a Raleigh Dog

Wizard
raleigh@thedogwizard.com
019-926-9165

Shelby Vadnais

Snv-Dw Wilmington, LLC
d/b/a Wilmington Dog Wizard
910-566-0209
wilmington@thedogwizard.com

Ohio

Brian J. and Mary L. Clegg
Sirius Dogs, LLC

d/b/a Cincinnati Dog wizard
513-274-0204
cincinnati@thedogwizard.com

E-1-2


mailto:info@louisvilledogwizard.com
mailto:frankfort@thedogwizard.com
mailto:lasvegas@thedogwizard.com
mailto:asheville@thedogwizard.com
mailto:raleigh@thedogwizard.com
mailto:wilmington@thedogwizard.com
mailto:cincinnati@thedogwizard.com

Steve Martin and Aurelia Ford
Einstein K9, LLC

d/b/a/ Medina Dog Wizard
330-461-9287
medina@thedogwizard.com

Oklahoma

Brad and Sherri Kelly and Scott and Gale
Templeton

Companion Animal Training Services LLC
d/b/a Dog Wizard of Oklahoma City
504-510-0704
oklahomacity@thedogwizard.com

South Carolina

Kendall Wright, John Hayes, Lauren Hayes
Lowcountry Canine Training LLC

d/b/a Charleston Dog Wizard
423-213-0107
charleston@thedogwizard.com

Kristina M Spero

Krissy's Dog Training, LLC
d/b/a Columbia Dog Wizard
803-6191373
columbia@thedogwizard.com

Tara Allen

Canine Behavioral Arts, LLC
d/b/a Greenville Dog Wizard
864-704-1418
greenville@thedogwizard.com

Kristina M Spero

Krissy’s Pet Training, LLC
d/b/a Upstate Dog wizard
864-626-5474
upstate@thedogwizard.com

Tennessee

John and Lauren Hayes
Paws in Hands, LLC
d/b/a Chattanooga Dog Wizard

423-213-0107
chattanooga@thedogwizard.com

Stephen Steele
Smoky Mountain Dog Training, LLC
d/b/a Dog Wizard Knoxville
865-320-9076
knoxville@thedogwizard.com

Kendall Wright

d/b/a Nashville Dog Wizard
615-729-0030
nashville@thedogwizard.com

Virginia

Phillipi Souza Sanz

Virginia Mountain Dogs, LLC
d/b/a Fredericksburg Dog Wizard
757-500-2405
fredericksburg@thedogwizard.com

Phillipi Souza Sanz

Virginia Mountain Dogs, LLC
d/b/a Virginia Beach Dog Wizard
757-500-2405
virginiabeach@thedogwizard.com
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Franchise Agreement Signed But Outlet
Not Yet Open (as of 12/31/2022):

California

Octavia Landa*

Sunny Dog Training LLC d/b/a
Dog Wizard San Diego
619-605-9881
sandiego@thedogwizard.com

Colorado

Romario Romain

R2K9 LLC

d/b/a Dever Dog Wizard
720-780-2030
denver@thedogwizard.com

Florida

Mary L. Clegg*

Florida Sirius Dogs, LLC

d/b/a St. Petersburg Dog Wizard
813-464-2168
northtampa@thedogwizard.com

Karen Lownsbery*

Dog Wizard of Jupiter

651-343-7766
karen.lownsbery@thedogwizard.com

Amanda Davis, Joshua Davis, Scott B.
Templeton and H. Gale Templeton
Companion Animal Resources, LLC
d/b/a Dog Wizard of Port St. Lucie
606-775-0550
scott.templeton@thedogwizard.com

Andrew Kohler*

The Andrew Kohler Group Inc.
d/b/a Dog Wizard of Riverview
813-579-5870
riverview@thedogwizard.com

Tennessee

Stephen Steele*

Tri-Cities Dog Training, LLC
d/b/a Dog Wizard Tri Cities
423-269-2566
tricities@thedogwizard.com
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EXHIBIT E-2
TO THE DOG WIZARD FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

LIST OF FORMER FRANCHISEES

The following is a list of The Dog Wizard franchisees who have been terminated, cancelled or
otherwise ceased to do business under the Franchise Agreement during our last fiscal year or who
have not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the date of this Franchise Disclosure
Document. If you buy a The Dog Wizard franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to
other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

Tyler Pagnoni

d/b/a Tampa Dog Wizard
Tampa, Florida
813-464-2168

Transfer

Gregory A. Deaton

Deaton K9 Services, Inc d/b/a Raleigh Dog Wizard
Raleigh, North Carolina

919-926-9165

No Communication

Matthew Bohn

937 Dog Training Inc, S-Corp d/b/a Dayton Dog Wizard
Dayton, Ohio

937-329-9873

Termination

Brad and Sherri Kelly

Companion Animal Training Services LLC d/b/a Dog Wizard of Oklahoma City
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

504-510-0704

Partnership Transfer

Matthew Bohn

PA K9 Services, Inc d/b/a The Dog Wizard Pittsburgh
Pittsburg, Pennsylvania

412-930-4848

Termination

Kerry A Sutter and Josh A Cash

Third Coast K9, LLC d/b/a The Dog Wizard Woodlands
Woodlands, Texas

713-766-6929

Ceased operations due to personal hardship
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EXHIBIT F
TO THE DOG WIZARD FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following statement applies to the unaudited portion of the financial statements which
follows:

THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PREPARED WITHOUT AN AUDIT.
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEES OR SELLERS OF FRANCHISES SHOULD BE ADVISED
THAT NO CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT HAS AUDITED THESE FIGURES OR
EXPRESSED HIS OR HER OPINION WITH REGARD TO THE CONTENTS OR FORM.



ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Balance Sheets
Statements of Income
Statements of Member's Equity
Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements
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R. Evans & Assoc., Inc.

Certified Public Accountants
5260 Brookhaven Drive, North Royalton, Ohio 44133
Telephone (440) 409-2406, email RMCPA@aol.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
ITK9 Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ITK9 Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard, which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 and the related statements of
income, member's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of ITK9 Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of ITKS Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt ahout ITK9 Franchise,
LLC dba The Dog Wizard's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of ITK9 Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard's internal control.,
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management,as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about ITKS Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard's ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
conirol-related matters that we identified during the audit.

B Evans and #ssoe., Tne.

R. EVANS & ASSOC., INC.
Certified Public Accountants

North Royalton, Ohio
March 31, 2023




ITKS FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable - Franchisees, Net of
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of $20,898
and $3,787, respectively
Accounts Receivable - Related Companies
Notes Receivable - Related Company, Current Portion

Prepaid Rent
Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment

Furniture and Equipment
Vehicles

Accumulated Depreciation
Net Property and Equipment
Other Assets

Notes Receivable - Related Company, Net of Current

Portion and Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

of $82,000 at December 31, 2022
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

$

2022 2021
85434 $ 67,417
42,042 28,724
98,442 -0-

171,370 114,817
-0- 500
397,288 211,458
12,006 10,982
51,432 30,728
63,438 41,710
(14,974) (5,132)
48,464 36,578
340,295 202,803
340,295 202,803
786,047 $ 450 839

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ITKO FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable - Trade

Accrued Payroll

Accrued and Withheld Payroll Taxes
Accrued Contractor Fees

Sales Tax Payable

Long-Tem Debt, Net of Current Portion
Notes Payable - Related Companies

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion
Total Liabilities
Member's Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
MEMBER'S EQUITY

022 2021
39,321 88,412
9,864 1,338
2,437 11,130
7,335 6,686
27,129 27,129
47,274 9,711
505 65,302
133,360 209,708
-0- 127,601
133,360 337,309
652,687 113,530
786,047 $ 450,839

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

Revenues

Franchise Sales Revenue

Royalties and Franchise Fee Revenue
Marketing Revenue

Resource Center Revenue

Franchise Office Fee Revenue
Mangement Fee Income

Training Fee Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Revenues

Cost of Sales
Gross Profit

Operating Expenses
Advertising and Marketing
Auto
Bad Debts
Bank Charges
Depreciation
Dues and Subscriptions
Franchise Support and Expense
Insurance
Interest
Meals and Entertainment
Miscellaneous
Office Expense and Supplies
Payroll Taxes
Professional Fees
Rent
Salaries and Wages
Subcontractor 1099 Professional Fees
Taxes - Other
Telephone
Training and Seminars
Travel

Total Operating Expenses

NET INCOME (LOSS)

2022 2021
$ 690,500 268,240
962,140 772,343
165,930 135,136
-0- 821,748
220,352 244,301
375,372 4D-
-0- 64,597
187,400 25706
2,601,694 2,332,071
-0- 809,331
2,601,694 1,522,740
179,310 72,838
4518 13,325
103,875 19,755
5,350 -0-
9,842 4,530
12,665 5,839
322,204 311,805
5,864 17,533
2,860 983
14,847 10,719
-0- 2,536
22,301 98,410
39,670 6,176
64,359 28,999
6,000 6,000
427 457 69,153
555,115 792,213
1,468 1,164
5,078 4,686
29,151 28,865
21,068 52 594
1,833,002 1,548,123
$ 768,692 $ (25,383)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

5




ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
STATEMENTS OF MEMBER'S EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Member's Equity - Beginning of Year $ 113,530 $ 138,913
Net Income (Loss) 768,692 (25,383)
Member Distributions (229,535) -0-
Member's Equity - End of Year $ 652,687 $ 113,530

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activifies

Net Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Loss on Sale of Vehicle

(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable - Franchisees
Prepaid Rent

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - Trade
Accrued Payroll
Accrued and Withheld Payroll Taxes
Accrued Contractor Fees
Sales Tax Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Accounts Receivable - Related Companies
Notes Receivable - Related Company

{(Acquisition) Disposal of Property and Equipment, Net
Proceeds from Sale of Vehicle

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from (Principal Payments of)

Notes Payable - Related Companies
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt
Principal Payments of Long-Term Debt
Member Distributions

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING
OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

2022 021
$ 768,692 (25,383)
9,842 4,530
-0- 3,519
(13,318) 19,965
500 (500)
(49,091) (15,935)
8,526 1,338
(8,693) 3,764
649 6,686
-0- 11,316
(51,585) 34,683
717,107 9,300
(98,442) -0-
(194,045) (35,655)
(21,728) (31,901)
-0- 16,000
(314,215) (51,556)
(65,302) 65,302
0 30,313
(90,038) (8,001)
(229,535) -0-
(384,875) 87,614
18,017 45,358
67,417 22,059
$ 85434 $ 67,417

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

2022
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flows
Interest Paid $ 2860 %
Income Taxes Paid -0-

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ITKS FRANCHISE, LI1.C dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS

ITK9 Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard (the Company) was incorporated in the State of Ohio
on August 2, 2019 as a Domestic Limited Liability Company. Effective August 6, 2019, the
membership interest of The Upbeat K9, LLC (a dog training company) and the membership
interest of The Dog Wizard Academy, LLC (a dog training company) were assigned to ITKS
Company, LLC, which owns 100% of ITK9 Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard. Effective
January 1, 2020, all twenty-eight (28) franchisees owned by either The Upbeat K9, LLC or The
Dog Wizard Academy, LLC became franchisees of the Company.

The Company offers franchises for businesses that will establish and operate dog training
businesses. The Company operates dog training businesses of the type being offered as
company owned outlets. The Company offers a franchise program under the name “The Dog
Wizard” for establishing and operating dog training businesses. These dog training businesses
include teaching various obedience, behavior modification, and specialty training techniques.
The techniques the franchisee uses to train dogs are taught to them by The Dog Wizard
Academy, a dog training company owned 100% by ITKS Company, LLC. The franchisee will
normally work from home in terms of performing the administrative aspecis of the franchise
business, and will train their client's dogs at their home, parks, or in space provided at a local
dog boarding or day care facility.

During 2022, there were four (4) dog training franchise locations opened, two (2) dog training
franchise locations were terminated, one (1) dog training franchise location was reacquired, and
as of December 31, 2022 there was a total of thirty-six (36) dog training franchise locations
opened, with thirty-five (35) dog training franchise locations operating in the United States of
America and one (1) dog training franchise location operating in Canada. During 2021, there
were four (4) dog training franchise locations opened, and as of December 31, 2021 there was a
total of thirty-five (35) dog training franchise locations opened, with thirty-four (34) dog training
franchise locations operating in the United States of America and one (1) dog training franchise
location operating in Canada. The Company's administrative offices are located in Medina,
Ohio.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Method of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles accepted in the United States of America. The accompanying financial
statements are prepared on the accrual method of accounting, recognizing income when earned
and expenses when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalenis
The Company considers all liguid investments with a maturity of three months or less to cash
equivalents. There were no cash equivalents at December 31, 2022 and 2021.
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ITKS FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounts Receivable - Franchisees

Accounts receivable from franchisees of $42,042 and $28,724 at December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively, represents royalties, marketing revenues and other charges for various
monthly fees due from the Company’s franchisees. Management has provided an allowance for
doubtful accounts of $20,898 and $3,787 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, for
accounts management estimates to be uncollectible. Management estimates the uncollectible
receivables based on historical collection experience coupled with a review of the current status
of existing receivables. When management considers an account to be uncollectible, it is
written off as a bad debt in current year operations.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using straight-line
methods over estimated useful lives for book purposes and accelerated methods over estimated
useful lives for tax purposes. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
operations as incurred. Expenditures for betterment and major renewals are capitalized. The
cost of assets sold or retired and the related amounts of accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal and the resulting gains or losses are
included in operations.

Assets are depreciated based on the following useful lives:

Furniture and Equipment 5 years
Vehicle 5 years
Advertising

The Company's policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Income Taxes

The Company is a Limited Liability Company under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code
and is treated as a Limited Liability Company for federal income tax purposes. Consequently,
federal income taxes are not payable or provided for by the Company, as the Member is taxed
individually on the Company's earnings.

The Company has adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 740-10-25, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
ASC Topic 740-10-25 also provides guidance on de-recognition of income tax assets and
liabilities and accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax positions. Since fax
matters are subject to some degree of uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the
Company's tax returns will not be challenged by the taxing authorities and that the Company will
not be subject to additional tax, penalties and interest as a result of such challenge. Generally,
the Company's tax returns remain open for three years for federal income tax examination. For
the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has no material uncertain tax
positions to be accounted for in the financial statements under these rules.

10




ITKS FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue Recognition Guidance

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued and amended guidance for revenue
recognition under Accounting Standard Codification 606, Revenue Recognition (ASC Toepic
606). The guidance outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. The core principle of the guidance is that an
entity should recognize revenue for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply the
following steps: (1) identify the entity's contracts with customers, (2) identify the performance
obligations in the contract, (3} determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price
to the performance obligations in the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

Nature of Goods and Services

The Company generates revenues from revenues produced at franchised dog training
businesses, and fees charged to franchisees. The contractual franchise agreement provides
the franchisee the right to own and operate a franchised dog training business at a site
approved by the Company. The contractual franchise agreement generally provides for a ten
(10) year term and a ten (10) year renewal term, subject to certain conditions.

Initial Franchise Fees

Upon signing a franchise agreement, the franchisee is required to pay a non-refundable initial
franchise fee (the “Initial Franchise Fee) to the Company. The Initial Franchise Fee requires the
Company to provide certain pre-opening services to the franchisee. These pre-opening services
provided by the Company includes, a) assistance in the evaluation of the market to be serviced
by the franchise location, b) training and education on products, services and operational
platforms, ¢) training of the franchisee’'s personnel and the franchisee, d) preparation and
distribution of manuals concerning operations, administration, and record keeping, e)
bookkeeping, information technology, and advisory services, and f) inspection, testing and
establishing a quality control program. The Company has determined that the value of the pre-
opening services they provide to a franchisee exceeds the Initial Franchise Fees. Since the
Company is nonpublic franchisor, the Company has elected to use the practical expedient
available in the FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2021-02 dated January 2021. The
practical expedient permits franchisors that are not public business entities to account for pre-
opening services provided to a franchisee as distinct from the license if the services are
consistent with those included in a predefined list within the guidance.

In addition, the Company has made the accounting policy election to recognize pre-opening
services as a single performance obligation, which allows the Company to recognize the
revenue when the pre-opening services are provided, and not defer and recognize the revenue
over the contractual term of the franchise agreement. Since the value of the Company’s pre-
opening services provided to franchisees exceeds the Initial Franchise Fee, there is no deferral
of revenue for Initial Franchise Fees.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

Royalty Fees

The franchise agreement requires the franchisee to pay a royalty fee to the Company of a
percentage of its weekly gross revenues, or a minimum weekly payment due per the franchise
agreement. These fees are recognized as revenue by the Company when the franchisee has
provided the dog training services and any applicable equipment to the customer.

Marketing Fees

Fees charged for contributions to the marketing fund are recognized as revenue by the
Company in the month the fees are charged to the franchisee.

Other Fees

Other fees, such as technical assistance fees, office fees, and administrative fees are charged
and due monthly or weekly and recognized as revenue by the Company in the month the
services are provided by the Company to the franchisee.

Contract Balances

Contract balance receivables at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are classified as accounis
receivable - franchisees in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 4 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Accounts Receivable - Related Companies

The Company has accounts receivable balances with related companies owned 100% by ITK9
Company, LLC, the 100% owner of the Company. As of December 31, the outstanding
balances are as follows:

2022 021
The Dog Wizard Academy, LLC $ 78,487 $ -0-
The Dog Wizard Resource Center, LLC 19,955 -0-
Total Accounts Receivable - Related Companies  $ 98,442 § -0-

Notes Receivable - Related Company

The Company has note receivables from ITKS Finance, LLC (100% owned affiliate of ITK®
Company, LLC) of $593,665 and $317,620 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. ITKS
Finance, LLC provides financing for the franchisees of the Company, especially regarding
financing for initial franchise fees charged by the Company to its franchisees. ITK9 Finance,
LLC is responsible for collecting these receivable balances from the Company's franchisees,
and remits the proceeds to the Company when they are received by ITKS Finance, LLC. ITKS
Finance, LLC has payment schedules with the various franchisees per the contracts signed by
the Company's franchisees, and charges interest rates between 7.50% and 12.00% on the
unpaid balances. As of December 31, 2022, the Company has provided an allowance for
doubtful accounts of $82,000 for franchisee note receivable balances that the Company
estimates to be uncollectible. The notes receivable balances that the Company has with ITKS
Finance, LLC are non-interest bearing and are unsecured.
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iITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 4 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes Payable - Related Parties

Notes payable - related companies balance of $65,302 at December 31, 2021 was paid by the
Company during 2022, and represented advances received by the Company from related
companies owned by various members of ITKS Company, LLC, the 100% owner of the
Company. The advances were non-interest bearing and unsecured.

Management Fee Income

During 2022 the Company began charging management fees to various related companies as
an allocation of time commitment from staff of the Company to those related companies, as
support in the management and operations of the related companies. The percentage is
reviewed semi-annually. Management fees charged in 2022 was $375,372.

NOTE 5 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31, 2022 and 2021:
2022

3]
o
%)
—

Loan Payable - Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL)
Iinstaliment term loan acquired to be used as working
capital to alleviate any economic injury caused by
COVID-19. Loan requires monthly payments of $561
to be made from May, 2022 through April, 2052,
payments include interest at 3.75%. The loan is
secured by a continuing security interest in all assets
of the Company. The loan was paid off in full on

January 4, 2023. $ 47274 $ 115,000

Loan Payable - Bank
Installment term loan acquired in purchase of

vehicle. The term loan was paid off in full in August,
2022. -0- 22,312

47,274 137,312
Current portion 47,274 9,711

Long-term portion $ -0- § 127,601

NOTE 6 - OPERATING LEASE

The Company leases business office premises on a month-to-month basis in Medina, Ohio in
which the Company's administrative offices are located, from Maple Lane Holdings, LLC, a
related company owned 100% by ITKS® Company, LLC. The monthly rental payments were
$500 in 2022 and 2021.
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ITKS FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 6 - OPERATING LEASE (continued)

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued ASC Topic 842,
Leases, which becomes effective for private companies for years beginning after December 15,
2021. This accounting pronouncement supersedes existing guidance on accounting for leases
contained in ASC Topic 840, Leases. ASC Topic 842 requires lessees 10 recognize the assets
and liabilities that arise from leases on their balance sheet. A lessee should recognize in the
balance sheet a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset, and a lease
liability on which the lessee must make lease payments. ASC Topic 842 does not apply to
lease terms that are less than twelve months. Therefore, the Company is not required to adopt
ASC Topic 842, Leases in the accompanying financial statements, and instead records rent
expense on a monthly basis.

Rent expense was $6,000 in 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 7 - EFFECTS OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States has caused many businesses disruptions through
mandated closures. The extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’s
operations and financial performance will depend on future developments, including the duration
and spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, impact on the Company’s franchisees, customers,
employees, and vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. At this point in
time, the Company has not experienced any significant downturn in business activity regarding
acquiring franchisees and the revenue produced by those franchisees.

NOTE 8 - LITIGATION

On August 9, 2022, the Company filed an action against a franchisee for breach of contract and
other violations in connection with a franchise agreement and related financing agreement. The
franchisee denied these allegations and counterclaimed against the Company for breach of
contract and good faith and fair dealing. The case remains in the early discovery phase.
Management of the Company and the Company's attorney believe the franchisee has not
provided sufficient information in discovery to evaluate the merits of their counterclaims, and
believes their success is uniikely.

NOTE 9 - THE DOG WIZARD RESOURCE CENTER REVENUE AND COST OF SALES

Beginning in 2022, the Company is no longer providing direct training, equipment or supplies to
its franchisees. These activities are being performed by The Dog Wizard Rescurce Center and
the Dog Wizard Academy, companies owned 100% by ITK® Company, LLC, as a separate
business entity. As a result, the revenue produced and cost of sales incurred from these
activities in 2021 and prior years are no longer recorded on the financial statements of the
Company.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 10 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS REVIEW

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 31, 2023, which was the date
that the financial statements were available to be issued. No significant matters were identified
for disclosure during this evaluation.

NOTE 11 - RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2021 financial statements to conform with the
presentation of the 2022 financial statements. There was no change in the net loss recorded in
2021.
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R. Evans & Assoc., Inc.

Certified Public Accountants
5260 Brookhaven Drive, North Royalton, Ohio 44133
Telephone (440) 409-2406, email RMCPA@aol.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
ITKS Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ITK9 Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard, which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and the related statements of
income, member's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

in our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of ITK9 Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of ITKS Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about ITK9 Franchise,
LLC dba The Dog Wizard's ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.




Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
* Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of ITK9 Franchise Group, LLC dba The Dog Wizard's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management,as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about ITKS Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard's ability to continue

as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate in writing with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain
internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

2 Evans and Hscoc., Tuc.

R. EVANS & ASSOC., INC.
Certified Public Accountants

North Royalton, Ohio
May 16, 2022



ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Accounts Receivable - Franchisees, Net of
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of $3,787
and $8,000, respectively

Note Receivable - Related Company

Prepaid Rent

Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment

Furniture and Equipment
Vehicle

Accumulated Depreciation

Net Property and Equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

021 2020
67,417 $ 22,059
28,724 48,688

317,620 281,965
500 -0-
414,261 352,713
10,982 9,718
30,728 22,200
41,710 31,918
(5,132) (3,192)
36,578 28,726
450,839 $ 381.439

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

2021 202
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable - Trade $ 88,412 104,347
Accrued Payroll 1,338 -0-
Accrued and Withheld Payroll Taxes 11,130 7,366
Accrued Contractor Fees 6,686 -0-
Sales Tax Payable 27,129 15,813
Long-Tem Debt, Net of Current Portion 9,711 -0-
Notes Payable - Related Companies 65,302 -0-
Total Current Liabilities 209,708 127,526
Long-Term Liabilities
Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Portion 127,601 115,000
Total Liabilities 337,309 242,528
Member's Equity 113,530 138,913
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
MEMBER'S EQUITY % 450,839 381,439

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD

STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenues

Franchise Sales Revenue

Royalties and Franchise Fee Revenue
Marketing Revenue

Resource Center Revenue

Franchise Office Fee Revenue
Training Fee Revenue

Other Revenue

Total Revenues
Cost of Sales

Gross Profit

Operating Expenses
Advertising and Marketing
Auto
Bad Debts
Bank Charges
Depreciation
Dues and Subscriptions
Franchise Support and Expense
Insurance
Interest
Meals and Entertainment
Miscellanecus
Office Expense ans Supplies
Professional Fees
Rent
Salaries and Wages
Subcontractor 1099 Professional Fees
Taxes
Telephone
Training and Seminars
Travel

Total Operating Expenses

NET INCOME (LOSS)

2021 2020

$ 268,240 $ 381,847
772,343 489,789
135,136 53,799
821,748 423,211
244,301 92,048
64,597 24,112
25,706 29,420
2,332,071 1,494,226
809,331 457,505
1,522,740 1,036,721
72,838 60,715
13,325 8,887
19,755 19,816
0- 16,098

4,530 3,192
5,839 3,735
311,805 182,309
17,533 8,145
983 -0-
10,719 5,589
2,536 5,600
98,410 28,602
28,999 53,339
6,000 5,000
75,329 16,923
792,213 463,496
1,164 3,208
4,686 4,859
28,865 3,009
52,594 33,420
1,548,123 927,032
$ (25,383) $ 109,689

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
STATEMENTS OF MEMBER'S EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Member's Equity - Beginning of Year 3 138,913 § 29,224
Net Income (Loss) (25,383) 109,689
Member's Equity - End of Year $ 113,630 $ 138,913

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization
Loss on Sale of Vehicle

{Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable - Franchisees
Prepaid Rent

Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable - Trade
Accrued Payroll
Accrued and Withheld Payroll Taxes
Accrued Contractor Fees
Sales Tax Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Note Receivable - Related Company
(Acquisition) Disposal of Property and Equipment, Net
Proceeds from Sale of Vehicle

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Notes Payable - Related Companies
Proceeds from Long-Term Debt
Principal Payments of Long-Term Debt

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING
OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

2021 2020
$ (25,383) $ 109,689
4,530 3,192
3,519 0=
19,965 (48,689)
(500) <O~
(15,935) 104,347
1,338 -0-
3,764 7.366
6,686 -0-
11,316 15,813
34,683 82,029
9,300 191,718
(35,655) (281,965)
(31,901) (22,200)
16,000 -0-
(51,556) (304,165)
65,302 -0-
30,313 115,000
(8,001) oL
87,614 115,000
45 358 2,553
22,059 19,506
$ 67.417 $ 22,059

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ITKS FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

2021
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flows
Interest Paid 3 683 $
Income Taxes Paid $ 0- %

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS

ITK9 Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard (the Company) was incorporated in the State of Ohio
on August 2, 2019 as a Domestic Limited Liability Company. Effective August 6, 2019, the
membership interest of The Upbeat K9, LLC (a dog training company) and the membership
interest of The Dog Wizard Academy, LLC (a dog training company) were assigned to ITK9
Company, LLC, which owns 100% of ITKS Franchise, LLC dba The Dog Wizard. Effective
January 1, 2020, all twenty-eight (28) franchisees owned by either The Upbeat K9, LLC or The
Dog Wizard Academy, LLC became franchisees of the Company.

The Company offers franchises for businesses that will establish and operate dog training
businesses. The Company operates dog training businesses of the type being offered as
company owned outlets. The Company offers a franchise program under the name “The Dog
Wizard” for establishing and operating dog training businesses. These dog training businesses
include teaching various obedience, behavior modification, and specialty training techniques.
The techniques the franchisee uses to train dogs will be taught to them by the Company. The
franchisee will normally work from home in terms of performing the administrative aspects of the
franchise business, and will train their clienis’ dogs at their home, parks, or if they plan to use
space at a local dog boarding or day care facility.

During 2021, there were four (4) dog training franchise locations opened, and as of December
31, 2021 there was a total of thirty-five (35) dog training franchise locations opened, with thirty-
four (34) dog training franchise locations operating in the United States of America and one (1)
dog training franchise location operating in Canada. During 2020, there were four (4) dog
training franchise locations opened, and as of December 31, 2020 there was a total of thirty-one
(31) dog training franchise locations opened, with thirty (30) dog training franchise locations
operating in the United States of America and one (1) dog training franchise location operating
in Canada. The Company’s administrative offices are located in Medina, Ohio.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Method of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles accepted in the United States of America. The accompanying financial
statements are prepared on the accrual method of accounting, recognizing income when earned
and expenses when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Eguivalents
The Company considers all liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to cash
equivalents. There were no cash equivalents at December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Accounts Receivable - Franchisees

Accounts receivable — franchisees of $28,724 and $48,689 at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, represents royalties, marketing revenues and other charges for various monthly
fees due from the Company’s franchisees. Management has provided an allowance for doubtful
accounts of $3,787 and $8,000 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, for accounts
management estimates to be uncollectible. Management estimates the uncollectible
receivables based on historical collection experience coupled with a review of the current status
of existing receivables. When management considers an account to be uncollectible, it is
written off as a bad debt in current year operations.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided using straight-line
methods over estimated useful lives for book purposes and accelerated methods over estimated
useful lives for tax purposes. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to
operations as incurred. Expenditures for betterment and major renewals are capitalized. The
cost of asseis sold or retired and the related amounis of accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal and the resulting gains or losses are
included in operations.

Assets are depreciated based on the following useful lives:

Furniture and Equipment 10 years
Vehicle 10 years
Advertising

The Company's policy is to expense advertising costs as incurred.

Income Taxes

The Company is a Limited Liability Company under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code
and is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes. Consequently, federal income
taxes are not payable or provided for by the Company. Members are taxed individually on their
pro rata ownership share of the Company's earnings, based on the Company's operating
agreement.

The Company has adopted the provisions of ASC Topic 740-10-25, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes, which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the
recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
ASC Topic 740-10-25 also provides guidance on de-recognition of income tax assets and
liabilities and accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax positions. Since tax
matters are subject to some degree of uncertainty, there can be no assurance that the
Company's tax returns will not be challenged by the taxing authorities and that the Company will
not be subject to additional tax, penalties and interest as a result of such challenge. Generally,
the Company's tax returns remain open for three years for federal income tax examination. For
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company has no material uncertain tax
positions to be accounted for in the financial statements under these rules.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue Recognition Guidance

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued and amended guidance for revenue
recognition under Accounting Standard Codification 606, Revenue Recognition (ASC Topic
606). The guidance in ASC Topic 606 supersedes the revenue recognition requirements in
ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition, and most industry-specific guidance throughout the
industry topics of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The new guidance outlines a
single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue
for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration tc which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and
services. To achieve that core principle, an entity should apply the following steps: (1) identify
the entity's contracts with customers, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3)
determine the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
in the contract, and (5) recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation. Additionally, the guidance requires improved disclosures to assist users of financial
statements to beiter understand the nature and timing of revenue that is recorded. The
Company, being a nonpublic entity, adopted the new guidance with an effective date of January
1, 2020.

Nature of Goods and Services

The Company generates revenues from revenues produced at franchised dog training
businesses, and fees charged to franchisees. The confractual franchise agreement provides
the franchisee the right to own and operate a franchised dog training business at a site
approved by the Company. The contractual franchise agreement generally provides for a ten
(10) year term and a ten (10) year renewal term, subject to certain conditions.

Initial Franchise Fees

Upon signing a franchise agreement, the franchisee is required to pay a non-refundable initial
franchise fee (the “Initial Franchise Fee) to the Company. The Initial Franchise Fee requires the
Company to provide certain pre-opening services to the franchisee. These pre-opening services
provided by the Company includes, a) assistance in the selection of a site for the franchisee’s
location, b) assistance in obtaining and preparing the facilities for their intended use, c) training
of the franchisee’'s personnel and the franchisee, d) preparation and distribution of manuals
concerning operations, administration, and record keeping, e) bookkeeping, information
technology, and advisory services, and f) inspection, testing and establishing a quality control
program. The Company has determined that the value of the pre-opening services they provide
te a franchisee exceeds the Initial Franchise Fees. Since the Company is nonpublic franchisor,
the Company has elected to use the practical expedient available in the FASB Accounting
Standards Update No. 2021-02 dated January 2021. The practical expedient permits
franchisors that are not public business entities to account for pre-opening services provided {o
a franchisee as distinct from the license if the services are consistent with those included in a
predefined list within the guidance.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 3 - REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

Initial Franchise Fees (continued)

In addition, the Company has made the accounting policy election to recognize pre-opening
services as a single performance obligation, which allows the Company to recognize the
revenue when the pre-opening services are provided, and not defer and recognize the revenue
over the contractual term of the franchise agreement. Since the value of the Company’s pre-
opening services provided to franchisees exceeds the Initial Franchise Fee, there is no deferral
of revenue for Initial Franchise Fees.

Royalty Fees

The franchise agreement requires the franchisee o pay a royalty fee to the Company of a
percentage of its weekly gross revenues, or a minimum weekly payment due per the franchise
agreement. These fees are recognized as revenue by the Company when the franchisee has
provided the dog training services and any applicable equipment to the customer.

Marketing Fees

Fees charged for contributions to the marketing fund are recognized as revenue by the
Company in the month the fees are charged to the franchisee.

Other Fees

Other fees, such as technical assistance fees, office fees, and administrative fees are charged
and due monthly and recognized as revenue by the Company in the month the services are
provided by the Company to the franchisee.

Coniract Balances

Contract balance receivables at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are classified as accounts
receivable - franchisees in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 4 - NOTE RECEIVABLE - RELATED COMPANY

The Company has a note receivable from ITK9 Finance, LLC (100% owned affiliate of ITK9
Company, LLC) of $317,620 and $281,965 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. ITK9
Finance, LLC provides financing for the franchisees of the Company, especially regarding
financing for initial franchise fees charged by the Company to its franchisees. ITK9 Finance,
LLC is responsible for collecting these receivable balances from the Company's franchisees,
and remits the proceeds to the Company when they are received by ITKS Finance, LLC. ITK9
Finance, LLC has payment schedules with the various franchisees per the contracts signed by
the Company's franchisees. The Company believes the note receivable balances to be fully
collectible from the franchisees, and therefore, no allowance for doubtful accounts is considered
necessary as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. The note receivable from ITK9 Finance, LLC is
non-interest bearing and is unsecured.
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 5 - NOTES PAYABLE - RELATED COMPANIES

Notes payable - related companies of $65,302 and $-0- at December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, represents advances received by the Company from related companies owned by
various members of ITK9 Company, LLC, the 100% owner of the Company. The advances are
payable on demand, non-interest bearing and unsecured.

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Loan Payable - Economic Injury Disaster Loan (EIDL)
Installment term loan acquired to be used as working
capital to alleviate any economic injury caused by
COVID-19. Loan requires monthly payments of $561
to be made from May, 2022 through April, 2052,
paymenis include interest at 3.75%. The loan is
secured by a continuing security interest in all assets
of the Company. $ 115,000 $ 115,000
Loan Payable - Bank
Installment term loan acquired in purchase of
vehicle. Loan requires sixty (60) monthly payments
of $561 to be made from February, 2021 through
January, 2028, payments include interest at 14%.
The loan is secured by the vehicle being financed.
22,312 -0-
137,312 115,000
Current portion 9,711 -0-
Long-term portion 3 127,601 % 115,000
Future minimum payments of long-term debt are as follows:
2022 $ 9,711
2023 10,126
2024 10,487
2025 11,050
2026 6,333
Thereafter 89,605
$ 137,312
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ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC dba THE DOG WIZARD
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 7 - OPERATING LEASE

The Company leases business office premises in Medina, Ohio in which the Company's
administrative offices are located, from Maple Lane Holdings, LLC, a related party. The office
premises are leased under a non-cancelable lease which expires December 15, 2023. The
lease provides for monthly rental payments of $500 in 2021, with the rental amount for each
subsequent year to be adjusted by an amount equal to the increase in the consumer price index
at the end of the last calendar year. The Company has the option to renew the lease agreement
for an additional two (2) year extension.

Future minimum rental payments required under the non-cancelable lease are as follows:

2022 $ 6,000
2023 6,000
$ 12,000

Rent expense was $6,000 in 2021 and 2020.

NOTE 8 - EFFECTS OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The COVID-19 pandemic in the United States has caused many businesses disruptions through
mandated closures. The extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company’'s
operations and financial performance will depend on future developments, including the duration
and spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, impact on the Company’s franchisees, customers,
employees, and vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. At this point in
time, the Company has not experienced any significant downturn in business activity regarding
acquiring franchisees and the revenue produced by those franchisees.

NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS REVIEW

Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 16, 2022, which was the date that
the financial statements were available to be issued. No significant matters were identified for
disclosure during this evaluation.
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EXHIBIT G
TO THE DOG WIZARD FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

STATE ADDENDA TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

As to franchises governed by the California Franchise Investment Law, if any of the terms of the
Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE
DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

Item 3 of the Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following paragraph:

Neither we nor any person or franchise broker in Item 2 of this disclosure document is subject to
any currently effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange,
as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling
such persons from membership in this association or exchange.

Item 17 of the Disclosure Document is amended by adding the following paragraphs:

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the
franchisee concerning termination, transfer, or non-renewal of a franchise. If the franchise
agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control.

Item 17.g. of the Disclosure Document is modified to state that, in addition to the grounds for
immediate termination specified in Item 17.h., the franchisor can terminate upon written notice
and a 60-day opportunity to cure for a breach of the Franchise Agreement.

Item 17.h. of the Disclosure Document is modified to state that the franchisor can terminate
immediately for insolvency, abandonment, mutual agreement to terminate, material
misrepresentation, legal violation persisting 10 days after notice, repeated breaches, judgment,
criminal conviction, monies owed to the franchisor more than 5 days past due, and imminent
danger to public health or safety.

The franchise agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the termination
of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.

Item 19: The earnings claims figures do not reflect the costs of sales, operating expenses, or other
costs or expenses that must be deducted from the gross revenue or gross sales figures to obtain
your net income or profit. You should conduct an independent investigation of the costs and
expenses you will incur in operating your franchised business. Franchisees or former franchisees,
listed in the Franchise Disclosure Document, may be one source of this information.

The franchise agreement requires application of the laws of Ohio. This provision may not be
enforceable under California law.



SECTION 31125 OF THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES US TO GIVE TO
YOU A DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT APPROVED BY THE COMMISSIONER OF
FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION BEFORE WE ASK YOU TO CONSIDER A
MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF YOUR FRANCHISE AGREEMENT.

YOU MUST SIGN A GENERAL RELEASE OF CLAIM IF YOU RENEW OR TRANSFER
YOUR FRANCHISE. CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE 831512 VOIDS A WAIVER
OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW (CALIFORNIA CODE
8831000 THROUGH 31516). BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §20010 VOIDS A
WAIVER OF YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE FRANCHISE RELATIONS ACT (BUSINESS
AND PROFESSIONS CODE §820000 THROUGH 20043).

Our website is located at www.thedogwizard.com.

OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL INNOVATION AND PROTECTION AT
www.dfpi.ca.gov.

The registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial
Protection and Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement
by the commissioner.

No disclaimer, questionnaire, clause, or statement signed by a franchisee in connection with the
commencement of the franchise relationship shall be construed or interpreted as waiving any
claim of fraud in the inducement, whether common law or statutory, or as disclaiming reliance
on or the right to rely upon any statement made or information provided by any franchisor,
broker or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor that was a material inducement to a
franchisee’s investment. Any statements or representations signed by a franchisee purporting to
understand any fact or its legal effect shall be deemed made only based upon the franchisee’s
understanding of the law and facts as of the time of the franchisee’s investment decision. This
provision supersedes any other or inconsistent term of any document executed in connection
with the franchise.


http://www.dfpi.ca.gov/

ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF HAWAII

As to franchises governed by the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law, if any of the terms of the
Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

THESE FRANCHISES HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW
OF THE STATE OF HAWAIIL.  FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL,
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND
CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND
CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE,
COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING.

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY
FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE
EXECUTION BY THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR
OTHER AGREEMENT, OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY
CONSIDERATION BY THE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, WHICHEVER
OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH A
COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE
FRANCHISE.

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN
MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR
AGREEMENT SHOULD BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS,
CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND
THE FRANCHISEE.

Registered agent in the state authorized to receive service of process:

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 203

Honolulu, HI 96813



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

As to franchises governed by the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, if any of the terms of the
Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. Item 17.u. is modified to provide that you must arbitrate claims against us.

2. In conformance with Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside the State of Illinois
is void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of
Ilinois.

3. Item 17.w. is modified to provide that Illinois law applies.

4. Any condition, stipulation, or provision of the Franchise Agreement purporting to bind you
to waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law
of the State of Illinois is void.

5. The conditions under which your Franchise Agreement can be terminated and your rights
upon nonrenewal may be affected by Sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

6. Items 5 and 7 are modified to also provide that we defer collection of all initial fees until
we have satisfied our pre-opening obligations to you and you have commenced doing business
under the Franchise Agreement. The Illinois Attorney General’s Office imposed this deferral
requirement due to our financial condition.



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MARYLAND

As to franchises governed by the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law, if any of
the terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below
control.

1. Item 17.b. is modified to also provide, “The general release required as a condition of
renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

2. Item 17.u. is modified to also provide, “A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for
claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.”

3. Item 17.v. is modified to also provide, “Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise
Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.”

4, Items 5 and 7 of the Disclosure Document are amended to also provide: “Based upon our
financial condition the Maryland Securities Commissioner requires that we defer the payment of
all initial fees due to the franchisor and/or its affiliates by the franchisee until all pre-opening
obligations of the franchisor are completed and the franchise is open for business. Accordingly,
you will not be required to pay the initial fees until we have completed all our pre-opening
obligations to you and you begin operating your business.”



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF MINNESOTA

As to franchises governed by the Minnesota franchise laws, if any of the terms of the Disclosure
Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

e Minn. Stat. §880C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring
the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes.
In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or agreements can abrogate or
reduce (1) any of the franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter
80C, or (2) franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the
laws of the jurisdiction.

e With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, the franchisor will comply with
Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14 Subds. 3, 4, and 5 which require (except in certain specified cases),
that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180
days’ notice for non-renewal of the franchise agreement and that consent to the transfer of
the franchise will not be unreasonably withheld.

e The franchisor will protect the franchisee’s rights to use the trademarks, service marks,
trade names, logotypes or other commercial symbols or indemnify the franchisee from any
loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the
name. Minnesota considers it unfair to not protect the franchisee’s right to use the
trademarks. Refer to Minnesota § 80C.12, Subd. 1(Q).

e Minnesota Rules 2860.4400(D) prohibits a franchisor from requiring a franchisee to assent
to a general release.

e The franchisee cannot consent to the franchisor obtaining injunctive relief. The franchisor
may seek injunctive relief. See Minn. Rules 2860.4400J. Also, a court will determine if a
bond is required.

e Section 4.4 of the Franchise Agreement is amended to state that “These provisions are not
enforceable under Minnesota law.”

e Item 6 of the Disclosure Document is amended to limit any Non-Sufficient Funds fee to
$30 per occurrence pursuant to Minnesota Statute 604.113.

¢ No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of
(1) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including, fraud in the
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor,
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision



supersedes any other term of any document executed with the franchise, including but not
limited to Section 20.2, Section 22 and Section 25 of the Franchise Agreement.

The Limitations of Claims section must comply with Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.17, Subd.
5.

Initial Fee Deferral:

Items 5 and 7 of the Disclosure Document are amended to also provide:

The franchisor defers the receipt of the initial franchise fee until the franchised business opens.



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF NEW YORK

As to franchises governed by the New York franchise laws, if any of the terms of the Disclosure
Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure
Document:

THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS
COVERED IN THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR
CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A PROSPECTIVE
FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE
SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2. The following is added at the end of Item 3:

Except as provided above, with regard to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person identified in Item
2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor’s principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal or civil action pending against that
person alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust or securities law, fraud,
embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive practices
or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the
business, which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature or
financial condition of the franchise system or its business operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony
charge or, within the 10 year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has
been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the subject of
a civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud or securities law, fraud, embezzlement,
fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property, or unfair or deceptive practices or
comparable allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or
decree relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State or Canadian franchise, securities,
antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action or
proceeding brought by a public agency, or is subject to any currently effective order of any national
securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange
Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or
exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating to any other
business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or department, including,
without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate broker or sales agent.



3. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(c), titled
“Requirements for franchisee to renew or extend,” and Item 17(m), entitled “Conditions for
franchisor approval of transfer”:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of
New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be
satisfied.

4. The following language replaces the “Summary” section of Item 17(d), titled
“Termination by franchisee:

You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law.

S. The following is added to the end of the “Summary” sections of Item 17(v), titled
“Choice of forum,” and Item 17(w), titled “Choice of law”:

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the
franchisor or upon the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New
York.



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND

As to franchises governed by the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, if any of the terms of
the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. Item 17.m. of the Disclosure Document is revised to provide:
Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act prohibits a franchisee
to be restricted in choice of jurisdiction or venue. To the extent any such restriction is
purported to be required by us, it is void with respect to all franchisees governed under
the laws of Rhode Island.

2. Item 17.w. of the Disclosure Document is revised to provide:

3. Rhode Island law applies.



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF VIRGINIA

As to franchises governed by the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, if any of the terms of the
Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. Item 17 of the disclosure document is hereby modified by adding the following paragraphs
to the end of provision entitled “h. ‘Cause’ defined — non-curable defaults”:

Under Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any ground for default
or termination stated in the franchise agreement does not constitute ‘reasonable
cause,’ as that term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchise Act or the laws
of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable.

Under Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a
franchisor to use undue influence to induce a franchisee to surrender any right given
to him under the franchise. If any provision of the franchise agreement involves
the use of undue influence by the franchisor to induce a franchisee to surrender any
rights given to him under the franchise, that provision may not be enforceable.

2. Item 5 of the disclosure document is amended by the addition of the following language:

“The Virginia State Corporation Commission’s Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
requires us to defer payment of the initial franchise fee and other initial payments owed by
franchisees to the franchisor until the franchisor has completed its pre-opening obligations under
the franchise agreement.”

3. “No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by you in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i)
waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement,
or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by us, any franchise seller, or any other person
acting on our behalf. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.”



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

As to franchises governed by the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, if any of the
terms of the Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection
Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions
which may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including
the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or
mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the
time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of
arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a
franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of
franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed
pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are
represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit
the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such
as a right to a jury trial, may not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or
actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an
employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party
seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted
annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against
an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent
contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained
in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and
unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee
from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting
or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise
agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.
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Use of Franchise Brokers. The franchisor may use the services of franchise brokers to assist it in
selling franchises. A franchise broker represents the franchisor and is paid a fee for referring
prospects to the franchisor and/or selling the franchise. Carefully evaluate any information
provided by a franchise broker about a franchise. Do your own investigation by contacting the
franchisor’s current and former franchisees to ask them about their experience with the franchisor

Initial Fee Deferral:

Items 5 and 7 of the Disclosure Document are amended to also provide:

“Based upon our financial condition the Washington Securities Division requires that we defer the
payment of all initial fees due to the franchisor and/or its affiliates by the franchisee until all pre-
opening obligations of the franchisor are completed and the franchise is open for business.
Accordingly, you will not be required to pay the initial fees until we have completed our pre-
opening obligations to you and you are open for business. The Development Fee will be collected
proportionally with respect to each Franchised Business that opens.”



ADDENDUM TO ITK9 FRANCHISE, LLC
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
FOR THE STATE OF WISCONSIN

As to franchises governed by the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, if any of the terms of the
Disclosure Document are inconsistent with the terms below, the terms below control.

1. Item 17 is modified to also provide,

If the franchise agreement contains any provisions that conflict with the Wisconsin Fair
Dealership Law, the provisions of this Addendum shall prevail to the extent of such
conflict.

With respect to franchises governed by Wisconsin law, the Wisconsin Fair Dealership
Law applies to most, if not all, franchise agreements and prohibits the termination,
cancellation, non-renewal or the substantial change of the competitive circumstances of a
dealership agreement without good cause. That Law further provides that 90 days’ prior
written notice of a proposed termination, etc. must be given to the dealer. The dealer has
60 days to cure the deficiency and if the deficiency is cured, the notice is void.



EXHIBIT H
TO THE DOG WIZARD FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

FRANCHISEE DISCLOSURE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
[Not to be used as to any franchise sale in or to residents of CA, HI, IL, IN, MD, MI, MN, NY, ND, RI,
SD, VA, WA, WI]

You and we are preparing to enter into a Franchise Agreement. This Acknowledgement is to
determine whether any statements or promises were made to you that we did not authorize or are
untrue, inaccurate or misleading, to ensure you have been properly represented, and that you
understand the limitations on claims you may make relating to your franchise. You cannot sign
or date this Acknowledgement the same day as the Receipt for the Franchise Disclosure
Document. You must sign and date it the same day you sign the Franchise Agreement and
pay your franchise fee. Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide
honest responses.

Yes  No__ |. Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise Agreement
and each attachment or Schedule attached to it?

Yes  No__ 2. Do you understand all the information contained in the Franchise
Agreement?
Yes  No__ 3. Have you received and personally reviewed the Franchise Disclosure

Document we provided?

Yes  No__ 4. Do you understand all the information contained in the Franchise
Disclosure Document?

Yes  No__ 5. Have you reviewed the Franchise Disclosure Document and Franchise
Agreement with a lawyer, accountant or other professional advisor?

Yes  No__ 6. Doyouunderstand the risks of developing and operating this franchise?

Yes  No__ 7. Do you understand that your investment involves substantial business
risks and that there is no guarantee that your business will be profitable?

Yes  No__ 8. Do you understand the success or failure of your franchise will depend
in large part upon your skills, abilities and efforts and those of the
persons you employ as well as many factors beyond your control such
as competition, the economy, labor and supply costs and other relevant
factors?

Yes  No__ 9. Do you acknowledge that the success of your franchise in large part
relies upon your ability as an independent business person and your
active participation in the day to day operation of the business?



Yes  No 10. Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our behalf
has made any statement, promise, or agreement, that is contrary to or
different from what is stated in the Franchise Disclosure Document and
Franchise Agreement?

Yes  No__ 11. Do you agree that no employee or other person speaking on our behalf
made any statement or promise regarding the actual, average or
projected profits or earnings, the likelihood of success, the amount of
money you may earn, or the total amount of revenue you will generate,
that is not contained in Item 19 of the Franchise Disclosure Document
or that is contrary to, or different from, the information contained in
Item 19 of the Franchise Disclosure Document, and that you have not
made a decision to purchase your franchise based on any such
representations?

Yes  No__ 12. Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement and attachments to the
Franchise Agreement contain the entire agreement between us and you
concerning this franchise, meaning any prior oral or written statements
not set out in the Franchise Agreement or the attachments to the
Franchise Agreement will not be binding?

All representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of
any liability are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability
incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law or the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

[Not to signed in any franchise sale in or to residents of CA, HI, IL, IN, MD, MN, MI, NY, ND, RI, SD,
VA, WA, WI]

By signing below, you are representing that you have responded truthfully to the above
questions.

Name of Applicant (please print)

Signature
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Date:

Explanation of any negative responses (Refer to Question Number):
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EXHIBIT I
STATE EFFECTIVE DATES

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota,
Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is
filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State Effective Date
California Pending
Illinois Pending
Indiana Pending
Maryland Pending
Michigan September 13, 2022
Minnesota Pending
New York Pending
Virginia Pending
Washington Pending
Wisconsin Pending

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws,
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted
marketing plans.



EXHIBIT J
RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If ITK9 Franchise, LLC offers you a franchise, offers you a franchise, we must provide this
disclosure document to you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make
a payment to, us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

lowa requires that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting
or 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor
or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Michigan requires that we give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the
execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration,
whichever occurs first.

New York requires that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal
meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If we do not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading
statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and
should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the state
agencies listed in Exhibit C.

The franchisor is ITK9 Franchise, LLC located at 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256. Its
telephone number is (877) 585-9727.

Issuance Date: April 13, 2023

The Franchise Sellers for this offering are:
X Noelle Woodhead, 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256; (843) 749-2227.
X Jason Watson, 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256; (704) 954-8830.

X  Grant Reeves, 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256; (330) 331-6061.

We authorize the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit D to receive service of process for
us in the particular state.

| received a disclosure document dated April 13, 2023 that included the following Exhibits:
EXHIBITA  FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Schedule 1- Ownership of Franchise
Schedule 2- Territory



Schedule 3- Non-Disclosure and Non-Competition Agreement
Schedule 4- Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgement
Schedule 5- Authorization Agreement for Prearranged Payment (Direct
Debits)
Schedule 6- Code of Conduct (Rules, Standards, Procedures, and Code of
Conduct)
Schedule 7- State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement
Schedule 8- SBA Addendum
Schedule 9- Multi-Territory Developer Addendum
EXHIBIT B RELEASE
EXHIBIT C LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS
EXHIBIT D AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
EXHIBIT E-1 LIST OF CURRENT FRANCHISEES
EXHIBIT E-2 LIST OF FORMER FRANCHISEES
EXHIBIT F FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EXHIBIT G STATE ADDENDA TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
EXHIBITH FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
EXHIBIT | STATE EFFECTIVE DATES
EXHIBIT J RECEIPTS

Date Signature Printed Name

Date Signature Printed Name

Please sign, date, and retain this copy for your records.



EXHIBIT J
RECEIPT

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other
information in plain language. Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.

If ITK9 Franchise, LLC offers you a franchise, offers you a franchise, we must provide this
disclosure document to you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make
a payment to, us or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

lowa requires that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting
or 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor
or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.

Michigan requires that we give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the
execution of any binding franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration,
whichever occurs first.

New York requires that we give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal
meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the
payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If we do not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or misleading
statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and
should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the state
agencies listed in Exhibit C.

The franchisor is ITK9 Franchise, LLC located at 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256. Its
telephone number is (877) 585-9727.

Issuance Date: April 13, 2023

The Franchise Sellers for this offering are:
X Noelle Woodhead, 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256; (843) 749-2227.
X Jason Watson, 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256; (704) 954-8830.

X  Grant Reeves, 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH 44256; (330) 331-6061.

We authorize the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit D to receive service of process for
us in the particular state.

| received a disclosure document dated April 13, 2023 that included the following Exhibits:
EXHIBIT A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Schedule 1- Ownership of Franchise
Schedule 2- Territory



Schedule 3- Non-Disclosure and Non-Competition Agreement
Schedule 4- Guarantee, Indemnification, and Acknowledgement
Schedule 5- Authorization Agreement for Prearranged Payment (Direct
Debits)
Schedule 6- Code of Conduct (Rules, Standards, Procedures, and Code of
Conduct)
Schedule 7- State Addenda to the Franchise Agreement
Schedule 8- SBA Addendum
Schedule 9- Multi-Territory Developer Addendum
EXHIBIT B RELEASE
EXHIBIT C LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS
EXHIBIT D AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS
EXHIBIT E-1 LIST OF CURRENT FRANCHISEES
EXHIBIT E-2 LIST OF FORMER FRANCHISEES
EXHIBIT F FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EXHIBIT G STATE ADDENDA TO THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
EXHIBITH FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
EXHIBIT | STATE EFFECTIVE DATES
EXHIBIT J RECEIPTS

Date Signature Printed Name

Date Signature Printed Name

Please sign, date, and return this copy to ITK9 Franchise, LLC, 4170 Pearl Road, Medina, OH
44256.



